FEISHEEER AR

China New Higher Education Group Limited
(RFAERSIMKIZERAR)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with Limited Liability)
% 13 X 5% Stock Code : 2001

2ND1

ANNUAL REPORT 1




H &%
CONTENTS

DEEHR

CORPORATE INFORMATION
ERERERR
CORPORATE MILESTONE
IREHRESE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

SCHOOL NETWORK

EEENWED N
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEREMEEE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEERS

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

EREBRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BB R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

mEE@m%

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

R B RO &
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mERREEx
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

S 35 3R AR B o
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MBME
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Bx
DEFINITIONS

12

22

49

57

114

133

141

142

143

145

147

150

260

262

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &

E



nNAEH
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Exg

HITES
TEHLE (EBEER)
R 5

mERL L

BYFHITES

BEELE
MR TE
R&EEE
ZrHEL

BEREES
BEELE (XR)
MR S
TR

FMESE
BBEE S ()
MR EE
FZH AL

REERE
T2 kE (ER)
BEELE
REIEEE

REAR

FEHALE
AP ST £

DRME
EEBLL

BB AR
JEAR B 5 Hi 12 60 B85 P
&5 IE

25 RIEH155
BiES

DBARE
19#£1902-09F

% & B
ZXETEIBAT
HEESTE
AMARFEEEZEM
K ih— E27#E

% EIEI795%
0
58

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Zhao Shuai
Ms. Shen Chunmei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Hu Jianbo

Mr. Chan Tung Hoi

Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Jianbo
Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Jianbo
Mr. Li Xiaoxuan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan (Chairman)
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Chan Tung Hoi

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan
Mr. Zhao Shuai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Wong Wai Ling

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG LAWS

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius
Suites 1902-09, 19th Floor
Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



AMMER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

MBRPETEEHE MR

FEALETREE
1t = IR R K 365%
IRINE 5 OAE25E

ERTEEEMEY
'8

A7 2 5 KIBE 24858

K I & @ 04042

FEHEROBFETE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

EERMBEERE
EBPREZFEZTERAT
{7

ERREHR1835E

ESR SN
17481712-171695 54

FTEFRIEIT
R RERIT

HE TERT

E B4R 1T

TEHESR 1T

18 48R 1T
EREREERNEIERT
EEENBEET
BREEHEBE
BEEBE

ZE I : ir@xingaojiao.com

ik FE LR TFEEP168-2005%
EEF O E

1310

NIE R

http://www.xingaojiao.com

IR A3 X 5%

2001

t A
2017448198

AR -E
CORPORATE INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Established Yunnan Einsun Computer
Vocational Training Station which was

engaged in computer basic education Group headquarter moved to Beijing from

L . Yunnan
and training, and entered into the _ .

E= = ==

private education industry RERNHEREELR
BMYEEMEERARTERBEEZIN ) ) )
BEIERMEBEBE Y HBE A Established Guizhou School offering a
RNMBITLE three-year junior college program

BENERRY BRE=FHENRE

e ©0 2@

Central China School newly

joined the Group and finished the
construction of its new campus in

Established Yunnan School and was
upgraded from junior college to
undergraduate school in 2011

EMERAIL 0IERBEAUE 2010
BAKBERN i;i;gAZF%ﬂtmzom

” P
Northeast School newly joined the
Grou

p
REBRFMAXEER
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Listed on the main board of SEHK
EBRBXAERLD

Included as a constituent stock of the Hang
Seng Composite Small Cap Index, Hang Seng
Consumer Goods & Services Index and MSCI
China Small Cap Index for the first time
BRAEMABERENERERREEHE
mEE BREFEEROREMSCHRFE
PEEBEHRGR

Included as a constituent stock of Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index,
with effect on 5 March 2018
BMANBEEERBEBRDR  R2018
FIASHENR

Cooperation in relation to the Gansu
School and planned the construction
of its new campus

AFEENTRERUEERHTRE
Guangxi Schools newly joined the
Group

EEERFMAKRES

Luoyang School newly joined the
Group

BEERFAMAXRES

TEEREE®
CORPORATE MILESTONE

Further acquisition of minority
shareholders’ interests in Luoyang
School and Guangxi Schools
E-—SEESEEERREEER
LHRRES

Actively responded to the
epidemic situation and successfully
completed the teaching task
through online teaching platform

BEEHEE BBSLYBTFLAERTREEEH

Yunnan Vocational School newly joined the Group

EEREERFMALER

Completion of the first simultaneous issuance of convertible bond (US$
100 million) and placement transaction in the Asia-Pacific
education sector

EREABHETETEETEBEREL) + RENR S HIT

The construction of new
campus of Gansu School
was completed within one
year and more than 8,000
students moved in

HEERFREE-FHH
BRI T HES,00068 2 4 A B

Beijing Lianhe newly joined the Group

ERBEFMALEE

Completion in conversion of Central
China School and Gansu School

EHERRHBERTHER
Zhengzhou School newly joined the
Grou

BMNBRHFMAREEH

Further acquisition of minority shareholders’ interests in Guangxi Schools

E-SESEASERIBRRES

Full redemption of convertible bond

BYEETHEE

Further acquisition of minority shareholders’ interests in Northeast School

E-SREESRLBRDBRRES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENTS

PEFSHEEETRAA
China New Higher Education
Group Limited

SEABA ESEERE
HITES

Founder of the Group,
Chairman of the Board
Executive Director

FEEH

Li Xiaoxuan
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present to the Shareholders the annual
results report of the Group as of 31 August 2021.

Firstly, on behalf of the Group, I'd like to express my heartfelt thanks to all
friends for their trust and support to New Higher Education Group.

The Group has been focusing on the higher vocational education for 22 years
and has cultivated more than 400,000 talents to the society. In 2021, with the
full effort of all staff and riding on a wave of vocational education reform and
development in the country, we adhered to “Student As The Center”, continuously
deepened the reform of talent cultivation, optimized the structure of majors
and unswervingly embarked on the path of high-quality development. With our
employment quality hitting a new high and the teaching quality significantly
improved, we recorded remarkable enhancement in the satisfaction of students
and teachers, further leveraging the advantage of the Group’s centralized school
operation. The pre-determined goals of all core indicators were achieved with
high quality. The Group also consciously practiced the principle of public welfare
of education to guide schools to consistently innovate thoughts on educational
assistance. We actively undertook social responsibilities through the “Not One
Less” (—{E#EB A BEA ) , supporting the development of ethnic minorities,
pairing support, the volunteer teaching program in “3 districts”, leading the
establishment of the Rural Revitalization Working Committee of the China
Association for Non-government Education, with a total investment of tens
of million yuan, helping more than 6,000 students finishing their studies and
forming New Higher Education Group’s supportive mode with distinctive features.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED R SHEBERAT
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| will briefly report the development of the Group in the following four aspects.
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THE EMPLOYMENT QUALITY HIT A NEW HIGH

As of the end of 2020, the Group achieved outstanding results in
employment with average employment rate surging to 98%, far above
the national average. The employment rate of each of the schools ranked
high in the province. The average employment rate of Yunnan and Guangxi
Schools ranked the top among similar institutions in the provinces and the
employment rate of Gansu School hit a new high in the province for two
consecutive years. In 2021, the Group continuously increased investments
in employment and the employment rate of its schools reached new highs.
Its graduates were warmly welcomed by employers in different industries.
The number of internships in well-known enterprises accounted for
15.38% of the total number of graduates. Yunnan School was identified
as the employability training base for national college graduates by
the Ministry of Education (MOE). Outstanding undergraduate graduates
in 2021 served as design directors in well-known enterprises with an
annual salary of RMB390,000. Guizhou School was awarded the “Top 100
National Typical College Graduates for Employment and Entrepreneurship”
by the MOE, making it the only college in Guizhou Province as well as
the only private school in China winning the honor. At the 2022 National
Conference on Employment and Entrepreneurship for Graduates of
Ordinary Colleges and Universities (2022 2 EIZ B REBZ LR
2 A1 TE=E) jointly held by the MOE and the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security held on 19 November, Guizhou School
received recognition from Mr. Huai Jinpeng, Minister of the MOE.
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SIGNIFICANT IMPROVEMENT OF THE TEACHING
QUALITY

The Group focused on the national development layout of the “Three
Major Industries”, namely emerging industries, leading industries and
special industries. The Group constructed five major groups led by
information technology, high-end equipment manufacturing, medical
health care and big health, digital finance, and cultural media industries
groups. The Group has continuously increased investments in school
operation and reached in-depth cooperation with more than 1,600 well-
known enterprises in different industries. Based on national and industrial
demands, the Group implemented the “Customized Training Program for
Famous Enterprises” ( % 1& & #l3Z & 5t &) and opened more than 100
employment classes, representing an increase of over 300% as compared
to the corresponding period of the previous year. The number of industrial
colleges has increased to 30, representing a year-on-year increase of
87.5%. The Group conducted advantageous major construction with top
universities and leading private enterprises. The Group cooperated with
the Snow Laboratory of Harvard Graduate School of Education to jointly
carry out major construction on pre-school education for the subordinate
schools. The Group vigorously promoted the reform of talent cultivation
guided by the OBE concept, and cooperated with Xi’an Jiaotong-Liverpool
University to jointly build information technology and accounting majors,
to jointly promote research-oriented teaching and vigorously push on the
construction of “Wonderful Class”. With the joint construction of industrial
colleges as the platform, the Group vigorously advanced the integration
of industry and teaching, school-enterprise cooperation and collaborative
fostering of talents by schools and enterprises. Accredited professionals
and teachers with “double qualifications” were sent out by well-known
enterprises such as Huawei, JD, Geely Auto and Chinasoft International
to participate in internship and practical teaching. In the 2021 academic
year, the structure of enrollment of the Group has been further optimized.
The registration rate at the undergraduate level increased 20% as
compared to the previous year. The registration rate of junior college to
bachelor degree transfer programmes of Gansu School increased 200%
as compared to the previous year. The admission score for key majors in
Central China School was 41 scores higher than the provinial minimum
admission scores and the brand influence and competitiveness of schools
of the Group have been consistently enhanced.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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REMARKABLE ENHANCEMENT OF THE
SATISFACTION OF STUDENTS AND TEACHERS

The Group always adheres to “Student As The GCenter”, and elevated
the improvement of the experience of students and teachers to an
unprecedented level. The Group continuously increased input in
improving the experience of students and teachers. The Group set up
experience centers for students and teachers at the Group and school
levels. The Group completed the establishment of the digital platform
for an intelligent campus, providing over 75 million services annually
and maintaining constant and strong communications among teachers,
students and alumni. The Group regularly and deeply analyzed comments
and suggestions from students and teachers and responded to over
6,000 appeals from students, achieving an effective reply rate of 100%.
The Group integrated the improvement of the experience of students and
teachers into campus environmental construction and the construction of
education and teaching facilities and the optimization of logistics service
facilities that improved the whole process of learning and life experience.
The Group implemented the renovation of the dining environment of
canteens in schools, the transformation of accommodation conditions
for students and the improvement of education and teaching facilities
and campus landscaping projects, significantly improved the educational
environment and service quality of schools and the satisfaction of students
and teachers.
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PROMINENT ADVANTAGES OF CENTRALIZED
SCHOOL OPERATION

In 2021, the Group continued to make efforts on the advantages of
centralized school operation. He Jun Consultancy* (FEE:#) ,
a domestic leading strategic consultation enterprise, was engaged to
conduct the research consultation programme on the centralized school
operation model and governance system. In-dept studies regarding
industrial law and the characteristics of the Group were conduced and
“The Consultation Plan on Group Governance Model” was formulated to
enhance the professional capabilities of the headquarters, strengthen
the operational capability of schools and reinforce the collaboration
and empowerment between the headquarters and schools. Meanwhile,
the Group sped up in advancing the establishment of talent teams
and significantly enhanced the professional capability of teams at the
headquarters. Among the executive management of the schools, 90% of
them were cultivated by the Group. The Group also vigorously promoted
process reengineering, that standardized processes of the Group and
schools covered 56 routine businesses, achieving digital management
in teaching, teaching affairs, student work, human resources and asset
operation to significantly improve the work quality and efficiency. For
example, the Group assigned teaching, human resources, financial,
process IT and other management cadres to participate in school
governance and achieved targeted empowerment of Zhengzhou School,
the newly-added school of the Group. The brand building, management
services and operational efficiency of Zhengzhou School were rapidly
improved regarding the number of enrolled students recorded a year-on-
year increase of 23.7% and the tuition fees was adjusted as planned.
With Northeast School fully joined the Group, we will further leverage
the synergy of centralized school operation in the future to ensure the
achievement of expected targets on high-quality development.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Xi Jinping, General Secretary of the CPC Central Committee, gave an important
instructions on vocational education in April this year, intensifying that “vocational
education has a promising future and huge development potential in the new
journey of building a modern socialist country”. The Opinions on Promoting the
High-quality Development of Modern Vocational Education ( (BRI BB
BEHNBSEEHRREMER) ) were officially released in October 2021,
and vocational education has become a key educational field encouraged by the
country.

The Group will focus on the strong demand for application-oriented technical
and skilled talents in national economic and social development during the
“14th Five-year Plan” period. With the party’s educational policy as the guide,
enhancing morality and fostering talents as the fundamental task, serving
development as the purpose and the high-quality employment as the orientation,
the Group will constantly optimize the structure of majors and the model
of talent cultivation, continuously increase investments in school operation
conditions, improve welfare package, establish higher-level faculty teams and
comprehensively improve the experience of students and teachers to win the
recognition of students, parents, employers and governments with connotative
high-quality development. Meanwhile, the Group decided to significantly increase
the dividend payout ratio to actively return our investors for their long-term
concerns and support and create sustainable and sound investment returns for
investors. The Group will unswervingly be a higher vocational education group
with government support and more sustainable and high-quality development to
achieve win-win results with investors in the long run.

China New Higher Education Group Limited
Chairman
Li Xiaoxuan

30 November 2021
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BRA =
SCHOOL NETWORK

EEIBER (EFER)
Yunnan Technology and Business University Guizhou Vocational College of Industry & Commerce
(Yunnan School) (Guizhou School)

BRREEEESER (RLER) ML B2k (EHRER)
Harbin Huade University Hubei Enshi College
(Northeast School) (Central China School)

EEREBEZER OSBER) ERARERRBESR  EASRNEERRE
Luoyang Science and Technology Vocational College ERMEBRK ETEERRREEER KB+
(Luoyang School) B(HBEAZER)

Guangxi Yinghua International Occupation College,
Guangxi Qinzhou Yinghua International Occupation and
Technology School and Guangxi Yinghua International
Occupation Middle School (collectively, Guangxi Schools)

BEMNEEREER (HRER) RN 35k T B R 2R B (BN ERAR)
Lanzhou College of Information Science and Zhengzhou City Vocational College
Technology (Zhengzhou School)

(Gansu School) R2021F9A ZEMALREE

Fully joined the Group in September 2021

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &



14

=)

R # #&

SCHOOL NETWORK
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YUNNAN SCHOOL (SELF-FOUNDED)

Founded in 2005 and provides undergraduate education and junior
college education

The first private undergraduate school in Yunnan Province

Top 50 National Graduate Employment of the MOE (BB 2 EHE %
A ¥ T 1E5058)

Approved as applied talents training model institute in Yunnan Province
in 2019

The first applied undergraduate university in Yunnan which established
University Edge Computing Network Engineering Research Center

Won the first award of the Yunnan Duty Appraisal of Employment Target
for 10 consecutive years

The employment rate of 2020 graduates ranked first among similar
schools in Yunnan Province

Won two national grand prizes at the 11th “Innovation, Creativity
and Entrepreneurship” Challenge for National University Students in
E-Commerce, and was the school with the largest number of grand
prizes and winners in the country

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED HEI#imBEEERAR
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BRA =
SCHOOL NETWORK

GUIZHOU SCHOOL (SELF-FOUNDED)

° Founded in 2012 and provides junior college education

The full-time vocational college with the largest enroliment and leading
employment rate in Guizhou Province

. “Outstanding Youth Commando for Epidemic Prevention (B35 &S
FEZ2E[K) "awarded by Guiyang Committee of the Communist Youth
League

° The only private college in Guiyang awarded the “Advanced Educational

Institution in Guiyang” in 2019

° The passing rate of nurse qualification examinations for four consecutive
years is higher than the national average level of higher vocational
education, and ranking the top in Guizhou Province

° Delivered a speech on typical experience in the Meeting of Graduates’
Employments and Entrepreneurship of 2021 Provincial Higher Colleges
as a representative and reported to the Ministry of Education as a typical
case of employment in Guizhou Province

° Recognized as one of the “Top 100 National Typical College Graduates
for Employment and Entrepreneurship (2Bl SR EBE LM E A%
BAFY) " by the MOE, and was the only college winning this honor in
Guizhou Province and the only private school winning this honor in China

The major of nursing is awarded as the provincial characteristic
backbone major streams of higher vocational education and has a
provincial excellent teaching team

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &
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NORTHEAST SCHOOL (INVESTMENT, COMPLETED IN
DECEMBER 2018)

First built in 1992, then established as an independent institute in 2004
and provides undergraduate education

The earliest private undergraduate university in Heilongjiang Province

The only national key construction base for the training of qualifications
of middle-level professional teachers in private universities

Heilongjiang Top 100 Quality Institution

The first batch of pilot universities for “Campaign of Cultivating Excellent
Engineers” in Heilongjiang Province

The “1115” Project of Heilongjiang Province’s construction of a strong
province for higher education

Automobile service engineering major was recommended to participate
in the construction of national first-class majors

The first batch of director units of the Association of Universities
(Colleges) of Applied Science in China

Welding technology and engineering was approved by the Ministry of
Education for the reform project of new engineering as the only school
among the colleges of its kind in Heilongjiang Province

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED HEI#imBEEERAR
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CENTRAL CHINA SCHOOL (INVESTMENT, COMPLETED
IN AUGUST 2019)

° Established in 2003 and provides undergraduate and junior college
education in medical science, arts and other subject

° An application-oriented private undergraduate university with distinctive
characteristics, well-known in the province and influential in the country

° Obtained the qualification to grant Bachelor of Medical Science
° Government entrusted targeted training unit for medical students
° Won the title of “Excellent Project of National Volunteer Service for West

China Development Program (2 Bl S5t BIEFERFBEE EFE
B #%) " in 2020, and was the private college with the largest number of
admission quota in the West China Development Program of the province
in 2021

° The written examination passing rate of civil servants in Central China
School received top ranking from the province in 2021
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LUOYANG SCHOOL (INVESTMENT, COMPLETED IN
OCTOBER 2018)

Established in 2013 and provides junior college and vocational education
The only private higher vocational college in Luoyang city, Henan
Excellent private school in Henan Province

The National Top 10 E-commerce Educational Institutions

The first batch of pilot colleges to hold the National E-commerce Skills
Examination

Vice chairman unit of China Modern Service Industry Vocational
Education Group

National grand prize of the 10th national university student e-commerce
“Innovation, Creativity and Entrepreneurship” challenge

The first cross-border e-commerce industry college cooperating with the
government to implement a comprehensive bonded zone in the country

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED HEI#imBEEERAR
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EREER (BRE H2019F1 A5 R H  GUANGXI SCHOOLS (INVESTMENT, COMPLETED IN
x) JANUARY 2019)

. R FA2005F  REERRSHHE . Established in 2005 and provides junior college and high school
education

. MRS ELEREOHT . Located in the port city of Beibu Gulf Economic Zone

. FMHE——FRRESK . The only private college in Qinzhou City

. EREBILNESERRK . The most international higher education college in the area

. FENEZESREFEMBIAAERE-—F . The first prize of the 8th national university digital art design competition

#®
. HEMEREREANRERRE — . The employment rate ranked first among similar schools in the province
for two consecutive years
. [CRNFEEAEBESREBEENRERET . Won “2020 Outstanding Unit of Employment and Entrepreneurship for
EREEBEN] - AEFRAE—BEBRENR Graduates of Colleges and Universities in Guangxi”, which is the only
PR AR private college awarded within this 5 years
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GANSU SCHOOL (INVESTMENT, COMPLETED IN APRIL
2021)

Established in 2004 and provides undergraduate education

Recognized as Advanced Unit of Employment in Ordinary Colleges and
Universities in Gansu Province

The first batch of pilot universities for transformation and development
of applied technology universities in Gansu Province

The key university supported and developed in the “13th Five-year Plan”
of Gansu Province

Ranked No. 1 in the province on employment rate of undergraduate
colleges for two consecutive years

Exceeded historical records of the employment rate of graduates in
Gansu Province in 2020 and the initial employment rate of graduates in
Gansu Province in 2021

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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ZHENGZHOU SCHOOL (INVESTMENT, COMPLETED IN
SEPTEMBER 2021)

Established in 2009 and provides junior college education
A cradle of city builders and service providers

A college with distinguishing vocational education features in Henan
Province

One of the top ten schools in terms of higher education quality and
social satisfaction in Henan Province

A high-quality school in the education industry of Central China in 2020
Won one first prize and two outstanding awards at the 11th Langiao Cup

National Software and Information Technology Experts Competition ( &

BHRE2EZRGNEERMEEAS KE)
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HIGHLIGHTS

The Group focuses on building a high-quality education system,
strengthens the positioning of vocational education and always adheres
to “Student As The Center”, while continuously deepening the reform of
talent cultivation, optimizing the discipline and professional structure, and
firmly following the path of high-quality development.

The average employment rate has climbed to 98% by the end of 2020,
much higher than the average of the nationwide level, and the employment
rate of each school received top ranking from all provinces. In 2021,
the Group continued to increase investment in education, and the initial
employment rate reached a record high.

Focusing on the national development layout of the Three Major Industries
of emerging industries, leading industries and special industries, the
Group has conducted in-depth studies on the changing trend of regional
industrial structure adjustment, deployed in the sunrise industries in
advance and constructed five major groups led by information technology,
high-end equipment manufacturing, medical health care and big health,
digital finance, and cultural media industries groups, continuously
optimizing the discipline and professional structure to build the core
competitiveness of the schools.

In response to the national call to accelerate the conversion of
independent colleges, two independent colleges in Gansu and Hubei have
successfully completed the conversion, and both schools had double-
digit increase in total number of enrolled students in the academic year of
2021/22 compared to that prior to the conversion.

The Group has cultivated more than 400,000 outstanding graduates and
sent high-quality application-oriented talents with innovative spirit and
practical ability, trustworthiness and social responsibility to the society.

As of 9 November 2021, the Group’s number of students enrolled was
about 144,000. The Group’s capacity for sustainable and high-quality
development has been further enhanced, and its ability to serve the
construction of a skill-based society has been further strengthened.

The Group adheres to high-quality development. Zhengzhou School
was newly added into the Group’s school network. Further acquisition
of minority interest in Guangxi Schools and Northeast School were
completed. Focusing on the national strategies of regional development,
such as the development of Western China, the rise of Central China and
the revitalization of Northeast China, the Group will give full play to its
advantages of centralized school operation in the future, and facilitate
local economic development through deploying in emerging industries,
leading industries and special industries.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is a leading higher vocational education group with a focus on higher
vocational education for 22 years which first put forward and propelled the
school operation model of Application-oriented Universities. As at 31 August
2021, the Group’s school networks covered various regions of China, the total
number of enrolled students increased to approximately 144,000 at present.
As a leader of high-quality employment, the schools of the Group have been
awarded the “Top 50 National Employment ( & Bt 2 T 4E5058) " by the
Ministry of Education, with an average employment rate of approximately 98%,
and the employment rate of each school receiving top ranking from all provinces
and regions.

KEY POINTS OF HIGH-QUALITY DEVELOPMENT

Focusing on higher vocational education, the Group has realized high-quality
development in terms of high-quality connotation, high-quality teaching, high-
quality employment, high-quality student-teacher experience and high-quality
integration.

(I) HIGH-QUALITY CONNOTATION

Focusing on connotation development, the source and structure of
students of the Group has been further optimized. The proportion of
undergraduate students and students enrolled through junior college to
bachelor degree transfer programmes has been further expanded. The
brand influence of the Group’s schools has continued to increase, and the
admission scores of key majors are higher than the provincial minimum
admission scores, of which, the minimum admission scores of the clinical
medicine major of Central China School in 2021 are 41 points higher
than the provincial minimum admission scores. Benchmarking against the
sunrise industries, the Group has built five advantageous major groups,
including information technology, high-end equipment manufacturing, big
health, digital finance and market service, education and culture, etc. In
2021, the number of relevant majors accounted for more than 70% of
total major groups of our schools and the number of students enrolled
exceeded 80% in the aspect of the advantageous major groups of our
schools.
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(1)

(1)

HIGH-QUALITY TEACHING

Closely focusing on the needs of the country and the industry, the Group
has deployed in the sunrise industries by building five advantageous
major groups, implementing the “Customized Training Program for
Famous Enterprises ( B EFIZ&EFTE]) ", opening more than 100
employment classes for famous enterprises, and building advantageous
majors with top universities and leading famous enterprises. In July
2021, the Group has cooperated with the Snow Laboratory of Harvard
Graduate School of Education to jointly develop the pre-school education
major of our schools. In March 2021, the Group signed a comprehensive
cooperation agreement with Huawei, taking the construction of Huawei
Cloud School project as the beginning, to jointly construct majors,
teachers, courses, experimental and practical training conditions, etc.,
and to fully develop collaborative education and build an information and
communication technology (ICT) talent ecology. The Group vigorously
promoted the involvement of double qualification teachers in teaching
practice. With a platform of industrial college jointly established by schools
and enterprises, famous enterprises such as Huawei, JD, Geely Auto and
Chinasoft International send out accredited professionals to participate in
teaching and practical guidance activities to deeply develop collaborative
education, with a view to cultivate application-oriented talents who meet
the development needs of industry and job position, with industry growth
potential and career development capabilities.

HIGH-QUALITY EMPLOYMENT

The Group has obvious advantages in high-quality employment. The
Group has established in-depth cooperation with more than 1,600 famous
enterprises. Even during the epidemic, the Group’s average employment
rate climbed to 98% by the end of 2020, exceeding the Group’s average
employment rate for the same period in 2019, and much higher than the
average in the nationwide. The high-quality employment rate doubled as
compared with that for the same period of 2019. The Group was awarded
the National Employment Competitiveness Group in the CCTV.COM
Education Gala 2020, which was the only education group in China to
win the award. Each of Guangxi Schools and Gansu School ranked first in
the respective region and province in terms of employment rate, and the
employment rate of Gansu School exceeded the historical record of Gansu
Province in undergraduate employment rate.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Attaching great importance to the high-quality employment of students,
the Group has continuous remarkable employment achievements. Up to
now, the initial employment rate of 2021 graduates of the Group has
reached 90%. The number of high-quality employment students has
increased by 60% as compared with the same period of last year, and the
number of internships in famous enterprises has doubled that of last year.
Constant breakthroughs have been made in the employment achievements
of each school, in particular, the initial employment rate of Gansu School
ranks first among undergraduate colleges in the province again, breaking
the historical record of the employment rate of Gansu Province for two
consecutive years. The initial employment rate of Guangxi Schools ranks
first among similar schools in the region again in 2021. Yunnan School
was identified as the employability training base for national college
graduates by the Ministry of Education. Recently, Guizhou School was
recognized as one of the “Top 100 National Typical College Graduates
for Employment and Entrepreneurship (2Bl SR B ¥ 4 Fh £ Al %
B A) " py the MOE, the only college in Guizhou Province and the only
private school in China winning this honor, and it also received recognition
from Huai Jinpeng (123 M8 ) , Minister of the MOE, at the 2022 National
Conference on Employment and Entrepreneurship for Graduates of
Ordinary Colleges and Universities (2022 2B E BB REELER
HA¥ T/EEE) jointly held by the MOE and the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security. The graduates of the Group’s schools are
well received by world-class employers and the employment salaries of
2021 graduates have reached a record high, with the highest salary far
exceeding that of similar schools in the province.

HIGH-QUALITY STUDENT-TEACHER EXPERIENCE

The Group has further improved the student-teacher experience through
establishing student-teacher experience centers, and building student-
teacher opinion platforms to analyze the opinions and suggestions
provided by students and teachers and staff in a regular and deep
manner. The smart campus digital platform system was fully established
by the Group, with over 75 million annual functional services counted. The
schools of the Group have organized hundreds of various societies and
associations, and invited famous lecturers to conduct training and give
lectures, which greatly enriches the leisure life of students at school. The
Group has increased investments in transformation and improvement of
the campus. For example, Yunnan School has completed the renovation
of sport field, Luoyang School has built the largest single-story student
canteen in the local area, and Guangxi Schools have renovated 4-person
student apartments, which comprehensively improves the satisfaction
of students and teachers, and promotes the sustainable and healthy
development of the Group.
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HIGH-QUALITY INTEGRATION

The Group has further leveraged its strong advantages of centralized
replication to make greater effort to the building and training of talent
teams through centralized empowerment management, and continued
to improve organizational capabilities. The Group has also vigorously
promoted process reengineering, replicated the standardized processes
of the Group and schools to cover daily business, and worked hard
for comprehensive digital coverage of academic and office work to
improve work efficiency. With the full empowerment of the high-quality
integration of the Group, Zhengzhou School has hit a record high number
of admission quotas, achieved a significant improvement in the campus
environment, and recorded a substantial increase in student-teacher
satisfaction. After the reporting period, the Group completed the further
acquisition of minority interest in Northeast School which will enable the
Group to further leverage the advantages of centralized school operation
to achieve the goal of high-quality development in future.

(V)

BUSINESS UPDATES

Completion in conversion of two independent colleges in response to the
national call to accelerate the conversion of independent colleges

Central China School and Gansu School of the Group were approved by the
Ministry of Education to successfully convert from independent colleges to full
private universities in March 2021. Upon the completion of the conversion,
Central China School has been renamed as “Hubei Enshi College” and Gansu
School has been renamed as “Lanzhou College of Information Science and
Technology” and the above two schools have recruited students under the new
school names and have educated and managed students under the management
system of the new schools.

After the conversion, the above two schools have received policy support in
the areas of “enrollment plans, project application and discipline setting” etc.
The two schools have been more clearly positioned in the education sector.
With high-quality employment of students as the guide, they have vigorously
developed the talent cultivation model with integration of industry and education,
and collaborative education. The Group has also further expanded the autonomy
of school operation, strengthened management empowerment, and continuously
improved the above two schools’ ability to operate schools and operational
efficiency.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Adding Zhengzhou School into the Group to facilitate the national strategy of
regional development

In response to the demand for high-quality local education, the Group won the
bidding for 100% sponsor interest in Zhengzhou School in April 2021, and
obtained all necessary approvals on 28 September whereby Zhengzhou School
was added into the Group’s school network, further enhancing the Group’s
market share in the province with the largest student enrollment and facilitating
the rapid growth of the Group’s school scale of operation. The quality of school
operation and operational efficiency of Zhengzhou School have been rapidly
improved through precise empowerment, and the Group will further facilitate the
national strategy of regional development for the rise of Central China through
high-quality school operation.

Adding Guangxi Schools and Gansu School into the Group to deeply integrate
into national coordinated regional development strategies

The Group has obtained all necessary approvals in April 2021 and Gansu
School was added into the Group’s school network. Since joining the Group in
July 2018, through integrated resources, sharing of strengths and synergized
development, the Group has supported Gansu School to become the key
university supported by and developed in the “13th Five-Year Plan” of Gansu
Province. Gansu School has also been recognized as Advanced Unit of
Employment in Ordinary Colleges and Universities in Gansu Province. Following
the execution of the relevant supplemental agreement to the Structured
Contracts, Gansu School has become an entity controlled by the Group and its
results of operations has been consolidated into those of the Group.

In May 2021, the Group further acquired 10% equity interest in Songming Xinju,
the sole shareholder of the Guangxi School Sponsor. Thereafter, Songming Xinju
has become 100% owned by Daai Shuren. This has enabled the Group to give
full play to its capability in centralized school operation where the ability to
operate schools of Guangxi Schools has been further enhanced.

With Gansu School, Guangxi Schools and Northeast School (after the reporting
period) added into the Group’s school network, the Group will continue to
grasp opportunities arising from the national regional development in the future
with a focus on the national strategies of regional development, such as the
development of Western China, the rise of Central China and the revitalization
of Northeast China, and deeply integrate into coordinated regional development
strategies in China through high-quality school operation, while deploying in key
regions and giving full play to its synergistic advantages of centralized school
operation to achieve the expected goal of high-quality development.
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Issuance of new syndicated loan to facilitate the high-quality development of
the Group

In June 2021, the Group entered into a facilities agreement relating to up to
US$100,000,000 senior secured term loan and revolving loan facilities (with
a greenshoe option of up to US$25,000,000) with various banks and Credit
Suisse AG, Singapore Branch. The term of the facilities is 3 years from its first
utilisation. The purposes of the facilities are, among others, for the repayment
and/or discharge of the outstanding amount under an existing term loan facility
obtained by the Group as set out in its announcement of 22 February 2018, and
the general corporate purposes of the Group.

STEADY GROWTH OF THE TOTAL NUMBER OF
ENROLLED STUDENTS DRIVEN BY THE STRONG
DEMAND FOR HIGH-QUALITY EDUCATION FROM
STUDENTS

For the academic year of 2021/2022, the total number of enrolled students at
the Group’s schools increased to 143,764, representing an increase of 14.4%
as compared to 125,692 enrolled students announced in November 2020, which
has contributed to further improvement of the Group’s sustainable and high-
quality development capabilities.

Having been encouraged by a series of national vocational education policies
including the “Opinions on Promoting the High-quality Development of Modern
Vocational Education” ((BEREBRRABEHNESEELRRENEZER))
recently, the Group will continue to set sustainable and high-quality development
as its base, create and provide high-quality vocational education opportunities
for more students, and cultivate more technical and skilled professionals to
serve social and economic development.
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AWARDS AND HONORS RECEIVED FOR REMARKABLE
ACHIEVEMENTS IN HIGH-QUALITY DEVELOPMENT

During the twelve months ended 31 August 2021, the Group and its schools won
a number of awards and honors, where its schools actively participated in 57
national university student competitions recognized by the Ministry of Education,
and won 117 national awards and 895 provincial awards. The above awards
were recognition of the Group’s quality of education, its educating capabilities
and its achievements of centralized operation. The following table shows some of

REE:

the representative awards and honors received by the Group and its schools:

00FERBRAERLE FEXE2EMERFIHIEEIRE
The Group was honored as “National Employment Competitiveness Group” in CCTV.COM Education Gala

B (AM730) ~PRASIAZEM N BEERHE [ L AT ALE2020 ] MEWELE EH AT KE
Outstanding Listed Company Award presented by Outstanding Listed Company Award 2020 held by

BEEIRE-BIRENFI7TEEEAHOCEKBIRAR (EEE=FEHT)
The 17th Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award (for the third consecutive year) presented by Hong

[20200F N EERHAAS | HENFEREHRARE R
“Vocational Education Leap of the Year” was awarded at the “4th Blue Whale Education Conference
HEBMCNERIENSCEREF R  FEESBRFERERA | BENRERE LT

Best Education Company Award in the “5th Annual Golden Hong Kong Stock Awards Ceremony” co-
organized by Zhitong Finance and Tonghuashun Finance

BR REREE
Schools Awards and Honors
£8
Group

2020
£8
Group

“AM730" and PR Asia
£8
Group

Kong Economic Digest
£8
Group

2020”
£8

i'%
Group
ZEER

Yunnan School

EMER
Guizhou School

E+—RE2EARELEEFERIAFN AERAXIIEE BER-_E, —ER 18

TER-B ZER-E RFEARR_E REAMERZ=E

Two Grand Prizes, one First Prize, one Second Prize, one Third Prize, two Best Creative Awards and three
Best Entrepreneurship Awards at the 11th “Innovation, Creativity and Entrepreneurship” Challenge for
National University Students in E-Commerce

FEOEBER] 2EBERRSBEAVERERNIAE-SR—15 2SR "7
One First Prize and two Third Prizes at the 4th “Keyun Cup” National Vocational Colleges and Universities
Finance and Accounting Vocational Ability Competition
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21
Schools

RIEBR

Northeast School

EHER

Central China School

B ER
Luoyang School

BEREER
Guangxi Schools

HRER

Gansu School

LM B AR
Zhengzhou School

RIEREE
Awards and Honors

FEZEIRBF I BBREBIONEAEAREBEEL2E SR -—EH(RL=82ERRE
—BIR=ZER -

One First Prize (the first place in three northeastern provinces) and one Second Prize at the Second
“Inspur Cup” Business Big Data Analysis and Application Competition

ETZEIRENR I PERBERXFERERESR REIEARE BRYEAIELH
=

Gold Prize and many other awards at the 12th “Challenge Cup” China University Students’
Entrepreneurship Project Competition with the number of awards reaching a record high

EFNEZESREFEMB A ARAE—SR=-1T —SRNE, S/ B EFR-E
Three First Prizes, four Second Prizes, six Third Prizes and two outstanding awards at the 9th National
University Digital Art Design Competition

FEFEAESEN ] ELELEMERERERE SR8 —£R8—1§
One First Prize and one Second Prize at the Fifth National Ceramics Vocational Skills Competition of
China Skills Competition of “Gaoling Cup”

(B | E+tHEE2EABERERERMEERENERANAE-SR-E =5
®+18|

Two Second Prizes and ten Third Prizes at the 14th “Higher Education Cup” National College Students
Advanced Drawing Technology and Product Information Modeling Innovation Competition

ET - EEBN2EHRGNEERNEEATARE—SR—H BEFR -1
One First Prize and two Outstanding Awards at the 11th Langiao Cup National Software and Information
Technology Experts Competition
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

()

CONTINUOUS PROMULGATION OF FAVOURABLE
POLICIES AND PROMISING FUTURE OF
VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

The PRC introduced a number of policies to support and encourage
the development of vocational education. In April 2021, Xi Jinping,
General Secretary of the Central Committee of the Chinese Communist
Party, President of the People’s Republic of China, and Chairman of the
Central Military Commission, gave an important instruction on vocational
education, saying that vocational education has a promising future and
huge development potential in the new journey of building a modern
socialist country. In May 2021, the Regulations for the Implementation of
the Law on the Promotion of Private Education of the People’s Republic
of China ((RFEARAMNBERPHBEREZEZERMEH) ) was
officially implemented, clearly encouraging enterprises to operate or
participate in the operation of private schools implementing vocational
education in accordance with the law through wholly-owned subsidiaries,
equity joint ventures or cooperative joint ventures. In October 2021, the
Opinions on Promoting the High-quality Development of Modern Vocational
Education ((EREBRABMERESEEHRNER) )
was released, clearly supporting and encouraging listed companies and
industry leaders to develop vocational education, incentivising application-
oriented colleges and universities to develop vocational education at the
undergraduate level, and quantifying the scale of vocational education at
the undergraduate level and a vision of substantial completion of building
a skill-based society by 2035. The Group will continue to benefit from the
favorable policies of vocational education.

INSISTING ON THE STRATEGY OF HIGH-
QUALITY DEVELOPMENT OF HIGHER VOCATIONAL
EDUCATION

The Group adheres to the high-quality development strategy, gives priority
to the connotation development, and takes the high-quality employment
of students as guidelines to continuously optimize the major structure and
talent training model. The Group also constantly increases the investment
in teaching, learning and campus environment, and builds a higher-level
teaching team to improve the student experience in an all-round way,
thereby gaining the recognition of students, parents, enterprises and the
government with connotative high-quality development, cultivating more
high-quality technical talents for the society.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

HZE2021F8ANN B L FEREZHBWE K ESE  The financial results for the year ended 31 August 2021 and the Pro Forma

mE Period are as follows:
BETIAHILELEE
Year ended
HZE
20214 20205 20205%8H31H
8H31H 8H31H IEN@EA
Eight months
ended
31 August 31 August 31 August
2021 2020 2020
ARBBERT ARBBERT ARBBEER
RMB million RMB million RMB million
(KER) (BE) (BEX)
(Audited) (Pro forma) (Audited)
FA N Total revenue” 1,815.5 1,457.0 796.3
A Revenue 1,497.5 1,292.4 721.6
FE AR Cost of sales 830.3 675.7 433.0
EF Gross profit 667.2 616.7 288.6
Htt W m R IE &R Other income and gains 318.0 164.6 74.7
HERDHAX Selling and distribution expenses 20.2 16.4 10.5
THRAX Administrative expenses 84.7 88.5 42.3
HEX Other expenses 60.3 16.8 10.5
il & A AR Finance costs 142.1 113.3 76.4
RR B A% R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 677.9 546.3 223.6
EFHEX Income tax expense 86.1 64.3 26.5
=R E Net profit 591.8 482.0 197.1
5 FFE Net profit attributable to owners of the parent 567.8 432.7 174.9
A HIHA =W A +H A 32 R IB &= A Total revenue = revenue + other income and gains

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



Btat - 20207 H29R A AR AMEHRFELEEA R

AMHEXARSANAE USAEENPRFERLE
BRTPELENEREBF (BFREBFNABR)RE
_;Etﬂ"

[ I - & AT A9 S 5T HA R 2020898 1 B 202148 A 31
BE+-—EAE -HRGEEEREMEZEAKER
A BT 7 B9 A8 FE b B & 28 0% Z2020F 1 A1 8 £2020F 88
STALENEAEE A2 HABREAI Rz S5
fELL & o

BRHEEEZENLEBER AEEREREH E202085
SANBLEE (EEHHNEEHHEER BFEH
FREBZ - HEZMHEEREEUT : (1)B2019F9A1
BRERZE019F12A3A L BRANT K EE UK EE
REIFFEMBEBELHNRBE2019F1A1BLERE
BASIAELNEANTBESE (REEX)RQHBEZR
2020F8AAIENEAMEEMKES (KEZX)BH
PN ERER R -

A

BHZEWANF8ANBLEFE FEERABARK
14975 BB T BEZHBEMNMARE1202458 T
EM15.9% TEFER)BERESELHZE
2 HBEERHR RQBENSEERERANRE

RESBRANEIBEERARIER

F & R A

HEWANFSANNBLEFEE AEENEZERXLSE
ARMBNIEEL BEZHEANMARKGSTE
BT me29% T EHKRMN)AEE FTEE LKA
ER O BEENSE - HE BLABRBRERARER
BAQFAEESERANSIEENEEESS
BAAT RBHEBIEFN ROHRERIAR
HREANEEZERELM-

ERNRENR

BHEWANFSANNBLEFE AEEBEFNABARK
667 2EHB T BEZHEANARBG6TEE T
HN8.2% c B E2021F8 A AL EENENRA
44.6% BEZHEMNEFNET I TR TIIEES
o BETRFIEANIEERSARN 2 REBEE
IARAFFIHERA - H IR ER UL A Y3 35 (K
REEREANEER USEEATNEBEE AR
RAERREEREEMR -

EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Note:  On 29 July 2020, the Company announced to change its financial year end date from

31 December to 31 August so as to align the financial year of the Group with the academic
year of the schools operated by the Group (academic year ends in August each year) in the
PRC.

Accordingly, the current accounting period covers a period of twelve months from 1 September
2020 to 31 August 2021. The corresponding comparative amounts shown in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income covered a period of eight months
from 1 January 2020 to 31 August 2020, and therefore are not entirely comparable with those
of the current period.

To provide meaningful comparative information, the Group prepared pro forma financial
information covering the year ended 31 August 2020 (the “Pro Forma Period”). The pro forma
figures have not been audited. The pro forma financial information is comprised of (1) the
financial results for the period from 1 September 2019 to 31 December 2019, which derived
from the 2019 annual financial results after deduction of the financial results (unaudited) for
the eight months from 1 January to 31 August 2019 and (2) the eight-month financial results
derived from the annual financial results (audited) for the eight months ended 31 August 2020.

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue increased by 15.9% from RMB1,292.4 million for the Pro
Forma Period to RMB1,497.5 million for the year ended 31 August 2021, which
was mainly attributable to (1) consolidation of Gansu School as continuing to
leverage the advantages of centralized school operation; and (2) steady growth
of revenue from tuition fees and boarding fees driven by continuous high quality
connotation development.

COST OF SALES

The Group's cost of sales increased by 22.9% from RMB675.7 million for Pro
Forma Period to RMB830.3 million for the year ended 31 August 2021, which
was primarily due to (1) the Group continued to optimize its cost structure
and continued to increase its investment in connotation development such as
teaching, employment, and students’ experience; (2) each school of the Group
devoted great effort to the introduction of subjects and majors for cultivating
high-end talents and improvement of benefits for staff; and (3) the consolidation
of Gansu School at the end of April and the increase in the number of students
of the Group.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The Group’s gross profit increased by 8.2% from RMB616.7 million for the Pro
Forma Period to RMB667.2 million for the year ended 31 August 2021. The
gross profit margin for the year ended 31 August 2021 was 44.6%, representing
a decrease of 3.1 percentage points as compared to the gross profit margin of
47.7% for the Pro Forma Period. The decrease was mainly due to the Group’s
adherence to connotation development strategy and the increased investment
in talents and teaching. As such, the growth of revenue for current stage was
temporarily lower than the growth of cost of sales. The strategy based on high
quality will lay a solid foundation for future organic growth.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The Group’s other income and gains increased by 93.2% from RMB164.6 million
for the Pro Forma Period to RMB318.0 million for the year ended 31 August
2021, which was mainly due to (1) the integration of its training resources
accumulated over the years and the exploration of best practices to actively
provide training services for vocational skills improvement to the society and
students; (2) leveraging the advantages of centralized school operation, the
logistics service model was continuously replicated and the business layout was
improved, contributing to a solid growth in logistics revenue; and (3) the increase
in revenue from the school-enterprise cooperation brought by the continuous
improvement of the Group’s public reputation and the deepened integration of
industry and education.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by 23.2% from
RMB16.4 million for the Pro Forma Period to RMB20.2 million for the year ended
31 August 2021. This increase was primarily attributable to the continuous
strengthening of the Group and school branding and increased investment
in brand promotion. The expenses accounted for approximately 1.1% of the
Group’s total revenue for the Reporting Period, which is generally consistent with
historical levels.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by 4.3% from RMB88.5 million
for the Pro Forma Period to RMB84.7 million for the year ended 31 August 2021.
Such expenses accounted for approximately 4.7% of the Group’s total revenue
for the Reporting Period, a decrease of 1.4% as compared to the proportion of
the administrative expenses over total revenue during the Pro Forma Period. The
decrease in administrative expenses was mainly due to the Group’s continuous
efforts to optimize the cost structure, increase investment in teaching and strictly
control its administrative expenses.

OTHER EXPENSES

The Group’s other expenses increased by 258.9% from RMB16.8 million for the
Pro Forma Period to RMB60.3 million for the year ended 31 August 2021, which
was primarily due to (1) increased expenses resulted from the increase in other
income and gains; and (2) the increase in the Group’s investment to strengthen
vocational education and training and logistics business services.
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FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs increased by 25.4% from RMB113.3 million for the
Pro Forma Period to RMB142.1 million for the year ended 31 August 2021,
which was mainly due to (1) the addition of US$100 million convertible bond
financing; (2) an increase of 24.6% in total interest-bearing debt, resulting in an
increase of 10.0% in finance costs. The financing rate of interest-bearing debt
had significantly decreased.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recognised a profit before tax of
RMB677.9 million for the year ended 31 August 2021 as compared with
RMB546.3 million for the Pro Forma Period, representing an increase of 24.1%.
This is mainly due to (1) substantial organic growth; (2) the development of
diversified income, provision of vocational skills training services for students
and society, and the expansion of commercial logistics income by leveraging
the advantages of its centralized school operation and the increase in income
from the school-enterprise cooperation by deepening the cooperation between
schools and enterprises; and (3) the continuous optimization of cost structure
with the constant increase in the investment in education, and strict control of
administrative expenses and selling and distribution expenses.

NET PROFIT

As a result of the combined effect of revenue, costs and expenses above, the net
profit of the Group was RMB591.8 million for the year ended 31 August 2021,
an increase of 22.8% as compared with RMB482.0 million for the Pro Forma
Period.

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
PARENT

Due to the combined effects of the above revenue, costs and expenses, the
Group’s net profit attributable to owners of the parent increased by 31.2% to
RMB567.8 million for the year ended 31 August 2021 from RMB432.7 million
for the Pro Forma Period.

TOTAL CAPITAL

The total capital of the Group, which equals to the aggregate of cash and
cash equivalents plus time deposits, pledged deposits, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, increased by 18.2% from RMB998.1 million as
of 31 August 2020 to RMB1,180.0 million as of 31 August 2021. The capital
reserves were steadily increased.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING RATIO

The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings primarily
consisted of short-term working capital loans and long-term project loans for
our school buildings and facilities. The interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings as well as lease liabilities amounted to RMB2,362.9 million as of
31 August 2021 (31 August 2020: RMB1,895.8 million), among which U.S.$100
million was denominated in United States dollar, while the remaining was
denominated in Renminbi.

Interest-bearing debt equals to the total amount of interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings and lease liabilities as of 31 August 2021. The Group’s
interest-bearing debt/total assets decreased from 32.4% as of 31 August 2020
to 29.8% as of 31 August 2021. The Group actively manages its liabilities by
controlling the total amount and optimizing the structure.

Net interest-bearing debt equals to the total interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings and lease liabilities net of total capital as of 31 August 2021.
The Group’s net interest-bearing debt to total equity increased from 35.9%
as of 31 August 2020 to 37.1% as of 31 August 2021, which was primarily
attributable to the acquisition of Zhengzhou School at a consideration of
RMB673.5 million. Excluding this factor, the net interest-bearing debt/total equity
as of 31 August 2021 would be 16.0%, representing a significant decrease as
compared with the net interest-bearing debt/total equity as of 31 August 2020.

Gearing ratio equals to ratio of interest-bearing debt divided by total equity as
of 31 August 2021. The Group’s gearing ratio decreased from 75.7% as of
31 August 2020 to 74.0% as of 31 August 2021. The growth rate of interest-
bearing debt was generally in line with that of total equity.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

For the year ended 31 August 2021, the Group’s capital expenditures were
RMB446.8 million, which was primarily used for the construction of our school
buildings, facilities, land acquisition and purchase of equipment and software.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments were primarily used in the payment of
maintenance and construction of school building and purchase of facilities. The
following table sets out a summary of our capital commitments as of the dates

e TREINEBEMRAMNE

indicated:

BE BHZE
2021%8H31H 202058 H31H
IEFE 1E\E A
Eight months
Year ended ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AREBEETR ARBBETR
RMB million RMB million
EHERCESZ IR Contracted but not provided for:
ME-BERZE Property, plant and equipment
—FHUR Within one year 312.2 126.2
—FE Over one year 347.3 64.6
rE Investments
—F R Within one year = 23.0
—FUE Over one year = -
659.5 213.8

BHZE2021F8831H AEBTHEEMEREMER
ST E KRB REIE-

EAREREXNEENREKTE

BMAFEHRAILEEIN  BE2021FE8AIBILEEE
AEBHMEEMEAREREREES-

As of 31 August 2021, the Group had no significant capital commitment
authorized but not contracted for.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets for the year ended 31 August 2021.
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(i)
(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

On 4 February 2021, the Group completed acquisition of 100% interests in
Beijing Lianhe. On 20 April 2021, the Group completed acquisition of 100%
interests in Gansu School. On 25 May 2021, the Group completed further
acquisition of 10% interest in Songming Xinju, the sole shareholder of the
Guangxi School Sponsor. Upon completion of the aforesaid events, each of
Beijing Lianhe, Gansu School and Guangxi Schools entered into a supplemental
agreement to the Structured Contracts with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group,
the current registered shareholders of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the Group’s
change of interest in them. Accordingly, each of Beijing Lianhe, Gansu School
and Guangxi Schools became a 100% consolidated affiliated entity of the
Company. Please refer to the announcements dated 4 February 2021, 20 April
2021 and 25 May 2021, respectively, for details of the aforesaid events.

Save as disclosed, there were no other significant investments held by the
Group, no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures during the period, nor was there any plan authorized by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets during the year ended
31 August 2021.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The functional currency of the Group is RMB and HKD. The majority of the
Group’s revenue and expenditures are denominated in RMB. As at 31 August
2021, certain bank loan and bank balances were denominated in USD and HKD.
The Group currently does not have any foreign currency hedging policies. The
management will continue to pay attention on the Group’s foreign exchange risk
exposure and consider adopting prudent measures as appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The pledged assets of the Group as at 31 August 2021 are as follows:

(i) the Group’s buildings, furniture and fixtures and electronic devices with
an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately RMB10,616,000 as at
31 August 2021 (31 August 2020: RMB182,969,000);

(i) certain of the Group’s investment properties with a net carrying amount of
RMB74,077,000 as at 31 August 2021 (31 August 2020: Nil);

the pledge of shares of the Group’s certain subsidiaries;

(iii)
(iv)  personal guarantees executed by Mr. Li and Ms. Yang Xuging (spouse of
Mr. Li);

(v)  corporate guarantees executed by the Group and subsidiaries of the
Group, which are controlled by Mr. Li;

(vi)  deposits of the Group with an amount of RMB284,115,000 as at

31 August 2021 (31 August 2020: RMB271,796,000); and

(vil)

the charging right of tuition and boarding fees of Yunnan School, Guizhou
School, Guangxi Schools and Luoyang School.
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EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 August 2021, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities,
guarantees or any litigations or claims of material importance, pending or
threatened against any member of the Group.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

As of the date of this annual report, the Group had not entered into any off-
balance sheet transactions.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

COMPLETION IN SUCCESSFUL BIDDING OF THE
ZHENGZHOU SCHOOL

On 13 April 2021, Zhengzhou New Higher Education, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, successfully bid the Zhengzhou School, including
all the rights its school sponsor and investor enjoy, and obtained the Judicial
Auction Successful Internet Bidding Confirmation* ( B & E KRB TH
#E2ZE) on the same day.

On 28 September 2021, Zhengzhou New Higher Education obtained all necessary
approvals and Zhengzhou School was added into the Group’s school network
whereby Zhengzhou New Higher Education became the sole sponsor of the
Zhengzhou School. On the same day, Zhengzhou New Higher Education, Beijing
New Higher Education, the company holding 100% equity interest of Zhengzhou
New Higher Education and a wholly owned subsidiary of Yun Ai Group, the
Zhengzhou School and the newly appointed directors of the Zhengzhou School
designated by Zhengzhou New Higher Education entered into the a supplemental
agreement to the Structured Contracts with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group,
and the registered shareholders of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the Group’s interest
in Zhengzhou School. Upon entering into of such supplemental agreement,
Zhengzhou School shall become an entity controlled by the Company and its
results of operations shall be consolidated into the Group’s results of operations.
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FULL REDEMPTION OF US$100,000,000 1.0%
GUARANTEED CONVERTIBLE BONDS DUE 2021

On 16 September 2020, Goldensep Investment Company Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the issuer, the Company, as
the guarantor, and Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, as the sole lead
manager entered into a convertible bonds subscription agreement (the “CB
Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which, the issuer agreed to issue 1.0%
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2021 in the aggregate principal amount of
U.5.$100,000,000 at an initial conversion price of HK$6.313 per Share (subject
to adjustments) (the “Convertible Bonds”).

The Company has redeemed the outstanding Convertible Bonds in full in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds under
the CB Subscription Agreement at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
outstanding principal amount of US$100,000,000 together with all accrued and
unpaid interests thereon on the maturity date of 28 September 2021 (the “Full
Redemption”). Following the Full Redemption, the Convertible Bonds have been
cancelled in full and the Company is discharged from all of the obligations under
and in respect of the Convertible Bonds.

INTENTION TO CONDUCT ON-MARKET SHARE
REPURCHASE

On 28 October 2021, the Board formally resolved to utilize the Share
Repurchase Mandate to repurchase Shares in the open market from time to
time at a maximum aggregate amount of HK$300 million (the “Proposed Share
Repurchase”). The Company will conduct the Proposed Share Repurchase in
compliance with the memorandum and articles of association of the Company,
the Listing Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and all applicable laws and regulations to
which the Company is subject to.

The Board believes that a share repurchase demonstrates the Company’s
confidence in the high quality development of its own business and would,
ultimately, benefit the Company and create value to the Shareholders. The
Proposed Share Repurchase is in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole. The Board believes that the current financial resources
of the Company would enable it to implement the share repurchase while
maintaining a solid financial position.

COMPLETION IN THE FURTHER ACQUISITION OF
MINORITY INTEREST IN NORTHEAST SCHOOL

On 19 November 2021, Yun Ai Group entered into an equity transfer agreement,
pursuant to which Yun Ai Group agreed to further acquire 26.09% equity interest
of Haxuan Company, the sole sponsor of the Northeast School, from Ningde
Company. Upon completion of the aforesaid event, Haxuan Company becomes
100% owned by Yun Ai Group.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



HRNEFRPRBERR

20205F 1M BHBMI BRHNOWERBREBE 2 EE
BrWWITHRREREXRBERE IRBEERBR
FIEERMEFLEFRNMEBRKEARKTE  FTHRWN
B-RENER QU EERANBERSEH
HEE  ROQEEBSBENAUE HEANUERBKE
RETHRRERSEXF-

2021FE3R  2EAARRRAERM(PEARS
MEBERELEENCERRFTHNBELEREM
20 FEREEEZEME) ([RE]) RETHEEE
EREEEHERR -REPEBINAT [HAR
BREAIRZ HPBERE: ()VERERIWHAE EE
T EHER200FT A LB KFE 5B 2R FMe00E A £
BKFEE  RQESSHBEEL & NIEFH100AT
FEBAR SR BEMG

2021108128 » P e it N EE - B FS B o 1N BB
N (BRESRABERESEERRENER)
(TER]) IRMBHNERREEZEE-ERIESL
MENREIL [BHESZ]IFE EETREXRE
EYBEMPER NESERTEREEBERS
BERE QBLZEREAEE FBHERKBER

ZERN - FEMEBERNEE;, QREZI KB
R EEBLETAR TERBECEERBERS
FESECEMEASHERBERS LERERS
RBRBEE, S RBRNEREBRERENAD
ERHEENRE £BNBX BEHBMEINAE
BHERRRASE SHELERECESHEHREEE
EERMEEATIEAEERERSE EEXEHBK
R BNIRERBFENEERNS HEHBREGH
SEAFIEM+ B+t ERAIEASN B
BRREEXEHERBERE ROBRATREEHE
WERE FLBBERERE TEPRESOHE
HERE REP+BERE I WEREERE
iﬁo

EEENWEDN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FAVOURABLE POLICIES TO FACILITATE THE
DEVELOPMENT OF PRIVATE EDUCATION

In November 2020, the Ministry of Education published an article proposing
that (1) local governments should enjoy greater autonomy in the administration
of private educational services, and that they could set the registration time
and taxes for for-profit and non-profit schools according to the actual situation,
instead of taking the centralized administration mode; (2) legal connected
transactions are permitted; and (3) private education is actively encouraged and
tax concessions and other supports are provided for for-profit private schools.

In March 2021, the National People’s Congress issued the Outline of the 14th
Five-Year Plan for National Economic and Social Development of the People’s
Republic of China and the Vision 2035 (the “Plan”), which clearly states that a
high quality education system should be built. The Plan specifically introduces
the “Education Quality and Expansion Project”, which specifies: (1) in the field of
vocational and technical education, it is to support the construction of more than
200 high-level vocational schools with more than 600 high-level majors; and (2)
in the field of higher education, it focuses on improving the operating conditions
of 100 undergraduate colleges and universities in Central and Western China.

On 12 October 2021, the General Office of the Chinese Communist Party Central
Committee and the General Office of the State Council issued the Opinions on
Promoting the High-Quality Development of Modern Vocational Education <FE&
REFHRABERESEERRENER) ) (the “Opinions”), and issued
a notice requiring serious implementation. The opinions put forward that (1)
Speeding up the establishment of the “vocational education college entrance
examination” system, promote the vertical connection of vocational education
at different levels, and strengthen the penetration and integration of general
education and vocational education at all levels; (2) Adherence to major national
development strategies, to encourage schools setting up more scarce and
market-oriented majors; (3) Improving the diversified school operation pattern,
encourage listed companies and industry leading enterprises to establish
vocational education, encourage all kinds of enterprises to participate in the
establishment of vocational education according to law, and enrich the school
operation forms of vocational schools; (4) Governments at all levels should
coordinate the scale, structure and level of vocational education and human
resources development, and include the integration of production and education
into the economic and social development plan. Local governments should take
the promotion of enterprises’ participation in school-enterprise cooperation
and the cultivation of technical and skilled talents as the important contents of
industrial development plans, industrial incentive policies and rural revitalization
plans, to provide “financial + fiscal + land + credit” incentives to industry-
education integrated enterprises, and implement the relevant tax and fee policies
in accordance with the regulations; and (5) Realizing the innovation of school-
enterprise cooperation mechanism, deepening the reform of education and
teaching, build the brand of vocational education with Chinese characteristics,
and explore the international development mode of “Chinese + vocational skills”.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS OF REGULATORY
FRAMEWORK

()

CLASSIFIED REGISTRATION

According to the Several Opinions of the State Council on Encouraging
Social Power to Set up Education to Promote the Healthy Development of
Private Education (29 December 2016), a classification registration and
management system shall be applicable to private schools, and private
school sponsors can choose to run non-profit or for-profit private schools.
The revised Laws for Promoting Private Education of the PRC (implemented
on 1 September 2017) also promulgated the same provisions.

According to the Implemental Rules on Private School Classified
Registration (30 December 2016), if an existing private school chooses
to register as a non-profit private school, it should modify its article of
association, continue to run the school and complete new registration
procedures in accordance with relevant laws. If it chooses to register as
a for-profit private school, it should conduct financial settlement, clarify
the ownership of school land, school premises, school accumulation, and
pay related taxes and fees, obtain a new permit in running a school, re-
register and continue the operations for education.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to further implement the above requirements, government
and relevant competent departments in the region where the Group
runs schools have successively issued supporting measures, including
(1) Implementation Opinions issued by the People’s Government of
Yunnan Province on Encouraging Social Powers to Set up Education to
Promote the Healthy Development of Private Education (18 December
2017), Notice of the Five Departments including Education Department
of Yunnan Province on Steady and Orderly Promotion of Classified
Registration and Management of Private Schools (12 June 2019); (2)
Implementation Opinions issued by the People’s Government of Guizhou
Province on Supporting and Regulating Social Forces to Set up Education
to Promote the Healthy Development of Private Education (3 August
2018), Measures for the Implementation of Classified Examination and
Approval of Registration and Supervision and Management of Private
Schools in Guizhou Province (Trial) (11 June 2019); (3) Implementation
Opinions issued by Heilongjiang Province on Encouraging Social
Powers to Set up Education to Promote the Healthy Development
of Private Education, Measures for the Implementation of Classified
Registration of Private Schools in Heilongjiang Province, and Measures
for the Supervision and Administration of for-profit Private Schools in
Heilongjiang Province (26 February 2019); (4) Implementation Opinions
of the People’s Government of Gansu Province on Further Promoting the
Healthy Development of Private Education (8 November 2017), Measures
for the Implementation of Classified Registration of Private Schools
in Gansu Province (15 November 2018); (5) Implementation Opinions
issued by the People’s Government of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region on Encouraging Social Powers to Set up Education to Promote
the Healthy Development of Private Education (2 July 2018), Measures
for the Implementation of Classified Registration of Private Schools in
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region (10 October 2018), Measures for
the Implementation of Supervision and Administration of for-profit Private
Schools in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region (16 October 2018); (6)
Implementation Opinions issued by the People’s Government of Hubei
Province on Encouraging Social Powers to Set up Education to Promote
the Healthy Development of Private Education (20 December 2017); and
(7) Implementation Opinions issued by the People’s Government of Henan
Province on Encouraging Social Powers to Set up Education to Promote
the Healthy Development of Private Education (2 February 2018).
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The above local regulations provide a framework procedure for the
classification and registration of existing private schools in relevant
provinces as for-profit private schools or non-profit private schools, but
do not further specify the process of classification and registration, for
example, (1) the specific procedures for a school to be registered as a
for-profit or non-profit school, and (2) the various preferential taxes and
land use policies that can be enjoyed by for-profit and non-profit schools.
As of the date of this annual report, the Company has not commenced
the process of classification and registration for schools under the Group.
There are certain uncertainties in the interpretation and application of
the above requirements in respect of when the private schools under the
Group can complete the classified registration, whether the relevant taxes
and fees will need to be paid in accordance with local supporting rules in
the process of classified registration in the future, and what supporting
policies provided by government regarding tax and land use they will
enjoy.

THE 2021 IMPLEMENTATION RULES

On 14 May 2021, the State Council promulgated the Implementation
Rules for the Law for Promoting Private Education of the PRC (the “2021
Implementation Rules”), which has been implemented since 1 September
2021. The 2021 Implementation Rules stipulate that: (1) private schools
may enjoy the preferential tax policies stipulated by the State, among
which non-profit private schools may enjoy the same preferential tax
policies as public schools; (2) for the construction or expansion of
non-profit private schools, the local people’s governments shall grant
preferential treatments in terms of land use by means of allocation in
accordance with the principle of treating non-profit private schools equally
as public schools. For the land use of private schools that implement
preschool education and education for academic credentials, the
governments may provide lands by means of agreement, bidding, auction
and etc. according to the laws. Lands may also be supplied by long-term
lease, lease and assignment, and combination of sale and rental. Charges
for the assignment or rental of land may be paid in instalments within the
specified time limit as agreed in the contract. The 2021 Implementation
Rules do not involve specific provisions on preferential taxation and land
use policies. Therefore, there are still uncertainties as to what kind of
tax and land use policies and other aspects of government supports the
private schools under the Group will enjoy in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The 2021 Implementation Rules further stipulate that: (1) the State
encourages enterprises to establish or participate in the establishment
of private schools that implement vocational education in various forms,
such as sole proprietorship, joint venture or cooperation according
to law; institutions that implement nationally recognized educational
examinations, vocational qualification examinations and vocational skill
level examinations shall comply with the relevant provisions of the State in
the establishment or participation in the establishment of private schools
related to the examination implemented by them; (2) private schools that
provide compulsory education are not allowed to enter into transactions
with their interested parties, and other private schools shall conduct
transactions with their interested parties in a manner that is open,
justified and fair, shall be reasonably priced, shall establish standardized
decision-making for such transactions and shall not harm the interests
of the State, schools and teachers and students. Private schools shall set
up an information disclosure mechanism for dealing with their interested
parties. The relevant governmental authorities, such as the education
department, the human resources and social security departments
and the financial departments, shall strengthen the supervision of the
agreements entered into between non-profit private schools and their
interested parties, and shall review the connected transactions annually;
(3) if the sponsor is a legal person, its controlling shareholder and the
actual controller must meet the requirements stipulated by laws and
administrative regulations for the establishment of a private school, and
any change of the controlling shareholder or the actual controller, must be
reported to the competent department for record-filing and publicity. Any
social organizations and individuals shall not control compulsory education
private schools or non-profit private schools which implement preschool
education through mergers or structured contracts; and (4) the start-up
capital and registered capital of a private school shall be paid in full when
it is formally established and shall be compatible with the type, level and
scale of the school.

Pursuant to the 2021 Implementation Rules, the Group is not prohibited
from acquiring non-profit private schools providing higher education
services or controlling them through structural contracts. As the Group
has no plans to acquire private schools providing compulsory education
or non-profit private schools providing preschool education, we do not
consider that the 2021 Implementation Rules will have any adverse impact
on the Group’s future acquisitions.

Structured contracts may be considered as transactions with interested
parties of private schools under the Group, and we may incur significant
compliance costs due to the establishment of a disclosure mechanism.
If the private school under the Group chooses to register as a non-
profit private school, the competent government department shall
review its relevant transactions annually. These processes may not be
under our control and may be very complex and cumbersome, and may
divert management attention. During the review process, government
departments may require us to modify or terminate the structured
contract, which may lead to penalties, resulting in a material adverse
impact on the operation of the structured contract.
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(1)

As of the date of this annual report, the Company’s operations have not
been affected by the 2021 Implementation Rules.

FOREIGN INVESTMENT LAW

The Foreign Investment Law of the PRC ( (MEA R KB I E R
%3£) ) (“Foreign Investment Law”) approved by the National People’s
Congress on 15 March 2019 has been implemented since 1 January
2020, and has become the basic law for foreign investment in China.
According to this law, existing foreign-invested enterprises may maintain
their existing organization structure within five years from the effective
date of the Foreign Investment Law.

On 26 December 2019, the State Council issued the Implementation
Regulations of the Foreign Investment Law of the PRC (“Implementation
Regulations”), which also came into effect on 1 January 2020, aiming
to implement the legislative principles and purposes of the Foreign
Investment Law.

The Foreign Investment Law clearly specifies three forms of foreign
investment, but neither the Foreign Investment Law nor the Implementing
Regulations explicitly stipulate contractual agreements as a form of
foreign investment. As confirmed by our PRC legal advisors, as the Foreign
Investment Law and Implementation Regulations do not define contractual
agreements as a form of foreign investment, if future laws, administrative
regulations, and regulations of the State Council do not include contractual
agreements as a form of foreign investment, the Structured Contracts as
a whole and the agreements constituting the Structured Contracts will
not be affected, and will continue to be legally valid, effective and binding
on the parties. However, if future laws, administrative regulations, and
regulations of the State Council stipulate contractual agreements as one
of the ways of foreign investment, the Group may need to take relevant
measures in accordance with the requirements of the laws, regulations
and regulations of the State Council at that time. There will be uncertainty
as to whether we can complete these measures in a timely manner or at
all. Failure to take appropriate measures in a timely manner to address
any of the compliance requirements in the above provisions may have a
significant effect on our current group structure, corporate governance
and business operations.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company’s operations have not
been affected by the Foreign Investment Law.

The Board will continue to monitor any updates regarding the Foreign
Investment Law and seek from our PRC Legal Advisors to ensure that the
Company meets all relevant laws and regulations in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(IV) INDEPENDENT COLLEGES CONVERSIONS

In May 2020, the Ministry of Education issued the “Implementation Plan
on Accelerating Promotion of the Independent Colleges Conversions”
(KERMREEBYIEBREXZITENERSER) ), which
requires making the independent colleges conversions as the top priority
of the establishment of universities, and actively creating conditions
to promote the completion of conversions. By the end of 2020, all
independent colleges shall formulate the conversions work plans, and
at the same time promote certain independent colleges to complete
their conversions. For the independent colleges conversions, it shall
perform financial settlement procedures, amend and perfect the articles
of association in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Private
Education Promotion Law, and then submit an application to the provincial
education administrative department upon the approval of the independent
college’s board of directors (board of management), and after review by
experts in the province, publicity and other procedures, it will be reported
by the provincial people’s government to the Ministry of Education for
approval.

As of the date of this annual report, the conversion of Gansu School and
Central China School of the Group has been approved by the Ministry
of Education, and the Group had completed the change of registration
procedures of Gansu School and Central China School with the relevant
authorities in each of the provinces.

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to make the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.083
per Share for the year ended 31 August 2021. The final dividend will be
declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate
adopted for conversion was the average middle exchange rate published by
the People’s Bank of China of the five business days prior to the declaration
of the final dividend (i.e. 23 November 2021 to 29 November 2021) (RMB1.0
to HK$1.21947). Accordingly, the amount of the final dividend payable in Hong
Kong dollars will be HK$0.101216 per Share. The final dividend will be paid
on 17 March 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 March 2022.

B=E BHE

202158 A31H 202058 A31H

IEEE IENEA

Eight months

Year ended ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020

FHERE (AR®T) Interim dividend (RMB) 0.054 0.042
BEEAARE (AR¥T) Proposed final dividend (RMB) 0.083 -
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting
to be held on Friday, 25 February 2022, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 22 February 2022 to Friday, 25 February 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to be qualified for attending and voting at the annual general meeting,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than Monday, 21 February 2022.

The register of members of the Company will be closed by the Group from
Friday, 4 March 2022 to Tuesday, 8 March 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to
be qualified for the final dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Group’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
3 March 2022.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 August 2021, the Group had 8,647 employees (7,430 as of 31 August
2020). As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
various employee social security plans for our employees that are administered
by local governments, including housing, pension, medical insurance, maternity
insurance and unemployment insurance. The Group maintains a good working
relationship with employees, and the Group did not experience any material labor
disputes during the year ended 31 August 2021,

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan (Z=Z&F) , aged 47, the founder of the Group, master degree
in business administration (MBA), senior economist. He was appointed as a
Director of the Company on 8 July 2016. He is the chairman of the Board. Mr. Li
has more than 20 years of experience in education and is responsible for the
overall management and strategic development of the Group.

The following table shows the key working experience of Mr. Li:

H R AT B2
Period Company Position
19994 £ 20045 3 H =
1999 to 2004 Training Station Director
2005 £S5 EEE i
2005 to present Yun Ai Group Chairman

ERER0FIEATERBIBEHEE TR =
B WR2018F2AERPEARKMNEAET=ZE
2EAARRRASERR -BHEAERARMAE (£
RI)BMEREER HTEAAEREKESAER
TERIZEHEAER URTEBERNHE
BEEKEE-

ZREER2009F1I0A MBS REEMEK - Fh4E
R0 FAETEEHAEZERIGEEE L

fi o

80 %A 418 200448 H0 A K EE > 3 R
201658810 BEFARAANEBRTERH
FES-MELHAERCFNEEERLBESE
FELBABRANERE.

Mr. Li became the first vice president of the China Private Education Association*
in March 2010, and a member of the Thirteenth National People’s Congress of
People’s Republic of China in February 2018. He is currently the vice chairman
of the Association of Universities (Colleges) of Applied Science, the vice chairman
of the China Education Development Strategy Association, the vice chairman
of the Chinese Association for Non-Government Education and the managing
director of China Vocational Education Society.

Mr. Li obtained the qualification as senior economist in October 2009. Mr. Li was
awarded a master degree in business administration from Nankai University ( @
B KE) | the PRC, in June 2010.

Mr. Zhao Shuai (#88P) , aged 41, joined the Group in April 2004, and was
appointed as the chief executive officer and an executive Director of the
Company on 19 August 2016. Mr. Zhao has more than 16 years of experience
in education and is responsible for setting annual operational targets and
day-to-day management.
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TRIIMEBEENTEZETHELSR:

The following table shows the key working experience of Mr. Zhao:

B AT B AEREMR
Period Company Position Roles and responsibilities
200454 B Z2008F8 A ERHER BEEMT BERE

April 2004 to August 2008

20085F9H 2014534

September 2008 to March 2014

201454 A £20155%4A

April 2014 to April 2015

201555 £20165%3A4

May 2015 to March 2016

Yunnan School

ZHER

Yunnan School

EEKE

Y

Yun Ai Group

BEMER

Guizhou School

Student recruitment director

L=

Associate dean

1T AR AR AR 1R

General manager of
administration department

HITR &

Executive dean

In charge of student
recruitment

BERE -THNEHS

%

In charge of student
recruitment, administrative
and logistics matters

EERB RHNERS
it}

In charge of procurement,
logistics and infrastructures

EEEEMEMKER.
THERHEMT IBZ%?T%
In charge of management and
strategic development,
staff recruitment and other
administrative matters

20163 &S EBKEH SEEES EEEENEKEERE

March 2016 to present Yun Ai Group Senior president n charge of management and
strategic development

HAEER0IBF1I2EMESREEMED - M Mr. Zhao obtained the qualification as senior economist in December 2013. He

04F7RERTEEHEI KEB¥M ITEEE L was awarded a bachelor degree in Mechanical Engineering Automation from

BBy RA017FAEESEMAREERME TR Kunming University of Science and Technology ( EBBIE T A ) | the PRC, in

[ER=—E A July 2004, and in June 2017 awarded a master degree in software engineering
at Jilin University (MR K E) |
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Ms. Shen Chunmei, aged 38, joined the Group as vice president in early 2020
and was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 27 August
2020. She has over 10 years of professional experience in investor relations
management, initial public offering, fundraising, merger and acquisition, strategic
consulting and international financial media of companies listed in Hong Kong
and the United States, as well as internationally renowned strategic consulting
firm.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Shen was the director of corporate finance
and investor relations of TCL Electronics Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1070), taking up the overall
responsibility of its capital market related matters. From 2016 to 2018,
Ms. Shen was the head of strategic communications of Grab Holdings Inc., a
multinational technology company offering ride-hailing transport services and
payment solutions based in Singapore, during which she participated in and
assisted with its series G financing of USD 2.5 billion which is the largest single
financing transaction in the history of Southeast Asia at that time. From 2015
to 2016, Ms. Shen was the investor relations director of Xinyuan Real Estate
Co., Ltd., a top 100 real estate company in China and listed on the New York
Stock Exchange (stock code: XIN). From 2012 to 2015, Ms. Shen was a director
at FTI Consulting, one of the largest financial consulting firms in the world and
headquartered in the United States, leading projects relating to initial public
offering and investor relations consulting of Chinese companies seeking a listing
in Hong Kong and the United States. In 2014, she led the team to win the Sabre
Awards (Global Campaign of the Year). From 2009 to 2012, Ms. Shen was the
investor relations manager at Feihe International, Inc. (now known as China
Feihe Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
6186)).

Ms. Shen received her bachelor’s degree from University of Leeds in the

United Kingdom in 2005. She also received her master’s degree in business
administration from University of Aberdeen in the United Kingdom in 2006.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (BB {E15) , aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 20 March 2017.
Mr. Kwong has more than 10 years of experience in corporate finance and
equity capital markets in Asia. Mr. Kwong is an executive Director of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited (stock code: 1636), in charge of its corporate and
strategic development. Mr. Kwong was the president of Gushan Environmental
Energy Limited, a company whose American depositary shares were listed on
the New York Stock Exchange from December 2007 to October 2012. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Shunfeng International Clean
Energy Limited (stock code: 1165) since 16 July 2014, C.banner International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028) since 26 August 2011, China Outfitters
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1146) since 8 June 2011 and Koolearn Technology
Holding Limited (stock code: 1797) since 15 March 2019, all of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 13 July 2011, 23 September
2011, 9 December 2011 and 28 March 2019, respectively. Prior to joining
Gushan Environmental Energy Limited in 2006, he was the managing director
of investment banking and he held the position as the head of Hong Kong and
China equity capital markets at CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited from March
2004 to July 2006. Mr. Kwong was a director from 2002 to 2003, and the
general manager of the corporate finance department from 1997 to 2003 for
Cazenove Asia Limited. After graduating from University of Cambridge, England
with a bachelor’s degree in Arts in 1987, he qualified as a chartered accountant
in the United Kingdom in 1990. Mr. Kwong is currently an associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Hu Jianbo (## #% ) , aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 22 December 2017. Mr. Hu has
over 20 years of experience in the education industry. He received his bachelor
degree in engineering from Northwest Institute of Architecture and Engineering*
(FAEBETEEPT), now known as Chang’an University* (R & K
) in July 1984, and his executive master degree in business administration
from China Europe International Business School* ( &t Bl F® T 5 &8k )
in September 2007. From July 1984 to July 1992, Mr. Hu worked at Xi’an
University* (7822 K28 ) | now known as Xi'an University of Art and Science*
(FZXIEEPRR) , as a teacher. From July 1992 to July 1996, Mr. Hu served
as the vice chairman of the board of Xi’an International University* ( 78 % 4b
EEPR) . From June 2014 to June 2017, Mr. Hu served as an independent
director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc.* (£ ¥ (£E)RMHERD
Al) , a listed company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600080).
Since July 1997, Mr. Hu has been the dean and chairman of the board of Xi’an
Eurasia University* (78 Z @32 228Fx ) . He is currently the vice chairman of
Chinese Association for Non-Government Education* (‘hEERHHEH =)
and the vice chairman of 21st Century Education Research Institute* (21142
HEMWRER) .

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



BRAEEE 5255  R2019F8 A6 EEEAB Y
FHTES B AEHABLKEEE LB
RAKBRBXERATNESRRBIIBEERRES
RATESRE -KEN2013FEE2018FETEFSE
BHES R2010EZ2018FEEIEHERSTEHS
SRIEE RR00EETEBRATERIRIMEE
CHEEIR - NRAEBERASKEREEIR -E
FMENIEEESRER ZHABMEZREEER
MERZEHESESER -

ETHEBL 2B BEAQABIFHITES
TELIMINFERAREAERIFNEEBLIE M-
WAR00FES L EMRARBELEETEFGLE
MNRRIGEERFEREB I A -BABRME
AEHAEEFEIRBMNBTRESHEGERSY
T URBEBRERAEFOECHARFIEME
THSHMNERREK | FEAERZEE®ZEE-
B2017TEFERAERERERRREE (ER 4
WES-EHITRBET SRRBATEREER
B_+FNER BEZIANEcREBEESE
BERA - B1993F 21998F - A B R &R 1T
(BEB)EERETE - B1998FE F2003F - N EH
BRTRITEESEEEREEINMAIFE 82003
FE0F FEEBEERAHRN (REERAEER
#) (LR)WSPEIE - B2005%F £2006%F B A
ARFemEER(EB)EERTNBRERIMEE-
H2006F £2014F » FABEEEEBD (ER)FE
BRFSMMBZHAEGH A BERN2014FE2016
FETEFERBEZER (LR)TEESRENR
HESBA-MB16FEZ2018FEARRASES
B (= -RXO)PEBEHEMB - B2017F £2018
£ A Metropolitan Bank & #BR1T (FE) BALES I
B2200F8 A B EREESSEBLES K
EIEBERARRSENZEGSER - N2018FE K-
HAEETPERT (AR EERKBREERSMNA
IR o R A20195E 108 £2020F6 A PR B HED
(TEFANEGBA SRMTEZHERERKEF
BEXTEB LA REETE HEAENRBRRERKE
RABAIZA BRIAZATES-

EEREREEE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Tung Hoi (BR%& ), aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-exective Director on 26 August 2019. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Jinan University. He is currently the chairman of the board of
directors of Soar Industries Limited (BB EBRATEER) and the
chairman of the board of directors of BC International Investment Ltd. ( & JI|
B REBRATEER) . He served in the Yunnan Provincial Committee
of CPPCC(EMABIHZE) during 2013 to 2018, served as the Vice
Chairman of the Yunnan Province Youth United Association (Z & & & B
SERIEFE) from 2010 to 2018 as well as the chairman founder of the
Hongkong-Yunnan-Macau-Taiwan Youth Exchange Association (28R & &
FERXFRARHES) in 2010. He is currently the Life Honorary Chairman of The Y.
Elites Association (HBE R EKEBEEE), the Vice President of the
Yunnan Chinese Overseas Friendship Association ( ERENMESRIESR) ,
a CPPCC of the Yunnan Province (EERI & B 1% & Z) and the Supervisor of
the Association of Hong Kong Of Macau Members of CPPCC In Yunnan Province
Ld (ZEEEHBBREZEEHESEER) .

Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter, aged 52, is currently an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Dr. Pang received his master degree in business
administration from University of Western Sydney in 1999. He also obtained
a degree of doctor of philosophy in business administration from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in 2010 as well as a postdoctorate from
University of Oxford in 2015. He is a fellowship member of CPA Australia, and
fellowship member of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia, and a
member of the expert committee of the task group of “Financial Regulation and
Financial Reform and Development Strategy” in the Institute of Finance of the
Development Research Center of the State Council ( El#$B% 3 RiFE O
CRMAMIEANETHSNAERRERK  RELERZEES),
and has been a council member of the Guangdong Council for Investment and
Development (Foshan, Guangdong) (ERERERRMEES (ER B
1)) since 2017. Dr. Pang has over twenty years of experience in banking,
financial and consulting industry and has served in senior management positions
in various renowned financial institutions. From 1993 to 1998, he was the head
of the settlement department of Dresdner Bank (Hong Kong). From 1998 to
2003, he worked in Northeast Asia region of the Standard Chartered Bank. From
2003 to 2005, he served as the senior manager in BearingPoint Management
Consulting (formerly KPMG Management Consulting) (Beijing). He was the head
of operation design and development of Dah Sing Financial Group (Hong Kong)
from 2005 to 2006. From 2006 to 2014, he served as the partner of global
financial market in China in Deloitte Management Consulting (Beijing). He then
served as leading partner of financial business in China for Roland Berger
Strategic Consulting (Beijing) from 2014 to 2016. He was the external senior
advisor to Zhangjiakou Financial Holding Group (Zhangjiakou, Beijing) from 2016
to 2018, and he was an independent director at Metropolitan Bank (China) from
2017 to 2018, and now be re-invited by the bank from August 2020 and to be
chairing their Related Party Transactions Control Committee. During late 2018,
he was also the general manager headed the group risk projects and governance
management department of Citic Bank (International). He was the Partner, Head
of Financial Service Practice in China and Beijing Office Head of YCP Solidiance
Strategy and Management Consultant from October 2019 to June 2020. He is
the founder and currently the director of Liquid Gold Development Strategy Co.,
Lid (ENBEREBERLA) .
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Sun Lu, aged 51, joined the Group as the chief financial officer in April
2019. She has over twenty years of experience in banking, commercial and
financing industry and had served in various senior management positions in a
renowned financial institution.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sun worked in Huaxia Bank, being a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 2003 (stock code: 600015). She
was the general manager at the trade and financing department head office
from May 2018 to March 2019. From December 2014 to May 2018, she was
the deputy general manager of the international business department head
office, and the general manager and chief representative of the Hong Kong
representative office. From May 2009 to December 2014, she was the director
of the internationalization office and deputy general manager of the development
and research department head office. She was also the chief financial officer
and deputy chief executive officer of the credit card centre head office, and a
member of the management committee from June 2006 to May 2009.

Ms. Sun graduated from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics in June
1993, with a Bachelor Degree in International Finance, and obtained a Master
Degree in Money and Banking from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
in June 1998.

Mr. Teng Jingnan, aged 40, joined the Group as the chief investment officer
in August 2018. He has more than 10 years of extensive experience in the
institutions.

Prior to joining the Group, from January 2011 to August 2018, Mr. Teng served
as secretary of the Secretariat of the General Office of the Central Committee of
the China Association for Promoting Democracy. From August 2004 to December
2010, he held his position at the Research Office of the Central Committee of
the China Association for Promoting Democracy.

Mr. Teng graduated from Nanjing Agricultural University in August 2004 with
a bachelor’s degree in international economics and trade. He attended the
Postgraduate Course on the United Front Theory organized by the Central
Institute of Socialism from August 2008 to August 2010. Currently, he is studying
for a master’s degree in agricultural and forestry economics and management at
Nanjing Agricultural University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Liu Fengming (8| /E 88 ) , aged 51, joined the Group in September 2002.
She was was appointed as a vice president of the Company on 19 August 2016

and was appointed as a senior vice president on 4 December 2020.

The following table shows the key working experience of Ms. Liu:

2 A B %
Period Company Position
200299 A £20035F10A vk AR B EEE

September 2002 to October 2003

20035108 £20055F1 8
October 2003 to January 2005

20055F1 B £201143A
January 2005 to March 2011

2011638 £20155F9A
March 2011 to September 2015

2015598 £201657AH
September 2015 to July 2016

2016F7H &S
July 2016 to present

201658 A £20205 124
August 2016 to December 2020

2020F12B &S
December 2020 to present

Training Station

HEERKR
Zhuan Xiu School

EMER
Yunnan School

R
Zhuan Xiu School

tREE
Beijing Lianhe

Yun Ai Group

FEHFSHEBER QA
China New Higher Education Group Limited

FEHSHEBERAA
China New Higher Education Group Limited

Teacher and director of
education research office

HEBERARBERE
Director of education department
and vice principal

BT &
Associate dean

R
Dean

PR
General manager

EEEE-
Vice president

EEEE-
Vice president

SESEEE0
Senior Vice president
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Ms. Liu was awarded a master degree in business administration from Yunnan
University (Z® K E2) | the PRC, in December 2009, and awarded a doctor
degree in in management science and engineering at Kunming University of
Science and Technology ( 2832 T K &) in December 2017. She obtained
the qualification as senior economist from Yunnan Township Enterprise Senior
Professional and Technical Position Evaluation Committee* ( = Fg & #B4E b 3
SREEFRMBETFEZES) in November 2012 and the qualification
as associate professor from Yunnan Higher Education Institution Professor and
Associate Professor Evaluation Committee* ( EF & /= R AN 22 Bl HU3%
FEZEE) in October 2013.

Mr. Xu Xiaogiang ( #&/N38) , aged 42, joined the Group as a senior vice
president in November 2020. He has more than 10 years of experience in
the education industry as well as strong experience in administration and
management in listing companies.

Prior to joining the Group, from April 2019 to November 2020, Mr. Xu served
as a director and vice executive general manager of Dalian My Gym Education
Technology Co., Ltd. (REXZHFBEHERZKRMDERA A, 002621.57) .
From November 2017 to January 2019, he served as a vice general manager of
Dalian Sunlight Machinery Co., Ltd. ( K3E = S # 88 IR 15 & R 2 7, 002621,
SZ ) and served as director and vice executive general manager from January
2019 to April 2019.

From June 2004 to September 2017, he worked in the Department of
Development Planning of the Ministry of Education of the PRC.

Mr. Xu graduated from Zhejiang University in July 2001 with a bachelor’s degree
in Engineering Mechanics, and he obtained a master’s degree in Fluid Mechanics
from Zhejiang University in April 2004. Currently, he is studying for an Executive
Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree in the School of Economics
and Management in Tsinghua University.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Group is Ms. Wong Wai Ling.

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (E£%) , aged 41, was appointed as a joint company
secretary on 19 August 2016. She has over 10 years of experience in providing
company secretarial services in Hong Kong. Ms. Wong is the vice president of
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for
assisting listed companies in professional company secretarial work. Prior to
joining SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, she worked in
a corporate service provider and the company secretarial department of an
international accounting firm. Ms. Wong has been awarded a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Marketing and Public Relations from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master of Corporate Governance degree from The Open
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong is an associate of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom).

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As at the date of this annual report, the Group (i) operated Yunnan School and
Guizhou School; and (i) completed the investments in the following schools,
including: Central China School, Northeast School, Luoyang School, Guangxi
Schools, Gansu School and Zhengzhou School (completed on 28 September
2021). Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended
31 August 2021 is set out in the note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 August 2021 are
set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 August 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 141 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to make the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.083
per Share for the year ended 31 August 2021. The final dividend will be
declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate
adopted for conversion was the average middle exchange rate published by
the People’s Bank of China of the five business days prior to the declaration of
the final dividend (i.e. 23 November 2021 to 29 November 2021) (HK$1.0 to
RMBO0.82003). Accordingly, the amount of the final dividend payable in Hong
Kong dollars will be HK$1.01216 per Share. The final dividend will be paid on
17 March 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 March 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Business Review” of this annual report.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

CONTINUE TO STRENGTHEN OUR MARKET POSITION
AND ENHANCE OUR REPUTATION.

We believe that the reputation of a school is one of the most important criteria
students would normally consider when selecting a university. To increase our
enrollment and expand our business, we intend to continue to enhance our
market position in the higher vocational education industry in the PRC. We
believe that our high graduate employment rates and comprehensive curriculums
with diversified offerings of practical courses distinguish us from our competitors
and make us attractive to potential applicants. We plan to design new courses
and adjust our existing courses to continue to best reflect evolving market trends
and meet the demands of employers. We intend to continue and expand our
market research to better understand employer preferences and student needs.
Specifically, we plan to collaborate with well-established online recruitment
platforms to conduct data analysis in order to further deepen our understanding
of market demand and employment statistics, and with third-party organizations
to analyze nationwide employment data relating to students in those majors
that we offer. We also plan to obtain relevant data from social security agencies
to understand employer hiring needs and from local government education
departments to understand employment rates of university graduates to gain a
comprehensive and objective understanding of the market demand and supply of
university graduates. In addition, we plan to gather human resources plans from
corporations and career plans from our students, and provide career planning
and job placement counselling services to our students in order to find the most
suitable position for them. We plan to further enhance our reputation among
well-known companies and other potential employers, establish long-term
collaborative relationships with them, and create employment opportunities for
our students.

We have conducted in-depth studies on the changing trend of regional industrial
structure adjustment, and plan to further benchmark and deploy in the sunrise
industries to build five advantageous major groups, including information
technology, high-end equipment manufacturing, big health, digital finance and
market service, education and culture, etc, that continuously optimizing the
discipline and professional structure to build the core competitiveness of the
schools.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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CONTINUE TO ATTRACT, INCENTIVIZE AND RETAIN
TALENTED TEACHERS AND SUPPORT THEIR
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT.

The quality of our education services largely depends on our teachers. We
intend to continue to attract, incentivize and retain talented teachers and build a
first-rate faculty team. To this end, we plan to recruit well-recognized technical
experts, experienced business administrators and other highly skilled persons to
teach in the Schools on either a full time or a part time basis. We will continue
to apply stringent standards in our recruitment of teachers.

FURTHER EXPAND OUR EDUCATIONAL SERVICE
OFFERINGS TO CAPTURE GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES.

We plan to continue to expand and diversify our course offerings in response to
industry trends and market demand, including establishing new major offerings
based on market developments.

CONSTRUCT ADDITIONAL WORKPLACE SIMULATION
TRAINING STUDIOS AND FURTHER IMPROVE THE
SCHOOL FACILITIES.

We believe that we can distinguish ourselves from our competitors by our ability
to offer our students opportunities to develop practical skills and knowledge,
which we believe help them to secure employment upon graduation and succeed
in their careers.

INSISTING ON THE STRATEGY OF HIGH-QUALITY
DEVELOPMENT OF HIGHER VOCATIONAL EDUCATION.

The Group adheres to the high-quality development strategy, gives priority to the
connotation development, and takes the high-quality employment of students
as guidelines to continuously optimize the major structure and talent training
model. The Group also constantly increases the investment in teaching, learning
and campus environment, and builds a higher-level teaching team to improve
the student experience in an all-round way, thereby gaining the recognition of
students, parents, enterprises and the government with connotative high-quality
development, cultivating more high-quality technical talents for the society.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties for the Company include the followings:

(1) OUR BUSINESS IS HEAVILY DEPENDENT ON THE
MARKET RECOGNITION OF THE BRAND AND
REPUTATION OF EACH OF THE SCHOOLS.

We are a leading private higher vocational education group in China.
We believe that each of the Schools has gained wide recognition in the
region where it is located and continues to attract students and qualified
teaching staff. We believe that our success is heavily dependent on the
market recognition of the brand and the reputation of each of the Schools.

However, we cannot assure you that our marketing efforts will be
successful or sufficient in further promoting the Schools’ brands or in
helping us to remain competitive. If any of the Schools is unable to further
enhance its reputation and increase market awareness of its programs and
services, or if it is required to incur additional promotional expenses in
order to remain competitive, our business, financial condition and results
of operations may be materially and adversely affected. If the Schools are
unable to maintain or sustain their brand reputation and recognition, they
may also be unable to maintain or increase student enrollment, which may
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and

results of operations.

OUR BUSINESS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
MAINLY DEPEND ON THE LEVEL OF TUITION FEES
AND BOARDING FEES WE ARE ABLE TO CHARGE
AND OUR ABILITY TO MAINTAIN AND RAISE
TUITION AND BOARDING FEES.

One of the most significant factors affecting our profitability is the tuition
fees we charge at the Schools. For the years ended 31 December 2017,
2018, 2019, the eight months ended 31 August 2020 and the year ended
31 August 2021, tuition fees constituted 91.9%, 91.3%, 90.4%, 93.0%
and 89.8% of our revenue, respectively, while boarding fees accounted for
the remainder. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain
or raise the tuition and/or boarding fee levels we charge at the Schools
in the future at the same levels as historically, or at all, or even if we are
able to maintain or raise tuition fees or boarding fees, we cannot assure
you that we will be able to attract prospective students to apply for the
Schools at such increased fee rates at the same levels as historically, or

at all.
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OUR BUSINESS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
DEPEND ON THE NUMBER OF STUDENTS WE
MAY ADMIT, WHICH IN TURN IS SUBJECT TO THE
ADMISSION QUOTAS APPROVED BY RELEVANT
EDUCATION AUTHORITIES AND LIMITED BY THE
CAPACITY OF THE SCHOOL FACILITIES.

Each year the education authorities specify a quota for the number of new
students each of the Schools may admit, which is subject to adjustment
by the education authorities. The number of students we may admit at
each of the Schools is therefore subject to the quota set by the local
education authorities on a year by year basis, as adjusted by the education
authorities. The maximum number of new students each of the Schools
may admit each year is therefore beyond our control. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, to determine the admission quota to be granted
to each school, the local education authorities take into account factors
including the number of students enrolled and number of applications
received by the school, quality of education, social recognition and
reputation of the school and the overall regional economic and educational
conditions and policies. In addition, the number of students we are able to
admit at each of the Schools is also constrained by the education facilities
and number of beds for students of the Schools, which are limited in
space and size.

ADVERSE CHANGES IN THE PRC ECONOMIC,
POLITICAL AND SOCIAL CONDITIONS AS WELL
AS LAWS AND GOVERNMENT POLICIES, MAY
MATERIALLY AND ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR
BUSINESS, FINANCIAL CONDITION, RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND GROWTH PROSPECTS.

The economic, political and social conditions in the PRC differ from
those in more developed countries in many respects, including structure,
government involvement, level of development, growth rate, control of
foreign exchange, capital reinvestment, allocation of resources, rate of
inflation and trade balance position. Before the adoption of its reform and
opening up policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a planned economy.

In recent years, the PRC government has been reforming the PRC
economic system and government structure. For example, the PRC
government has implemented economic reform and measures emphasizing
the utilization of market forces in the development of the PRC economy
in the past four decades. These reforms have resulted in significant
economic growth and social prospects. Economic reform measures,
however, may be adjusted, modified or applied inconsistently from industry
to industry or across different regions of the country.
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We cannot predict whether the resulting changes will have any adverse
effect on our current or future business, financial condition or results
of operations. Despite these economic reforms and measures, the PRC
government continues to play a significant role in regulating industrial
development, allocation of natural and other resources, production, pricing
and management of currency, and there can be no assurance that the
PRC government will continue to pursue a policy of economic reform or
that the direction of reform will continue to be market friendly.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT TO LEGAL FRAMEWORK

For details, please refer to section headed “Recent Developments of
Regulatory Framework” in Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

The business of the Group is not in violation of the applicable PRC Environmental
laws and regulations in any material aspects.

The Group is dedicated to protecting the health and safety of the students. The
Group has on-site medical staff or health care personnel at each of the schools
the Group operates to handle routine medical situations involving students. In
certain serious and emergency medical situations, the Group promptly sends the
students to local hospitals for treatment. With respect to school safety, the Group
engaged a qualified property management company to provide property security
services at the Group’s school premises.

As far as the Board and management of the Company are aware, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the
Reporting Period, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last four financial
years are set out on pages 260 to 261 “Financial Summary” of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 August 2021, the Group’s customers primarily consist
of the Group’s students. For the year ended 31 August 2021, the Group's five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s revenue and the
Group did not have any single customer who accounted for more than 5% of the
Group’s revenue.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 August 2021, the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 41.1% of the Group's total purchases and the Group’s single largest supplier
accounted for 18.4% of the Group’s total purchases.

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship with
its employees, suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term
goals. The Group maintains a good relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers. During the Reporting Period, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 145 to 146 of this annual report and note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 August 2021, the Company’s reserve available for distribution was
RMB131,951,000 (as at 31 August 2020: RMB96,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 August
2021 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Zhao Shuai
Ms. Shen Chunmei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Hu Jianbo

Mr. Chan Tung Hoi

Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Zhao Shuai, Mr. Kwong Wai
Sun Wilson and Mr. Chan Tung Hoi shall retire by rotation, and being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the proposed annual general meeting
(the "AGM”").

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM will be set out in the circular
to the Shareholders.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company are
set out on pages 49 to 56 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent since
their appointment and remain so as of the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS® AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transaction” and otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no Director or
its connected entity (within the meaning of section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance) had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during
the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transaction” in this annual report, none of the Controlling Shareholder or any
of its connected entity (within the meaning of section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance) had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during
the Reporting Period.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries by the Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Reporting Period.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior management and comparable market
practices.

The Directors and senior management may also receive options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme. For further details of the Share Option Scheme,
please refer to page V-33 of the Prospectus “Share Option Scheme”.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the Reporting Period.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company are set
out in note 3 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

PENSION SCHEME

Mainland China—The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension scheme managed
by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The Group
has no obligation for the payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Hong Kong—The Group participates in defined contribution schemes which are
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held, separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of independent trustees. For members of the MPF
Scheme, the Group contributes a fixed percentage of 5% of employees’ basic
payroll to the MPF Scheme, which contributions are matched by the employees.
The maximum monthly amount of contributions is limited to HK$1,500 per
employee.

The Group’s contributions to the Schemes vest fully and immediately with the
employees. Accordingly, there were no forfeited contributions under the Schemes
which may be used by the Group to reduce its existing level of contributions
during the year ended 31 August 2021, and there was no forfeited contribution
available as at 31 August 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 August 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFQ) which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFQ), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

were as follows:

) AREQATNEFE: () LONG POSITION IN THE COMPANY:

T NN Y

B

i By EEHE BoHE Bak

Approximate

percentage of

Capacity/Nature of shareholding in

Name interest Number of Shares the Company

ZHREN SEALIEEEREREEA 752,465,225 47.45%
Mr. Li® Interest in a controlled corporation

and Beneficial Owner 752,465,225 47.45%

HE R @ EREBA 1,087,500 0.07%

Zhao Shuai® Beneficial owner 1,087,500 0.07%

BEE EREBA 224,000 0.01%

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson® Beneficial owner 224,000 0.01%

BA R @ EREBA 210,100 0.01%

Hu Jianbo® Beneficial owner 210,100 0.01%

PR&EO BREABA 169,200 0.01%

Chan Tung Hoi® Beneficial owner 169,200 0.01%

EA 3 EREBA 169,200 0.01%

Pang Tsz Kit Peter® Beneficial owner 169,200 0.01%

BREHD EREBA 350,000 0.02%

Shen Chunmei® Beneficial owner 350,000 0.02%

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED
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Mr. Li is the sole shareholder of Aspire Education Management and he is therefore deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Aspire Education Management under the SFO. Mr. Li holds
61.48% shares in Aspire Education Technology and he is therefore deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Aspire Education Technology under the SFO. Mr. Li is the founder and settlor
of a discretionary trust which holds 79.19% shares in Aspire Education Consulting and he is
therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire Education Consulting under the
SFO. Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in 1,452,500 Shares which may be issued to him upon
exercise of the 709,300, 122,900 and 620,300 share options granted to him on 3 September
2018, 21 October 2019 and 23 July 2020 respectively.

Mr. Zhao Shuai is deemed to be interested in 1,016,500 Shares which may be issued to him
upon exercise of the 680,500, 114,400, 72,700 and 148,900 share options granted to him on
26 October 2018, 1 April 2019, 21 October 2019 and 23 July 2020, respectively.

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson is deemed to be interested in 224,000 Shares which may be issued
to him upon exercise of the 114,400, 57,200,12,100 and 40,300 share options granted to him
on 26 October 2018, 1 April 2019, 21 October 2019 and 23 July 2020, respectively.

Mr. Hu Jianbo is deemed to be interested in 210,100 Shares which may be issued to him
upon exercise of the 114,400, 57,200, 8,700 and 29,800 share options granted to him on
26 October 2018, 1 April 2019, 21 October 2019 and 23 July 2020 respectively.

Mr. Chan Tung Hoi is deemed to be interested in 169,200 Shares which may be issued to him
upon exercise of the 135,600 and 33,600 share options granted to him on 21 October 2019
and 23 July 2020, respectively .

Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter is deemed to be interested in 169,200 Shares which may be issued to
him upon exercise of the 135,600 and 33,600 share options granted to him on 21 October
2019 and 23 July 2020, respectively.

Ms. Shen Chunmei is deemed to be interested in 350,000 Shares which may be issued to her
upon exercise of the 350,000 share options granted to her on 23 July 2020.
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(I REBEZENEE:

(I) LONG POSITION IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION:

EFEH Yun Ai Group
i S NN
o B A B RE B4
%" & BB EEMHE WEE Aokt
Approximate
Amount of percentage of
Capacity/ registered share shareholding
Name Nature of interest capital in the Company
TREN TEAEEER AR 70.8305%
24,720,5237T
Mr. Li Interest in a controlled corporation RMB 70.8305%
24,720,523
MEET - Note 1:

BREREEZ (HERE AZEE BERE
REXAEREEZIENEEZE@NRE A5 Y
55.3041% ; RN EBAEHEREREESEED
(2 (AREYE) [LEAE)REEEEEMEF
MEX BEREEEEI5526%NWRIEEZETFS

BfEE .

PR EXPTIR T E SN FA2021F8A31H  IBMES S
RARBREBITBRAERA QAN EFMBEEE
(EERBZRMERMAEXVE)NRM  HER
REEZT EAIBRAEARBERSZREE
TRBISEXVERSE 7R 5680 BB A M E A 1 B K Bt X i
MEZIAR (BERBEESRBERMABEK
NEFIREAEENRERAR) REZFLR
REESRBERPIE2RETRENELMA
MESIAR IRBEEETHEANSEAQ AR
R ERR AR

ESREROEETNER

BRAFHEMBIAREEN REEHE £ 2
ARAEEAMBARBRET LENRYE SEST
BBWBAARARENAMEXERZROUE
BEUESANZ ESEESRHEETMEBRICHE
UT 22 EREARBARDAREAEMEZE
BRCESNES 2BARSTEEMEEETR -
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Pursuant to the Equity Transfers, (i) each of the Chengxin Investment, Daai Partnership,
Huihuang Investment and Mr. Li transferred their equity interest in Yun Ai Group, totaling
approximately 55.3041%; and (ii) Shanghai Taifu Xiangyi Equity Investment Fund Limited
Partnership (“Shanghai Taifu”) transferred 15.5265% of its equity interest in Yun Ai Group, to

Songming Dexue with reference to the registered capital of Yun Ai Group contributed.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 August 2021, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interest or
short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ) that
was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the

SF0), or required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company

or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 August 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons (other than being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFQ as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:

(h E’g‘zli NEIRGOKREBERKRGFARIE () INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN OUR
mERKRE: SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY:
RAERGIFE Long position in the Company

S NN
% RE #8149
wE LB B REEME BHOHEE Aot
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of Shares the Company
Aspire Education Management EZEEA 518,852,625 32.72%
Aspire Education Management @ Beneficial owner 518,852,625 32.72%
Aspire Education Technology @ EZEBA 176,160,100 11.11%
Aspire Education Technology @ Beneficial owner 176,160,100 11.11%
THEED TEHLIERERERESTA 752,465,225 47.45%
Mr. Li @ Interest in a controlled corporation 752,465,225 47.45%

TX Capital (HK) Limited @
TX Capital (HK) Limited @

EMEEEETEBERATC
Greenwoods Asset Management
Hong Kong Limited @

Invest Partner Group Limited
Invest Partner Group Limited

and Beneficial owner

REKRE 98,524,000 6.21%
Investment manager 98,524,000 6.21%
REKRE 98,099,000 6.19%
Investment manager 98,099,000 6.19%
ZEFEEER 98,099,000 6.19%
Interest in a controlled corporation 98,099,000 6.19%
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(1) Z=5 4 2 Aspire Education Managementfy i — %

R EARBERGRAEEREZFSRBE KA
Aspire Education Managementff7 3 B% £0 B RE 25 o

Z 5 4 4% A Aspire Education Technology® & 5149
61.48% 2 BITRM EHBERRBEERE
2% 35 % HA & % /5] Aspire Education Technology Fir ¥
BRDHIRERR o

EREARERERETANRARVERTFAES
Aspire Education Consultingfy & 5+ #979.19%E, &
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ﬂz‘ﬂ’}'JAsplre Education ConsultingFff 13 A% 19 #Y #E
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ZREBRRBITHEN2018FEIA3HE ~20195F10
B218 22020578238 2 5% F H #9709,300
3+ 122,9001% %620,30017 B8 AR #E & A RE (6]
BT 91,452,500 D R HE B REAS o

(2) TX Capital Value FundeBTX Capital (HK) Limited
100%3Z /% » B Ik » TX Capital (HK) Limited4R 4% 5%
HREBE R IR A BTX Capital Value Fundffr
BERGOTEEER -

(3) Golden China Master Fund %z Greenwoods China Alpha
Master Fund& BEHHSMEEEEEBER QA
(fEAIRE LI > Hinvest Partner Group Limited
100%¥%E B ) 100%3= B& o & Ik > Invest Partner
Group LimtedR SMEEEEEBER AR
BiREEF KB E %G 18 AR Golden China
Master Fund & Greenwoods China Alpha Master Fund
FiEERMhEERER

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN OUR
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY: (CONTINUED)

Long position in the Company (Continued)

()

Note:

(1)

Mr. Li is the sole shareholder of Aspire Education Management and he is therefore
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire Education Management under the
SFO.

Mr. Li holds approximately 61.48% of the total issued shares in Aspire Education
Technology and he is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire
Education Technology under the SFO.

Mr. Li is the founder and settlor of a discretionary trust which holds approximately
79.19% of the total issued shares in Aspire Education Consulting and he is therefore
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Aspire Education Consulting under the
SFO.

Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in 1,452,500 Shares which may be issued to him
upon exercise of the 709,300, 122,900 and 620,300 share options granted to him on
3 September 2018, 21 October 2019 and 23 July 2020 respectively.

TX Capital Value Fund is 100% controlled by TX Capital (HK) Limited, and therefore TX
Capital (HK) Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by TX Capital Value
Fund under the SFO.

Each of Golden China Master Fund and Greenwoods China Alpha Master Fund is 100%
controlled by Greenwoods Asset Management Hong Kong Limited as the investment
manager which is in turn 100% owned by Invest Partner Group Limited. Therefore
each of Invest Partner Group Limited and Greenwoods Asset Management Hong Kong
Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Golden China Master Fund
and Greenwoods China Alpha Master Fund under the SFO.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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(1) LONG POSITION IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS:

REZEZEBLHIFE Long position in Yun Ai Group
FREE
o B A SERRE
wE BB BB EEMHE WEE BABED
Approximate
Amount of percentage of
registered shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest share capital in Yun Ai Group
SHEE BEREAA AR 70.8305%
24,720,5237T
Songming Dexue Beneficial owner RMB24.720523 70.8305%
million
B ERBEEA AR 20.0568%
7,000,000t
Pai Dui Pai Beneficial owner RMB7 million 20.0568%
Hrat - Note:
©) REREEE ((BERE AEEB - BERE ©) Pursuant to the Equity Transfers, () each of the Chengxin Investment, Daai Partnership,

REXAESEEZENESEENRE B5H
55.3041% ; R\ L BAERBESEERHTME
Ao BHNREEEEIS52605%MREEZTEHE

Huihuang Investment and Mr. Li transferred their equity interest in Yun Ai Group,
totaling approximately 55.3041%; and (ii) Shanghai Taifu transferred 15.5265% of its
equity interest in Yun Ai Group, to Songming Dexue with reference to the registered

o capital of Yun Ai Group contributed.
RIGE R a3 B Long position in Haxuan Company
PR B
o B A ANERAE
wE BB BB EEME WEE BABE DL
Approximate
Amount of percentage of
registered shareholding in
Name Capacity/Nature of interest share capital Haxuan Company
BEENF BEREAA ARH 26.09%
31,308,000t
Ningde Company Beneficial owner RMB31.308 26.09%
million

BESFrIRES I R2021F8831H  ES A T X
FEEMAL (U HESEHAQABSITHAR)
REAIAATAEERDTFEERERSIRBE
RGIEXVERE 2R FIDHBFIHENERS AR
HIRIEESH RS K H F336F BB RRZIEIE
HELMANEREAR -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 August 2021, the Directors were not aware of
any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered

in the register referred to therein.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20 March 2017
(“Adoption Date”) for the purpose of giving the eligible persons an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company and help motivate them to optimize
their future contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for their past
contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships
with such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group, and
additionally in the case of executives (as defined below), to enable the Group to
attract and retain individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward them
for their past contributions.

Eligible persons include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or other
employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in
any member of the Group (“Executive”), any proposed employee, any full-time or
part-time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or
part-time for any member of the Group (“Employee”); (b) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any member of
the Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (d)
a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (e) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group; (g) an associate of
any of the persons referred to in paragraphs (a) to (f) above; and (h) any person
involved in the business affairs of the Company whom our Board determines to
be appropriate to participate in the Share Option Scheme (the person referred
above are the “Eligible Persons”).

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the Listing Date, which is 143,110,000 Shares excluding Shares which may
fall to be issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment option granted by the
Company, representing approximately 9.02% of the issued shares as at the date
of this annual report.

No option may be granted to any one person such that the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted to that person in any 12-month period exceeds 1% of the Company’s
issued share capital from time to time. Where any further grant of options to
such an Eligible Person would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted to such eligible person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant representing in aggregate
over 1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant shall be separately approved
by the Shareholders in general meeting with such eligible person and his close
associates (or his associates if such eligible person is a connected person)
abstaining from voting.
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The Board shall be entitled at any time within 10 years from the Adoption Date
to offer the grant of an option to any eligible person as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe at the subscription price for such number
of Shares as the Board may (subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme)
determine (provided the same shall be a board lot for dealing in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof).

Subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may determine (including
such terms and conditions in relation to their vesting, exercise or otherwise),
there is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised and no performance target which need to be achieved by the grantee
before the Option can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible person concerned for a period of 28 days from the offer date provided
that no such grant of an option may be accepted after the expiry of the effective
period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall be deemed to have been
granted and accepted by the eligible person and to have taken effect when the
duplicate offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance in favor of the Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company on
or before the date upon which an offer of an option must be accepted by the
relevant eligible person, being a date no later than 28 days after the offer date.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be such price
as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of
the relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of the
grant of the option) but the subscription price shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of: (a) the nominal value of a Share; (b) the closing price of a
Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
and (c) the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days (as defined in the Listing Rules)
immediately preceding the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date on which it becomes unconditional, after which no further options
will be granted or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force and effect in all other respects. All options granted prior to such
expiry and not then exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject
to and in accordance with the Share Option Scheme. The remaining life of the
share option scheme, which will expire on 19 March 2027, is approximately five
years and four months from the date of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had 14,058,040 outstanding share
options (granted but not yet exercised), representing 0.89% of the issued shares.

The fair value of all the share options granted by the Company during the year
ended 31 August 2021 was RMBO, comprising of RMBO and RMBO, being the
value of the share options granted to the Directors and employees (excluding
directors and chief executives) respectively.
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BZE2021F8A31A L FE - BIEB R E/EHE  Details of the movement of share options granted under the Share Option

HERESEBFBOT Scheme for the year ended 31 August 2021 are as follows:
SERM #2020% 021
BROKE BHAKTE 9A1A THH 8A31R
SRALER R A (Br) (Bx) MATE  KEEEE AHEETE  HH/AX HRITE
Closing price
immediately ~ Outstanding at Granted Exercised
Exercise price  before the date 1 September during the during the ~ Canceled/Lapsed ~ Outstanding at
Category of participants Date of grant” per share (HKS)  of grant (HKS) 2020 Period Period  during the Period 31 August 2021
Bz
Directors
x4 2018F9A3A 5.9 543 709,300 - - - 709,300
Li Xiaoxuan 3 September 2018
20198108218 3N an 122,900 - - - 122,900

21 October 2019

20205778238 5.33 5.33 620,300 - - - 620,300
23 July 2020
iRl 20185105 26H 4,202 3.950 680,500 - - - 680,500
Zhao Shuai 26 October 2018
201954518 3.64 3,64 114,400 - - - 114,400
1 April 2019
2019810A21R 3.11 3.11 72,700 - - - 72,700

21 October 2019

20205778238 5.33 5.33 148,900 - - - 148,900
23 July 2020
BES 202078238 533 5.33 350,000 - - - 350,000
Shen Chunmei 23 July 2020
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SERH 20208 20215
BROFEE BHAKTE 9B1H rHE 8A31A
SHEATER RE A () (Bx) MATE  KEEEE AHEEGE  HH/&X R AT
Closing price
immediately  Outstanding at Granted Exercised
Exercise price  before the date 1 September during the during the  Canceled/Lapsed  Outstanding at
Category of participants Date of grant” per share (HK§)  of grant (HKS) 2020 Period Period  during the Period 31 August 2021
BER 201810426 4202 3.950 114,400 - - - 114,400
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 26 October 2018
2019F481H 3.64 3.64 57,200 - - - 57,200
1 April 2019
2019F10A21H 3N 3N 12,100 - - - 12,100
21 October 2019
2020F78238 533 533 40,300 - - - 40,300
23 July 2020
HEK 2018108268 4202 3.950 114,400 - - - 114,400
Hu Jian Bo 26 October 2018
2019F481H 3.64 3.64 57,200 - - - 57,200
1 April 2019
2019%10821A 31 3N 8,700 - - - 8,700
21 October 2019
2020%78238 533 533 29,800 - - - 29,800
23 July 2020
YTH 2019E10821H 311 311 135,600 - - - 135,600
Pang Tsz Kit Peter 21 October 2019
2020E7R 238 533 533 33,600 - - - 33,600
23 July 2020
RLE 2019F10A21H 31 3N 135,600 - - - 135,600
Chan Tung Hoi 21 October 2019
2020E7R 238 533 533 33,600 - - - 33,600
23 July 2020
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SERH 20208 20215
BROFEE BHAKTE 9B1H rHE 8A31H
SHEATER RE A () (Bx) MATE  KEEEE AHEEGE  HH/&X R AT
Closing price
immediately  Outstanding at Granted Exercised
Exercise price  before the date 1 September during the during the  Canceled/Lapsed  Outstanding at
Category of participants Date of grant” per share (HK§)  of grant (HKS) 2020 Period Period  during the Period 31 August 2021
TH 2018F10A26H 4.202 3.950 240,250 - - - 240,250
*Ding Yu 26 October 2018
"EXR 201810426 4202 3.950 57,200 - - - 57,200
*“*Wong Man Chung Francis 26 October 2018
k&
Employee
E& 20185107 26A 4.202 3.950 4,125,020 - 391,760 258,200 3,475,060
Employee 26 October 2018
2018F11A28 4320 4320 33,500 - - 13,800 19,700
2 November 2018
2019F481H 3.64 3.64 2,380,750 - 163,110 70,350 2,147,290
1 April 2019
2019F10A21H 3N 3N 2,044,200 - 92,010 179,950 1,772,240
21 October 2019
2020F78238 533 533 3,072,900 - - 318,100 2,754,800
23 July 2020
BgTotal 15,545,320 - 646,880 840,400 14,058,040

* 201954830 BT ES
= JA2019F12H6HERMIES
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Ceased to be a director on 6 December 2019



Hiat:

EETEHRS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

Notes:
FR2018FOAHEBEHENBEREMS ZEBRE () For share options granted on 3 September 2018, all of them are with the same exercise period
HEBHETHES BEHEE R BIER2023F98 commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending on 2 September 2023:
2B 1E:
BFHEEZ
BRETSL
Percentage of
HEAW the share options
Vesting date to be vested
2019 9A3H 50%
3 September 2019
2020998 3H 30%
3 September 2020
20219838 20%
3 September 2021
FR2018F 10268 RENEREMS BEBE For share options granted on 26 October 2018, the exercise period commencing from the
BESHELRBP2ITESR JROT: relevant vesting date and ending date are shown as follows:
719,692,10012 BB IR #E & 7 - 5,726,30017 B8 IR #& Among the 19,692,100 share options, 5,726,300 share options (including 343,200 share
(BEREFTHEA 23432000 ERE - BRTFBEESZ options granted to Zhao Shuai, 114,400 share options granted to Kwong Wai Sun Wilson,
11440010 BB IR FE - IR T HA R0 2 114,400 BB AR 2 - 114,400 share options granted to Hu Jianbo, 480,500 share options granted to Ding Yu* and
BFTHZ4B05000BERERBEFEXRZ 114,400 share options granted to Wong Man Chung Francis**) shall be subject to a vesting
14,4000 BE IR #E) BZS UL T ERBHIFT R IR - period as followings:
BTREZ
BREBTSL
Percentage of
BEAH #RAH Share Options
Vesting Date Ending Date to be vested
201993818 2023%10H25H 50%
1 March 2019 25 October 2023
202093818 2023%10H25H 30%
1 March 2020 25 October 2023
202193818 2023F10H25H 20%

1 March 2021

25 October 2023
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719,692,100 BE IR #EE &+ 1,319,100 BB R & (&
FERFHEEN2137,3000 B IR REF T B*222,900
HBERERE FRE 211440000 BIRE) B U

Among the 19,692,100 share options, 1,319,100 share options (including 137,300 share
options granted to Zhao Shuai and 22,900 share options granted to Ding Yu* and 114,400
share options granted to Chen Shuo**) shall be subject to a vesting period as followings:

78

THRBEMRR:
BFERZ
BREASLL
Percentage of
HEAH #HREH Share Options
Vesting Date Ending Date to be vested
201998 3H 2023108258 50%
3 September 2019 25 October 2023
2020998 3H 20235108258 30%
3 September 2020 25 October 2023
2021998 3H 2023108258 20%

3 September 2021

7419,692,10017 8 IR # & 7 » 600,00010 B8 AR #& (B $E
% FHEAD 2200,0000 EIRE) BZUTRBH AR

25 October 2023

granted to Zhao Shuai) shall be subject to a vesting period as follows:

MR :
BFERZ
BREASLL
Percentage of
HEAH #REH share options
Vesting date Ending date to be vested
201998 3H 2023108258 20%
3 September 2019 25 October 2023
2020998 3H 2023108258 20%
3 September 2020 25 October 2023
2021998 3H 2023108258 20%
3 September 2021 25 October 2023
2022998 3H 20235108258 20%
3 September 2022 25 October 2023
2023%F6H3H 2023F 108258 20%
3 June 2023 25 October 2023

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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419,692,100/ BB IR #E & 1 » 12,000,00010 BB PR & Among the 19,692,100 share options, 12,000,000 share options shall be subject to a vesting
ZLUTHREBHRR (LB BRESEERN) : period as follows (Such part of the share option has lapsed):
BFHEEZ
BRETS L
Percentage of
HEAH #RAH Share Options
Vesting date Ending date to be vested
2019%F9H11H 20235108258 20%

11 September 2019

2020F9H11H
11 September 2020

20214 9A11H
11 September 2021

20229 9H11H
11 September 2022

2023F6H11H
11 June 2023

FIek46, 700D BIREAZUT HBHBAMBRR

25 October 2023

2023F10H25H
25 October 2023

2023108250
25 October 2023

2023%F10H25H
25 October 2023

2023%F10H25H
25 October 2023

20%

20%

20%

20%

The remaining 46,700 share options shall be subject to a vesting period as follows:

KTFHEEZ
BREESL

Percentage of

HEAWH “RAH Share Options
Vesting date Ending date to be vested
20195108268 2023%F10H25H 50%

26 October 2019

20209108268
26 October 2020

20216108268
26 October 2021

25 October 2023

2023%10H25H
25 October 2023

2023%10H25H
25 October 2023

FR2018F1TAHBRENEREMS ZSEBREHVEE Q)

METES BEESEEAEE2023F11A18 1L

30%

20%

For share options granted on 2 November 2018, all of them are with the same exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending on 1 November 2023:

FEAS
Vesting date

BFEEZ
BREBTDLL
Percentage of

the share options

to be vested

201911828
2 November 2019

2020%11 828
2 November 2020

2021611828
2 November 2021

50%

30%

20%
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FR2019F4B1ERENBREMNS ZEBEREHDAES
HETES B EREBABHER2024F38310 1L :

(4) For share options granted on 1 April 2019, all of them are with the same exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending on 31 March 2024:

FEAS
Vesting date

BFEREZ
EBRERSL
Percentage of
the share options
to be vested

20204818 50%
1 April 2020
2021F481H 30%
1 April 2021
2022%F 4818 20%
1 April 2022
FA019F 102V HRENEREMS ZEBREHAE 5 For share options granted on 21 October 2019, all of them are with the same exercise period
BHRTES BEEREBHPEE2024F108208 1k commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending on 20 October 2024:
BTEBZ
BRETSL

HEAS
Vesting date

Percentage of
the share options
to be vested

20205108218 30%
21 October 2020
20215108218 30%
21 October 2021
20225108218 40%
21 October 2022
FR2020FE7ANEREMNBRENS ZEBEREHVES 6) For share options granted on 23 July 2020, all of them are with the same exercise period
MHETEE BERHEE A BRER2025F7H228 1E: commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending on 22 July 2025:
BIREZ
BREFSL

FEAS
Vesting date

Percentage of
the share options
to be vested

20208108218
21 October 2020

20229 7H23H
23 July 2022

202378238
23 July 2023

201954 B30 F BRHEIES

M2019F 12 A6 R EREES

BREXFIMBEN RBREHMEBERE  TE RAREHER
MBI AE -

BREAGREBTEHNERETRRERR HATRK-

30%

30%

40%

* Ceased to be a director on 30 April 2019
= Ceased to be a director on 6 December 2019

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised, lapsed, or cancelled for the Reporting
Period.

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of certain performance targets during
the relevant exercise period.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this annual
report, during the year ended 31 August 2021, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had entered into (i) any agreement that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares; or (ii) any agreement requiring the Company to enter
into any agreement specified in (i).

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES FOR THE PAST 12 MONTHS

(1) ISSUE OF U.S.$100,000,000 CONVERTIBLE BONDS
DUE 2021

On 16 September 2020, Goldensep Investment Company Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the issuer, the Company,
as the guarantor, and Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, as the sole
lead manager entered into a convertible bonds subscription agreement,
pursuant to which, the issuer agreed to issue 1.0% guaranteed convertible
bonds due 2021, the Company agreed to guarantee payment of all sums
payable by the issuer in accordance with the terms and conditions in
relation to such convertible bonds, and the sole lead manager agreed
to subscribe and pay for, or to procure subscribers to subscribe and
pay for, the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
U.5.$100,000,000 at an initial conversion price of HK$6.313 per Share
(subject to adjustments), representing (i) approximately 8.84% premium
over the closing price of the Shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
16 September 2020 (being the last trading day on which the convertible
bonds subscription agreement was signed); and (ii) approximately 14.57%
premium over the five-day average closing price of the Shares over the
five consecutive trading days up to and including 16 September 2020.

Assuming full conversion of the convertible bonds at the initial conversion
price of HK$6.313 per Share, the convertible bonds will be convertible into
approximately 122,764,137 Shares (subject to adjustments), representing
approximately 7.96% of the then issued share capital of the Company
and approximately 7.38% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the issue of all conversion shares but before the completion
of the subscription. The conversion shares will be allotted and issued by
the Company pursuant to the general mandate. The conversion shares,
upon issue, will rank pari passu in all respects with the Shares then in
issue on the relevant registration date.

The net proceeds from the issue of the convertible bonds, after deduction
of commission and expenses, were approximately U.S.$99 million. The
Company intended to use the estimated net proceeds from the issue of
the convertible bonds primarily for, among others, (a) further investments
in existing schools to improve quality and efficiency; (b) potential
acquisitions of new schools; and (c) general corporate purposes.
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SNFBENRA LT BEE2020F9817HH

N

FRERERFEFERENFARARTR
W

The issuance was completed on 30 September 2020. Details of the
issuance of convertible bonds are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 September 2020.

A detailed breakdown and description of the proceeds and the purposes
for which the proceeds are used are as follow:

HEANE
SASALEE ABASHE
EREREFE BASH (R2021E
BENBETEIN FBRERE Amount utilized 8A31H)
Intended percentage AR% (BEBR) during the Unutilized amount
to total amount Net proceeds year ended (as at
Purpose of net proceeds RMB (million) 31 August 2021 31 August 2021)
i MAREERHK (i) investments in existing schools
REEY to improve quality and efficiency 37.0% 239.1 239.1 -
(i) EEWEBHER (i) Potential acquisitions of new schools 58.0% 3748 3748 -
(i) —RLABAE (iiiy general corporate purposes 5.0% 323 323 -
100.0% 646.2 646.2 -

2 BEREROREERHMIZEH (2
i 12

72020598168 » A2 & » Aspire Education
Management (EABERF)RBHOEERITH
BT (EEAEERE)TYEERIAEH
EOBEN BREARERZNE S 44,000,000
% Ha Aspire Education Management# & B B% 17 5
TORANBEUAZEN GBEEAERES
% #95.357 JT © R & — AR IR FE » Aspire Education
ManagementR ZRBE BRI REUAER
5.35%8 7T 2% 744,000,000 R BB R D - B EE
B ()BR 10 5202059 B 16 B 7£ B 32 Pt BT 3R U
MEERS 0B TITENT.76% ; (VKM R
2020 9R 16 (BEZA)AIREEG)EE
BEXSBEBIFAMR IR T ESRA5.51
BT T E92.90% 5 R (iii) B’ 10 72020598 16
H(EBREZB)A&EET0VEEERZ AT
BREAMBFEHNTESRY5.48B T i E
#2.37% °

PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES AND TOP-UP
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES

On 16 September 2020, the Company, Aspire Education Management,
as the seller, and The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch, as the
placing agent entered into a placing and subscription agreement, pursuant
to which, the placing agent agreed to place a total of 44,000,000 placing
shares at a price of HK$5.35 per Share owned by Aspire Education
Management to not less than six independent placees and Aspire
Education Management agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed
to issue, the 44,000,000 subscription shares at HK$5.35 per Share
under the general mandate. The placing price represented (i) a discount
of approximately 7.76% to the closing price of HK$5.80 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 16 September 2020; (i) a discount
of approximately 2.90% to the average closing price of approximately
HK$5.51 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five
(5) consecutive trading days prior to and including 16 September 2020;
and (iii) a discount of approximately 2.37% to the average closing price
of approximately HK$5.48 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
for the last ten (10) consecutive trading days prior to and including
16 September 2020.
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The placing shares represented approximately 2.85% of the then issued
share capital of the Company and approximately 2.78% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the subscription (assuming
that there is no change in the issued share capital of the Company from
on 17 September 2020 to the completion of the subscription (including no
convertible bonds are converted into ordinary shares) save for the issue of
the subscription shares and the placing shares are placed in full).

The net proceeds from the subscription were approximately HK$232.79
million. The Company intended to use the estimated net proceeds of the
subscription primarily for (a) further investments in existing schools to
improve quality and efficiency; (b) potential acquisitions of new schools;
and (c) general corporate purposes.

Such top-up placing was completed and accordingly 44,000,000
subscription shares were allotted and issued by the Company to Aspire

Education Management on 25 September 2020.

Details of the top-up placing are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 September 2020.

A detailed breakdown and description of the proceeds and the purposes

W for which the proceeds are used are as follow:;

HEZANNE
SANBLEE ABASHE
ERERETFE BHSE (20215
BENBEFEIN FERERE Amount utilized 8A31H)
Intended percentage AR (EET) during the  Unutilized amount
to total amount Net proceeds year ended (as at
A& Purpose of net proceeds RMB (million) 31 August 2021 31 August 2021)
() MABEERNRELN (i investments in existing schools to improve quality and efficiency 37.0% 749 749 -
(i) BEWEBNER (i) Potential acquisitions of new schools 58.0% 175 175 -
(i) —R AR A& (i) general corporate purposes 5.0% 10.1 10.1 -
100.0% 202.5 202.5 -
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

COMPLETION IN SUCCESSFUL BIDDING OF THE
ZHENGZHOU SCHOOL

On 13 April 2021, Zhengzhou New Higher Education, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, successfully bid the Zhengzhou School, including
all the rights its school sponsor and investor enjoy, and obtained the Judicial
Auction Successful Internet Bidding Confirmation* ( Bl &I E &SRB Th
#E2E) on the same day.

On 28 September 2021, Zhengzhou New Higher Education obtained all necessary
approvals and Zhengzhou School was added into the Group’s school network. On
the same day, Zhengzhou New Higher Education, Beijing New Higher Education,
the company holding 100% equity interest of Zhengzhou New Higher Education
and a wholly owned subsidiary of Yun Ai Group, the Zhengzhou School and the
newly appointed directors of the Zhengzhou School designated by Zhengzhou
New Higher Education entered into the a supplemental agreement to the
Structured Contracts with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group, and the registered
shareholders of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the Group’s interest in Zhengzhou
School. Upon entering into of such supplemental agreement, Zhengzhou School
shall become an entity controlled by the Company and its results of operations
shall be consolidated into the Group’s results of operations.

FULL REDEMPTION OF US$100,000,000 1.0%
GUARANTEED CONVERTIBLE BONDS DUE 2021

On 16 September 2020, Goldensep Investment Company Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the issuer, the Company, as
the guarantor, and Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, as the sole lead
manager entered into a convertible bonds subscription agreement (the “CB
Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which, the issuer agreed to issue 1.0%
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2021 in the aggregate principal amount of
U.5.$100,000,000 at an initial conversion price of HK$6.313 per Share (subject
to adjustments) (the “Convertible Bonds”).
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The Company has redeemed the outstanding Convertible Bonds in full in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds under
the CB Subscription Agreement at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
outstanding principal amount of US$100,000,000 together with all accrued and
unpaid interests thereon on the maturity date of 28 September 2021 (the “Full
Redemption”). Following the Full Redemption, the Convertible Bonds have been
cancelled in full and the Company is discharged from all of the obligations under
and in respect of the Convertible Bonds.

INTENTION TO CONDUCT ON-MARKET SHARE
REPURCHASE

On 28 October 2021, the Board formally resolved to utilize the Share
Repurchase Mandate to repurchase Shares in the open market from time to
time at a maximum aggregate amount of HK$300 million (the “Proposed Share
Repurchase”). The Company will conduct the Proposed Share Repurchase in
compliance with the memorandum and articles of association of the Company,
the Listing Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and all applicable laws and regulations to
which the Company is subject to.

The Board believes that a share repurchase demonstrates the Company’s
confidence in the high quality development of its own business and would,
ultimately, benefit the Company and create value to the Shareholders. The
Proposed Share Repurchase is in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole. The Board believes that the current financial resources
of the Company would enable it to implement the share repurchase while
maintaining a solid financial position.

COMPLETION IN THE FURTHER ACQUISITION OF
MINORITY INTEREST IN NORTHEAST SCHOOL

On 19 November 2021, Yun Ai Group entered into an equity transfer agreement,
pursuant to which Yun Ai Group agreed to further acquire 26.09% equity interest
of Haxuan Company from Ningde Company. Upon completion of the aforesaid
event, Haxuan Company, the sole school sponsor of the Northeast School,
becomes 100% owned by Yun Ai Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 August 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION
BEIJING LIANHE

Reference is made to the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders” in the Prospectus for the business scope of Beijing Lianhe and
the reason to exclude Beijing Lianhe out of the Group at the time of the Listing.
At the time of the Listing, Beiijing Lianhe, which was engaged in the business
of provision of a free online courses platform to a specific range of students
of colleges/universities was at its preliminary stage of development. In order
to safeguard the interests of the Company in respect of the future business
opportunities in Beijing Lianhe and against potential competition, the Group has
adopted such measures including obtaining an option and a right of first refusal
to acquire Beijing Lianhe.

On 4 February 2021, Daai Management and Songming Gaoxue entered into an
equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Daai Management agreed to sell
100% equity interest in Beijing Lianhe to Songming Gaoxue (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yun Ai Group) for a consideration of RMB2,352,192 which was
agreed after arm’s length negotiation between Daai Management and Songming
Gaoxue with reference to the net assets value of Beijing Lianhe as of 31 January
2021 prepared pursuant to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of the
PRC. The consideration for the disposal of Beijing Lianhe by the Group in May
2016 was also based on the net assets value of Beijing Lianhe at the relevant
time as disclosed in the Prospectus. After completion of such acquisition, Beijing
Lianhe became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Yun Ai Group, and the
issue in relation to potential business competition between the Group and Beijing
Lianhe ceased to exist.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In addition, the Controlling Shareholders have entered into the Deed of
Non-competition on 20 March 2017 in favour of the Company, pursuant to
which our Controlling Shareholders have jointly and severally and irrevocably
undertaken with the Company (for itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries)
that it or he would not, and would procure that its or his associates (except any
members of the Group) would not, during the restricted period set out below,
directly or indirectly, either on its or his own account or in conjunction with or on
behalf of any person, firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate
or be interested or engaged in or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder,
partner, agent, employee or otherwise) any business which is or may be in
competition with the business of any member of the Group from time to time.

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that they have reviewed
the declarations made by the Controlling Shareholders and noted that (a) the
Controlling Shareholders declared that they had fully complied with the Deed
of Non-competition throughout the Reporting Period; and (b) no new competing
business was reported by the Controlling Shareholders throughout the Reporting
Period. The independent non-executive Directors were satisfied that the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition had been duly complied with and enforced
throughout the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or their respective associates
had engaged in or had any interest in any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period and till the date of this annual report, the following
transactions carried out by the Group and the connected persons of the Company
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions of the Company
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule:
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

A

Background and Overview

We currently conduct our private higher education business, secondary
vocational education business and senior secondary education business
through the PRC Operating Schools in the PRC as PRC laws and
regulations generally restrict foreign ownership in the private education
industry in the PRC. The PRC laws and regulations currently restrict the
operation of higher education institutions, secondary vocational education
business and senior secondary education business to Sino-foreign
cooperation ownership, in addition to imposing qualification requirements
on the foreign owners. We do not hold any sponsor’s interest in the PRC
Operating Schools. The Structured Contracts, through which we obtain
control over and derive the economic benefits from the PRC Operating
Schools, have been narrowly tailored to achieve our business purpose and
minimize the potential conflict with relevant PRC laws and regulations. We
had entered into the Structured Contracts for the PRC Operating Schools
and expect to enter into structured contracts for the schools to be newly
established or invested in, the terms and conditions of which shall be the
same as the Structured Contracts in all material aspects.

In order to comply with the PRC laws and regulations while availing
ourselves of international capital markets and maintaining effective
control over all of our operations, on 8 September 2016, 8 October 2018,
10 December 2018, 11 January 2019 and 26 August 2019, respectively,
our wholly-owned subsidiary, Huihuang Company, entered into various
agreements that constitute the Existing Structured Contracts with, among
others, the Existing PRC Operating Schools and the Existing School
Sponsors, under which all economic benefits arising from the business of
the Existing PRC Operating Schools and the Existing School Sponsors held
directly or indirectly by Yun Ai Group are transferred to Huihuang Company
to the extent permitted under the PRC laws and regulations by means
of service fees payable by the Existing PRC Operating Schools and the
Existing School Sponsors to Huihuang Company. Although the Registered
Shareholders are not consolidated as part of the Group, they are parties
to certain agreements which constitute the Structured Contracts to ensure
that the shareholders’ rights of Yun Ai Group are actually controlled by
Huihuang Company.

The Existing Structured Contracts were amended due to equity transfers
between certain then Registered Shareholders which took place on
26 August 2019 and 6 December 2019. The Existing Structured
Contracts were terminated and a series of agreements comprising of the
New Structured Contracts were entered into between New Registered
Shareholders, the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities, Huihuang
Company and Yun Ai Group. The terms and conditions of the New
Structured Contracts are substantially the same as those under the
Existing Structured Contracts. The New Structured Contracts were further
amended by various supplemental agreements due to the acquisition
of interest in new schools by the Group on 8 May 2020, 29 July 2020,
27 August 2020, 4 February 2021, 20 April 2021, 25 May 2021,
28 September 2021 and 19 November 2021, respectively.

Please refer to the section headed “Structured Contracts” in the
Prospectus, as well as the announcements of the Company dated
8 October 2018, 10 December 2018, 11 January 2019, 26 August
2019, 6 December 2019, 8 May 2020, 29 July 2020, 27 August 2020,
4 February 2021, 20 April 2021, 25 May 2021, 28 September 2021 and
19 November 2021 for details.
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B. Development During the Year

(7)

@

&

Fifth Supplemental Agreement to the New Structured Contracts

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Beijing Lianhe. Upon completion of
the acquisition, Songming Gaoxue and Beijing Lianhe entered
into a supplemental agreement to the New Structured Contracts
with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group, and the then registered
shareholders of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the Group’s acquisition of
100% equity interest in Beijing Lianhe.

Sixth Supplemental Agreement to the New Structured Contracts

During the Reporting Period, the Company obtained all necessary
approvals and completed the acquisition of the Gansu School. Upon
completion of the acquisition, Bei Ai Company, the Gansu School
and the newly appointed directors of the Gansu School designated
by Bei Ai Company entered into a supplemental agreement to the
New Structured Contracts with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group,
and the registered shareholders of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the
Group’s acquisition of 100% interest in the Gansu School.

Seventh Supplemental Agreement to the New Structured Contracts

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed acquisition of
10% equity interest of Songming Xinju, the sole shareholder of
the Guangxi School Sponsor. Upon completion of the acquisition,
Daai Shuren, Songming Xinju, the Guangxi School Sponsor, and the
Guangxi Schools entered into a supplemental agreement to the New
Structured Contracts with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group, and
the registered shareholders of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the Group’s
further acquisition of interest in the Guangxi Schools.
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The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic benefits
from the PRC Operating Schools and/or the School Sponsors to the Group

=R stipulated under the New Structured Contracts:
IN/NS|
The Company
100% N i
v 4 |
BN 3O | SERE !
n N 1
Huihuang Company Registered shareholders 1 (4)0)
A ! B |
nt iee 100% | ¥ :
HEIGESHEER
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities
EERENEESERESERE
denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the equity interest
----- EBHEBMEY
denotes Structured Contracts
Hrat - Notes:
1. TRRBEE - 1. Payment of service fees.
2. RUBREMEEREEBERE - 2. Provision of exclusive technical and management consultancy services.
3. WERTHEEERNE DRI ERENR 3. Exclusive call option to acquire all or part of the School sponsors’ interest in the PRC
EREGRERERENZTRNLOREZS Operating Schools and all or part equity interest in the School Sponsors.
R
4, ERENEZARTHEPHEESRNE 4. Entrustment of school sponsors’ rights in the PRC Operating Schools by the School
REPWERER Sponsors.
5. FEHEEEREESZARTFTHEPEZEER 5. Entrustment of directors’ rights in the PRC Operating Schools by directors of the PRC
RONESERN BREERESE- Operating Schools including directors’ powers of attorney.
6. ZABRTFTREANER BERRREESE- 6. Entrust of Shareholders’ right including Shareholders’ power of attorney.
7. CERREHFENREEEENRE- 7. Pledge of equity interest by the Registered Shareholders of their equity interest in Yun
Ai Group.
8. BEAFRDNEESERMEN- 8. Provision of loans by Huihuang Company to Yun Ai Group.
9. REFEEZELZR AXRNERNERER 9. According to PRC laws and regulations, entities and individuals who establish private
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schools are commonly referred to as “school sponsors” instead of “owners” or
“shareholders”.

As of the date of this annual report, we have not encountered any
interference or encumbrance from any governing bodies in our plan to
adopt the New Structured Contracts and the consolidated financial results
of the PRC Operating Schools which engage in higher education service,
are consolidated to those of the Group.
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Summary of the Material Terms of the New Structured Contracts

A description of each of the specific agreements that comprise the New
Structured Contracts is set out below.

(7)

Business Cooperation Agreement (2019)

Pursuant to the Business Cooperation Agreement (2019), Huihuang
Company shall provide technical services, management support and
consulting services necessary for the private education business,
and in return, the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities shall
make payments accordingly.

To ensure the due performance of the New Structured Contracts,
each of the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities agreed to
comply, and procure any of its subsidiaries to comply with, and the
New Registered Shareholders agreed to procure the Existing PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities to comply with the obligations as
prescribed under the Business Cooperation Agreement (2019) set
forth as follows:

(@)  to carry out its private education operations in a prudent
and efficient manner in accordance with good financial and
business standards while maintaining the asset value of the
Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and the quality
and standard of private education;

(b)  to prepare school development plans and annual working
plans in accordance with the instructions of Huihuang
Company;

(c)  to carry out its private education activities and other relevant
business under the assistance of Huihuang Company;

(d)  to carry out and manage its daily operations and financial
management in accordance with the recommendations,
advice, principles and other instructions of Huihuang
Company;

(e)  to execute and act upon the recommendations of Huihuang
Company in terms of employment and removal of senior
management and staff;

() to adopt the advice, guidance and plans given by Huihuang
Company in relation to their respective strategic development;

and

()  to carry out its business operations and renew and maintain
its respective necessary licenses.
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In addition, pursuant to the Business Cooperation Agreement
(2019),

(@)

Mr. Li undertakes to Huihuang Company that, in the event
of death, loss of or restriction on capacity, divorce or other
circumstances which may affect the exercise of his direct or
indirect equity interest in the New Registered Shareholders,
he shall have made all necessary arrangement and sign
all necessary documents such that his/their respective
successor, guardian, spouse, and any other person which may
as a result of the above events obtain the equity interest or
relevant rights shall not prejudice or hinder the enforcement
of the New Structured Contracts;

the New Registered Shareholders undertake to Huihuang
Company that, in the event of a merger and subdivision of
the New Registered Shareholders, presentation by the New
Registered Shareholders or the New Registered Shareholders
being presented any application for winding up, liquidation,
winding up restructuring or reconciliation, dissolution and
liquidation of the New Registered Shareholders pursuant
to an order, application for involuntary dissolution of the
New Registered Shareholders or other reasons, or other
circumstances which may affect the New Registered
Shareholders in exercising its direct or indirect interest in Yun
Ai Group, they shall have made all necessary arrangement
and sign all necessary documents such that the successor,
administrator, liquidation committee and any other person
which may as a result of the above events obtain the direct
or indirect interest or relevant rights in Yun Ai Group shall not
prejudice or hinder the enforcement of the New Structured
Contracts;
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the New Registered Shareholders undertake that, in the
event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Existing PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities, (i) Huihuang Company
shall have the right to exercise all school sponsor’s right
on behalf of the Existing School Sponsors/shareholders’
rights on the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities
(except for the Existing PRC Operating Schools); (i) Existing
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and/or Existing School
Sponsors and/or the shareholders or sponsors of the Existing
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities shall transfer all assets
received or receivable in its capacity as school sponsor of
each of the Existing PRC Operating Schools/as shareholders
of each of the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities
(except for the Existing PRC Operating Schools) as a result of
the dissolution or liquidation of the Existing PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities to Huihuang Company or other persons
designated by us at nil consideration, and instruct all of the
Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities to transfer such
assets directly to Huihuang Company before such dissolution
or liquidation; (iii) if consideration is required for such
transfer under the then applicable PRC laws, the Existing
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and/or the shareholders
or sponsors of the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities shall compensate Huihuang Company or the person
as designated by us the amount and guarantee that Huihuang
Company or other persons as designated by us does not
suffer any loss; and

the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities agreed that,
without the prior written consent of Huihuang Company,
the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities shall not
declare or pay to the New Registered Shareholders any
school-running balances ( #¥Z2 45 84%) or other interest or
benefit. In the event that the New Registered Shareholders
receive any school-running balances (¥¥ 22 %5 8%) or other
interest or benefit, the New Registered Shareholders shall
unconditionally and without compensation transfer such
amount to Huihuang Company.
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Exclusive Technical Service and Management Consultancy
Agreement (2019)

Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Service and Management
Consultancy Agreement (2019), Huihuang Company agreed
to provide exclusive technical services to the Existing PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities, including but not limited to, (a)
design, development, update and maintenance of software for
computer and mobile devices; (b) design, development, update and
maintenance of webpages and websites necessary for the education
activities of the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities; (c)
design, development, update and maintenance of management
information systems necessary for the education activities of
the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities; (d) provision of
other technical support necessary for the education activities of
the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities; (e) provision of
technical consulting services; (f) provision of technical training; (g)
engaging technical staff to provide on-site technical support; and
(h) providing other technical services reasonably requested by the
Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities.

Furthermore, Huihuang Company agreed to provide exclusive
management consultancy services to the Existing PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities, including but not limited to, (a) design of
curriculum; (b) preparation, selection and/or recommendation of
course materials; (c) provision of teacher and staff recruitment and
training support and services; (d) provision of student recruitment
support and services; (e) provision of public relation services; (f)
preparation of long term strategic development plans and annual
working plans; (g) development of financial management systems
and recommendation and optimization on annual budget; (h)
advising on design of internal structures and internal management;
(i) provision of management and consultancy training; (j) conduct
of market research; (k) preparation of market development plan; (1)
building of marketing network; and (m) providing other management
technical services reasonably requested by the Existing PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities.

In consideration of the technical and management consultancy
services provided by Huihuang Company, each of the Existing PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities agreed to pay Huihuang Company
a service fee equal to an agreed percentage of their respective
amount of surplus from operations (after deducting all costs,
expenses, taxes, losses from the previous year (if required by the
law) and the legally compulsory development fund of the respective
school (if required by the law)). The compulsory development fund
is included as statutory surplus reserve at the Group’s level and
retained at schools’ level. Huihuang Company has the right (but
not the obligation) to adjust the amount of such service fee by
reference to the actual services provided and the actual business
operations and needs of the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities, provided that any adjusted amount shall not exceed the
amount mentioned above. The Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities do not have any right to make any such adjustment.
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Exclusive Call Option Agreement (2019)

Under the Exclusive Call Option Agreement (2019), the New
Registered Shareholders have irrevocably granted Huihuang
Company or its designated purchaser the right to purchase all or
part of the school sponsor’s interest of the Existing School Sponsors
in the Existing PRC Operating Schools and equity interest in the
Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities (except for the Existing
PRC Operating Schools) (“Equity Call Option”). The purchase price
payable by Huihuang Company in respect of the transfer of such
school sponsor’s interest or equity interest upon exercise of the
Equity Call Option shall be the lowest price permitted under the
PRC laws and regulations. Huihuang Company or its designated
purchaser shall have the right to purchase such proportion of the
school sponsor’s interest of the Existing PRC Operating Schools
and/or equity interest in the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities (except for the Existing PRC Operating Schools) as it
decides at any time.

School Sponsors’ and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement
(2019)

Pursuant to the School Sponsors’ and Directors’ Rights Entrustment
Agreement (2019), the Existing School Sponsors have irrevocably
authorized and entrusted Huihuang Company to exercise all its
rights as school sponsor of each of the Existing PRC Operating
Schools to the extent permitted by PRC laws. These rights include,
but are not limited to: (a) the right to appoint and/or elect directors
or council members of the schools; (b) the right to appoint and/or
elect supervisors of the schools; (c) the right to understand the
operation and financial situation of the schools; (d) the right to
review the resolutions and records of the board of directors and
financial statements and reports of the schools; (e) the right to
obtain school-running balances as school sponsor of the schools
in accordance with the laws and the articles of association of each
school; (f) the right to acquire residue assets upon liquidation of the
schools in accordance with the laws and the articles of association
of each school; (g) the right to transfer school sponsors’ interest
in accordance with the laws; and (h) other school sponsor’s rights
pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations and the articles of
association of each school as amended from time to time.
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Pursuant to the School Sponsors’ and Directors’ Rights Entrustment
Agreement, each of the directors of each school (the “Appointees”)
has irrevocably authorized and entrusted Huihuang Company to
exercise all his/her rights as directors of the Existing PRC Operating
Schools as appointed by the Existing School Sponsors and to the
extent permitted by PRC laws. These rights include, but are not
limited to: (a) the right to attend meetings of the board of directors
as representative of the directors appointed by the Existing School
Sponsors; (b) the right to exercise voting rights in respect of all
matters discussed and resolved at the board meeting of each of the
Existing PRC Operating Schools; (c) the right to propose to convene
interim board meetings of each of the Existing PRC Operating
Schools; (d) the right to sign all board minutes, board resolutions
and other legal documents which the directors appointed by the
Existing School Sponsors have authority to sign in his/her capacity
as directors of the Existing PRC Operating Schools; (e) the right
to instruct the legal representative and financial and business
responsible persons of the Existing PRC Operating Schools to act
in accordance with the instruction of Huihuang Company; (f) the
right to exercise all other rights and voting rights of directors as
prescribed under the articles of association of the Existing PRC
Operating Schools; (g) the right to handle the legal procedures of
registration, approval and licensing of the Existing PRC Operating
Schools, as the case may be at the education department,
the department of civil affairs or other government regulatory
departments; and (h) other directors’ rights pursuant to applicable
PRC laws and regulations and the articles of association of the
Existing PRC Operating Schools as amended from time to time.

School Sponsors’ Powers of Attorney (2019)

Pursuant to the School Sponsors’ Powers of Attorney (2019)
executed by the Existing School Sponsors in favor of Huihuang
Company, the Existing School Sponsors authorized and appointed
Huihuang Company (none of whom is a director of any of the
Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and therefore does
not give rise to any conflicts of interest), as its agent to act on its
behalf to exercise or delegate the exercise of all its rights as school
sponsor of each of the Existing PRC Operating Schools.

Huihuang Company shall have the right to further delegate the
rights so delegated to the directors of Huihuang Company or
other designated person. The Existing School Sponsors irrevocably
agreed that the authorization appointment in the School Sponsor’s
Powers of Attorney shall not be invalid, prejudiced or otherwise
adversely affected by reason of the Existing School Sponsors’
subdivision, merger, winding up, consolidation, liquidation or other
similar events. The School Sponsors’ Power of Attorney (2019) shall
constitute a part and incorporate terms of the School Sponsors’ and
Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement (2019).
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Directors’ Powers of Attorney (2019)

Pursuant to the Directors’ Powers of Attorney (2019) executed by
each of the Appointees in favor of Huihuang Company, each of the
Appointees authorized and appointed Huihuang Company (none of
whom is a director of any of the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities and therefore does not give rise to any conflicts of interest),
as his/her agent to act on his/her behalf to exercise or delegate
the exercise of all of his/her rights as directors of the Existing PRC
Operating Schools.

Huihuang Company shall have the right to further delegate the
rights so delegated to the directors of Huihuang Company or other
designated person. Each of the Appointees irrevocably agreed that
the authorization appointment in the Directors’ Powers of Attorney
(2019) shall not be invalid, prejudiced or otherwise adversely
affected by reason of his/her loss of or restriction on capacity,
death or other similar events. The Directors’ Power of Attorney
(2019) shall constitute a part and incorporate terms of the School
Sponsors’ and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement (2019).

Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreement (2019)

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreement
(2019), each of the New Registered Shareholders, Yun Ai Group,
Daai Shuren, Songming Xinju and Beijing Daai Gaoxue has
irrevocably authorized and entrusted Huihuang Company to exercise
all of his/their respective rights as shareholders of the Existing
School Sponsors (together, “the Relevant Subsidiaries”) to the
extent permitted by the PRC laws. These rights include, but are
not limited to: (a) the right to attend shareholders’ meetings of the
Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case may be; (b) the right to exercise
voting rights in respect of all matters discussed and resolved at
the shareholders’ meeting of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case
may be; (c) the right to appoint directors or legal representative
of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case may be; (d) the right
to propose to convene interim shareholders’ meetings of the
Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case may be; (e) the right to sign all
shareholders’ resolutions and other legal documents which the New
Registered Shareholders and Yun Ai Group have authority to sign in
his or their capacity as shareholders of the Relevant Subsidiaries,
as the case may be; (f) the right to instruct the directors and legal
representative of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as the case may be to
act in accordance with the instruction of Huihuang Company; (g) the
right to exercise all other rights and voting rights of shareholders
as prescribed under the articles of association of the Relevant
Subsidiaries, as the case may be; (h) the right to handle the legal
procedures of registration, approval and licensing of the Relevant
Subsidiaries, as the case may be at the education department,
the department of civil affairs or other government regulatory
departments; and (i) other shareholders’ rights pursuant to
applicable PRC laws and regulations and the articles of association
of the Relevant Subsidiaries as amended from time to time.
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In addition, each of the New Registered Shareholders, Yun Ai
Group, Daai Shuren, Songming Xinju and Beijing Daai Gaoxue
has irrevocably agreed that (i) Huihuang Company may delegate
its rights under the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreement
(2019) to the directors of Huihuang Company or its designated
person, without prior notice to or approval by the New Registered
Shareholders and Yun Ai Group; and (ii) any person as successor
of civil rights of Huihuang Company or liquidator by reason of
subdivision, merger, liquidation of Huihuang Company or other
circumstances shall have authority to replace Huihuang Company
to exercise all rights under the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment
Agreement (2019).

Shareholders’ Powers of Attorney (2019)

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Powers of Attorney (2019) executed
by each of the New Registered Shareholders, Yun Ai Group,
Daai Shuren, Songming Xinju and Beijing Daai Gaoxue in favor
of Huihuang Company, each of them authorized and appointed
Huihuang Company, as his or their agent to act on his or their
behalf to exercise or delegate the exercise of all his or their rights
as shareholders of the Relevant Subsidiaries.

Huihuang Company shall have the right to further delegate the
rights so delegated to its directors or other designated person. Each
of the New Registered Shareholders, Yun Ai Group, Daai Shuren,
Songming Xinju and Beijing Daai Gaoxue irrevocably agreed that the
authorization appointment in the Shareholders’ Powers of Attorney
(2019) shall not be invalid, prejudiced or otherwise adversely
affected by reason of his/her loss of or restriction on capacity, death
or other similar events. The Shareholders’ Power of Attorney (2019)
shall constitute a part and incorporate terms of the Shareholders’
Rights Entrustment Agreement (2019).

Spouse Undertakings (2019)

Pursuant to the Spouse Undertakings (2019), the spouse of Mr. Li
has irrevocably undertaken that:

(@)  the spouse has full knowledge of and has consented to the
entering into of the New Structured Contracts by Mr. Li,
and in particular, the arrangement as set out in the New
Structured Contracts in relation to the restrictions imposed on
the direct or indirect equity interest in Yun Ai Group, pledge
or transfer the direct or indirect equity interest in Yun Ai
Group, or the disposal of the direct or indirect equity interest
in Yun Ai Group in any other forms;

(b)  the spouse has not participated, is not participating and shall
not in the future participate in the operation, management,
liquidation, dissolution and other matters in relation to the
Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities;

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



) ERREFZALEIEREALF
HARBRAREBIEBRE
EEENRE (EERFE) %A
FELEXHRATHELER
FrUREHEBLESNETIERE
RAMNERLERASRE BB
BARBE-HBEXHFRERF

) FEABEFE (20195 ) Frd (EAIAGE
BR EAEREETEEAREERSE
B EEREERES MR
BN EMBEUSHmMERE 8
E AWHEZENEMEXN TN

& 1

(e) ERMBAEGE (20195 ) FT S R AT -
BR - BERREFFSEEC B
BERZRAAZR BEIHME
USHMEHE BE AHHR
FHMEANTFZE

f MEEAFEFEENEBUS
TH #& 1E B 4B &GS (20195 ) FT i M
A BR BAERREZA:
ZEAH BR-BERREDA
BRREARD R

O BEREAEEAEGEBSEGZS
(2019 ) MM R R I 72 B & %
175 AR K o

(10) REEZF I (2019F)

RIBEREE R ZE (2019F) EH LB
BREREFGEETATREBEAEIRER
SENZARER —JAEENILRE
HEELEAETEEQAFEREN
e REBEEBITHEBESARERERE
RARFTERRASTRAEDAG S B
BEBEAMEZIN -—YEE BEX
BRRUEBARTAPESIBR URE
BRARAIRFLERRER ZEREHE
REBMBERRBENMEBMUESNENTE
EMEEN—TIRAX ([BEFEE]) -

(10)

EETEHRS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(c)  the spouse authorizes Mr. Li or his authorized person to
execute all necessary documents and perform all necessary
procedures from time to time for and on behalf of the
spouse in relation to the spouse’s equity interest in Yun Ai
Group (direct or indirect) in order to safeguard the interest
of Huihuang Company under the New Structured Contracts
and give effect to the fundamental purposes thereunder, and
confirms and agrees to all such documents and procedures;

(d) any undertaking, confirmation, consent and authorization
under the Spouse Undertakings (2019) shall not be revoked,
prejudiced, invalidated or otherwise adversely affected by
any increase, decrease, consolidation or other similar events
relating to the direct or indirect equity interest in Yun Ai
Group;

(e) any undertaking, confirmation, consent and authorization
under the Spouse Undertakings (2019) shall not be revoked,
prejudiced, invalidated or otherwise adversely affected by
death, loss of or restriction on capacity of the spouse, divorce
or other similar events;

() all undertakings, confirmations, consents and authorizations
under the Spouse Undertakings (2019) shall continue to be
valid and binding until otherwise terminated by both Huihuang
Company and the spouse of Mr. Li in writing; and

(@  The Spouse Undertakings shall have the same term as and
incorporate the terms of the Business Cooperation Agreement
(2019).

Equity Pledge Agreement (2019)

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement (2019), each of the New
Registered Shareholders unconditionally and irrevocably pledged
and granted first priority security interests over all of its equity
interest in Yun Ai Group together with all related rights thereto
to Huihuang Company as security for performance of the New
Structured Contracts and all direct, indirect or consequential
damages and foreseeable loss of interest incurred by Huihuang
Company as a result of any event of default on the part of the New
Registered Shareholders, or each of the Existing PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities and all expenses incurred by Huihuang Company
as a result of enforcement of the obligations of the New Registered
Shareholders and/or each of the Existing PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities under the New Structured Contracts (the “Secured
Indebtedness”).
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(17)

Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement (2019), without the
prior written consent of Huihuang Company, the New Registered
Shareholders shall not transfer the equity interest or create further
pledge or encumbrance over the pledged equity interest. Any
unauthorized transfer shall be invalid, and the proceeds of any
transfer of the equity interest shall be first used in the payment
of the Secured Indebtedness or deposited to such third party as
agreed to by Huihuang Company. The New Registered Shareholders
also waived any pre-emptive rights upon enforcement and agreed
to any transfer of the pledged equity pursuant to the equity pledge
agreement.

The pledges under the Equity Pledge Agreement were registered
with the relevant Administration for Market Regulation of the PRC
on 2 September 2019 and 2 January 2020 and became effective
on the same date of the registration of the pledge.

Loan Agreement (2019)

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement (2019), Huihuang Company agreed
to provide interest-free loans to Yun Ai Group in accordance with
the PRC laws and regulations and Yun Ai Group agreed to utilize
the proceeds of such loans to contribute as capital of the Existing
PRC Operating Schools in its capacity as school sponsor or the
shareholder of the school sponsors of the Schools in accordance
with our instructions. Both parties agree that all such capital
contribution will be directly settled by Huihuang Company on behalf
of Yun Ai Group.

The terms of the Loan Agreement (2019) shall continue until all
interest of the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities are
transferred to Huihuang Company or its designee and/or the
Company or designee of the Company and the registration process
required thereafter has been completed with the relevant local
authorities.

Each loan to be granted under the Loan Agreement (2019) will be for
an infinite term until termination at the sole discretion of Huihuang
Company. The loan will become due and payable upon Huihuang
Company’s demand under any of the following circumstances: (i)
a bankruptcy application, bankruptcy reorganization or bankruptcy
settlement has been filed by or against Yun Ai Group, (ii) a
winding-up or liquidation application has been filed by or against Yun
Ai Group, (iii) Yun Ai Group becoming insolvent or incurring any other
significant personal debt which may affect its ability to repay the
loan under the Loan Agreement (2019), (iv) Huihuang Company or its
designee exercising in full its option to purchase all the Existing PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities interests to the extent permitted by
PRC laws and regulations, or (v) any of the Existing PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities commits any breach of any obligations under
the New Structured Contracts, or any warranties provided by any
of the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities under the New
Structured Contracts is proved incorrect or inaccurate. As advised
by the PRC Legal Advisors, interest-free loans granted by Huihuang
Company to Yun Ai Group is not in violation of the applicable PRC
laws and regulations.
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Business Activities of the PRC Operating Schools and the School
Sponsors

The PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities of the Group are Yunnan School,
Guizhou School, Central China School, Northeast School, Luoyang School,
Guangxi Schools and Gansu School, their respective school sponsors,
and other schools and other investment holding companies which were
consolidated to the Group by virtue of the Structured Contracts, as
amended from time to time. Their business activities are primarily engaged
in higher education services. All of the School Sponsors are investment
holding companies.

Significance and financial contributions of the PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities to the Group

Pursuant to the New Structured Contracts and the various supplemental
agreements in relation thereto, the Group obtains control over and derives
the economic benefits from the PRC Operating Schools and the School
Sponsors. The table below sets out the financial contribution of the PRC
Operating Schools and the School Sponsors to the Group:

HAEEMWEEMR  Significances and financial
contribution to the Group

B E R

HEAEENEZHR MBI

Significances and financial contribution to the Group
N = EE#E
Revenue Net profit Total Assets
BZE20215F BZE2021F 20214
8H31H 8H31H 8AH31H

LFE “FE

For the For the As of
year ended year ended 31 August 2021

31 August 2021 31 August 2021

100% 121% 89%

HEBEERITERAREE

TREIREBE2021F8A3IHILLFEFEE
EERNEREREBEASROOBA R()E
EHAB BBRAREESREFEBMHES
HEEEEENZHEEHREHARERN
BRI

Revenue and assets involved in the New Structured Contracts

The table below sets out (i) revenue; and (ii) total assets involved in the
PRC Operating Schools and the School Sponsors for the year ended
31 August 2021, which would be consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements pursuant to the New Structural Contracts and the various
supplemental agreements in relation thereto:

EESERREREMRE

B
E\EL
il

PRC Operating Schools and School Sponsors

A BE
Revenue Assets
AR T AR
RMB RMB

1,497,454,783 7,025,478,413
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F.

Regulatory Framework

1.

Higher Education

Pursuant to Special Administrative Measures for Access of Foreign
Investment (Negative List) (2020 Edition) (the “Negative List”), the
provision of higher education in the PRC falls within the “restricted”
category. In particular, the Negative List explicitly restricts higher
education to Sino-foreign cooperation, which means the foreign
investor shall be an educational institution and shall operate higher
education in the PRC through cooperation with a PRC educational
institution in compliance with the Sino-Foreign Regulation. In
addition, the Negative List also provides that the domestic party
shall play a dominant role in the Sino-foreign cooperation, meaning
that (a) the principal or other chief executive officer of the schools
shall be a PRC national; and (b) the representatives of the domestic
party shall account for no less than half of the total members of the
board of directors, the executive council or the joint administration
committee of the Sino-foreign cooperative educational institution
(the “Foreign Control Restriction”). We had fully complied with the
Foreign Control Restriction in respect of the PRC Operating Schools
on the basis that (a) the principals and the chief executive officers
of the aforementioned schools are all PRC nationals; and (b) all the
members of the board of directors are PRC nationals.

In relation to the interpretation of Sino-foreign cooperation,
pursuant to the Sino-Foreign Regulation and its Implementation
Regulations, if we were to apply for any of the Schools to be
reorganized as a Sino-foreign joint venture private school for PRC
students (a “Sino-Foreign Joint Venture Private School”), the foreign
investor in the Sino-Foreign Joint Venture Private School must be a
foreign educational institution with relevant qualification and high
quality education (the “Qualification Requirement”). Furthermore,
pursuant to the Implementation Opinions, the foreign portion of
the total investment in a Sino-Foreign Joint Venture Private School
should be below 50% (the “Foreign Ownership Restriction”) and the
establishment of these schools is subject to approval of education
authorities at the provincial or national level.

Our PRC legal advisors have advised that as of the date of this
annual report, there are no implementing measures or specific
guidance on the Qualification Requirement in accordance with
the existing PRC laws and regulations and therefore it is currently
uncertain as to what specific criteria must be met by a foreign
investor (such as length of experience and form and extent of
ownership in the foreign jurisdiction) in order to demonstrate to
the relevant educational authority that it meets the Qualification
Requirement. Accordingly, as a matter of policy, due to the lack of
implementing measures or specific guidance on the Sino-Foreign
Regulation and its Implementation Regulations, including the
Qualification Requirement, the relevant education authorities will not
accept an application to convert the PRC Operating Schools or the
schools to be newly established or invested by us into Sino-Foreign
Joint Venture Private Schools.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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Plan to Comply with the Qualification Requirement

The foreign investor in a Sino-foreign joint venture private school
must be a foreign educational institution with relevant qualification
and high quality of education (the “Qualification Requirement”).
Foreign portion of the total investment in a Sino-foreign joint
venture private school should be below 50% and the establishment
of these schools is subject to approval of education authorities
at the provincial or national level. We are committed to working
towards meeting the Qualification Requirement. We have adopted
a specific plan and had taken concrete steps which the Company
believes are meaningful endeavors to demonstrate compliance with
the Qualification Requirement.

As advised by the Company’s PRC legal advisors, there have
been no updates to the implementation rules in relation to the
Qualification Requirement since the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report.

Please also refer to the section headed “Structured Contracts”
in the Prospectus and the annual report for the year ended
31 December 2018 for the Group’s efforts and actions undertaken
to comply with the Qualification Requirement. As of the date of this
report, we are still waiting for approval from the BPPE to establish
the new school in the State of California.

Recent Development

For details, please refer to section headed “Recent Developments of
Regulatory Framework” in Management Discussion and Analysis of
this annual report.
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G.

Risks associated with the arrangements and the actions taken to
mitigate the risks

We entered into a series of agreements in which our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Huihuang Company receives economic benefits from the PRC
Operating Schools pursuant to relevant clauses under the agreements.

Foreign investment in the education industry in China is extensively
regulated and subject to numerous restrictions. We have been and are
expected to continue to be dependent on the New Structured Contracts to
operate our education business.

If the New Structured Contracts that establish the structure for operating
our China business are found to be in violation of any PRC laws or
regulations in the future or fail to obtain or maintain any of the required
permits or approvals, the relevant PRC regulatory authorities, including the
MOE, which regulates the education industry, would have broad discretion
in dealing with such violations, including:

o revoking the business and operating licenses of our PRC
subsidiaries;

o discontinuing or restricting the operations of any related-party
transactions among our PRC subsidiaries;

o imposing fines or other requirements with which we or our PRC
subsidiaries may not be able to comply;

o requiring us to restructure our operations in such a way as to
compel us to establish new entities, re-apply for the necessary
licenses or relocate our businesses, staff and assets;

° imposing additional conditions or requirements with which we may
not be able to comply; or

° restricting the use of proceeds from our additional public offering or
financing to finance our business and operations in China.

If any of the above penalties are imposed on us, our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely
affected.
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The Group has adopted the following measures to ensure the effective
operation of the Group with the implementation of the New Structured
Contracts and our compliance with the New Structured Contracts:

@)

major issues arising from the implementation and compliance with
the New Structured Contracts or any regulatory enquiries from
government authorities will be submitted to our Board, if necessary,
for review and discussion on an occurrence basis;

our Board will review the overall performance of and compliance
with the New Structured Contracts at least once a year;

the Company will disclose the overall performance and compliance
with the New Structured Contracts in its annual reports and interim
reports to update the Shareholders and potential investors;

the Company will engage external legal advisors or other
professional advisors, if necessary, to assist the Board to review
the implementation of the New Structured Contracts, review the
legal compliance of Huihuang Company and the PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities to deal with specific issues or matters arising
from the New Structured Contracts.

In addition, notwithstanding that our executive Director, Mr. Li is also the
sole shareholder of Songming Dexue, we believe that our Directors are
able to perform their roles in the Group independently and the Group is
capable of managing its business independently after the Listing under
the following measures:

(@)

the decision-making mechanism of the Board as set out in the
Articles includes provisions to avoid conflict of interest by providing,
amongst other things, that in the event of conflict of interest in such
contract or arrangement which is material, a Director shall declare
the nature of his or her interest at the earliest meeting of the Board
at which it is practicable for him or her to do so, and if he or she
is to be regarded as having material interest in any contracts or
arrangements, such Director shall abstain from voting and not be
counted in the quorum;

each of our Directors is aware of his fiduciary duties as a Director

which requires, amongst other things, that he acts for the benefits
and in the best interests of the Group;
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(c) we have appointed four independent non-executive Directors,
comprising over one-third of our Board, to provide a balance of
the number of interested and independent Directors with a view to
promoting the interests of the Company and our Shareholders as a
whole; and

(d)  we will disclose in our announcements, circulars, annual and interim
reports in accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules
regarding decisions on matters reviewed by our Board (including
independent non-executive Directors) relating to any business or
interest of each Director and his associates that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

Material changes

On 26 August 2019, pursuant to termination of the Existing Structured
Contracts, a series of agreements comprising of the New Structured
Contracts were entered into between the New Registered Shareholders,
the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and Huihuang Company.

On 6 December 2019, a supplemental agreement to the New Structured
Contracts was entered into among Pai Dui Pai, Ba Mu Pu, Songming
Dexue, Zhongyi Company, Shanghai Taifu and Huihuang Company,
pursuant to which, among other things, all the rights and obligations
attached to Shanghai Taifu's equity interests in Yun Ai Group will be
transferred to Songming Dexue (the “First Supplemental Agreement”).

On 8 May 2020, Henan Rongyu, Luoyang School, the newly appointed
director of Luoyang School and Beijing Daai Gaoxue entered into a
supplemental agreement to the New Structured Contracts with Huihuang
Company, Yun Ai Group, the then Registered Shareholders, to reflect the
Group’s further acquisition of interest in the Luoyang School (the “Second
Supplemental Agreement”).

On 29 July 2020, Daai Shuren, Songming Xinju, the Guangxi School
Sponsor and Guangxi Schools entered into a supplemental agreement to
the New Structured Contracts with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group, the
then Registered Shareholders, to reflect the Group’s further acquisition of
interest in the Guangxi Schools (the “Third Supplemental Agreement”).

On 27 August 2020, Songming Gaoxue, Beijing Fangzhi, the school
sponsor of Yunnan Vocational School, Yunnan Vocational School and the
newly appointed director of the Yunnan Vocational School entered into a
supplemental agreement to the New Structured Contracts with Huihuang
Company, Yun Ai Group, and the registered shareholders of Yun Ai Group,
to reflect the acquisition of the Yunnan Vocational School (the “Fourth
Supplemental Agreement”).
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On 4 February 2021, Songming Gaoxue and Beijing Lianhe entered into a
supplemental agreement to the New Structured Contracts with Huihuang
Company, Yun Ai Group, and the registered shareholders of Yun Ai Group,
to reflect the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Beijing Lianhe (the
“Fifth Supplemental Agreement”).

On 20 April 2021, Bei Ai Company, the Gansu School and the newly
appointed directors of the Gansu School designated by Bei Ai Company
entered into a supplemental agreement to the New Structured Contracts
with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group, and the registered shareholders
of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the Group’s acquisition of 100% interest in the
Gansu School (the “Sixth Supplemental Agreement”).

On 25 May 2021, Daai Shuren, Songming Xinju, the Guangxi School
Sponsor, and the Guangxi Schools entered into a supplemental agreement
to the New Structured Contracts with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group,
and the registered shareholders of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the Group’s
further acquisition of interest of the Guangxi Schools (the “Seventh
Supplemental Agreement”).

On 28 September 2021, Zhengzhou New Higher Education, Beijing New
Higher Education (the company holding 100% equity interest of the school
sponsor of the Zhengzhou School and a wholly owned subsidiary of Yun
Ai Group), the Zhengzhou School and the newly appointed directors of
the Zhengzhou School designated by Zhengzhou New Higher Education
entered into a supplemental agreement to the New Structured Contracts
with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group, and the registered shareholders
of Yun Ai Group, to reflect the Group’s acquisition of 100% interest in the
Zhengzhou School (the “Eighth Supplemental Agreement”).

On 19 November 2021, Haxuan Company, the Northeast School and the
newly appointed directors of the Northeast School designated by Haxuan
Company entered into a supplemental agreement to the New Structured
Contracts with Huihuang Company, Yun Ai Group and the registered
shareholders of Yun Ai Group to reflect the Group’s further acquisition of
interest in the Northeast School (the “Ninth Supplemental Agreement”).

Save as the principal terms of the First Supplemental Agreement, the
Second Supplemental Agreement, the Third Supplemental Agreement, the
Fourth Supplemental Agreement, the Fifth Supplemental Agreement, the
Sixth Supplemental Agreement, the Seventh Supplemental Agreement, the
Eighth Supplemental Agreement and the Ninth Supplemental Agreement,
the clauses of the New Structured Contracts remained unchanged.
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Unwinding of the Structured Contracts

As of the date of this annual report, there has not been any unwinding
of any Structured Contracts, nor has there been any failure to unwind
any Structured Contracts when the restrictions that led to the adoption of
the Structured Contracts are removed. For more details, please refer to
the section headed “Structured Contracts — Operation of the Structured
Contracts — Termination of the Structured Contracts” of the Prospectus
and the section headed “Unwinding of the New Structured Contracts” of
the announcement of the Company dated 26 August 2019. In the event
that the PRC regulatory environment changes and all of the Qualification
Requirement, the Foreign Ownership Restriction and the Foreign Control
Restriction are removed (and assuming there are no other changes in the
relevant PRC laws and regulations), Huihuang Company will exercise the
Equity Call Option in full to unwind the contractual arrangements so that
the Company will be able to directly operate the schools without using
the Structured Contracts, as permitted by the applicable PRC laws and
regulations at the relevant time.

Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
Structured Contracts and confirmed that, during the relevant financial
year:

(i) the Structured Contracts have been entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

(i) the Structured Contracts are on normal commercial terms; and

(i) the Structured Contracts have been entered into in accordance with
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation of auditor of the Company

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the
Group’s Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor of the Company has performed certain pre-determined audit
procedures regarding the Structured Contracts and confirmed that:

(i) the transactions carried out during the year ended 31 August 2021
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Structured Contracts, and have been operated so that the profit
generated by the PRC Operating Schools and the School Sponsors
have been substantially retained by the Group;
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(i) no dividends or other distributions have been made by the PRC
Operating Schools and the School Sponsors to the holders of its
school sponsor’s interest which are not otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to the Group, and

(iiiy  the Structured Contracts and if any, any new contracts entered into,

renewed or reproduced between the Group and the PRC Operating

Entities and the School Sponsors during the relevant financial period

are fair and reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Group is

concerned and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

During the Reporting Period, the following transactions carried out by the
Group and the connected persons of the Company constituted fully-exempted
connected transactions of the Company according to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

ACQUISITION OF BEIJING LIANHE

On 4 February 2021, Daai Management and Songming Gaoxue entered into an
equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Daai Management agreed to sell
100% equity interest in Beijing Lianhe to Songming Gaoxue (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yun Ai Group) for a consideration of RMB2,352,192 which was
agreed after arm’s length negotiation between Daai Management and Songming
Gaoxue with reference to the net assets value of Beijing Lianhe as of 31 January
2021 prepared pursuant to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of the
PRC. The consideration for the disposal of Beijing Lianhe by the Group in May
2016 was also based on the net assets value of Beijing Lianhe at the relevant
time as disclosed in the Prospectus. After completion of such acquisition, Beijing
Lianhe became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Yun Ai Group.

As at the date of the agreement, Daai Management was wholly owned by Daai
Consulting, which in turn was owned as to 90% by Mr. Li and 10% by Ms. Yang,
and therefore was a connected person of the Company pursuant to Rules
14A.07(4)n and 14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction
contemplated under the equity transfer agreement constituted a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As none of the applicable percentage ratios calculated under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules for the transactions contemplated under the aforesaid equity
transfer agreement is more than 5% and the total consideration is less than
HK$3,000,000, such acquisition is fully exempted from announcement, circular
and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as of the date of this annual report, the
Company had no connected transactions which fell to be disclosed in accordance
with the provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
disclosure of connected transactions.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 August 2021 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

None of these related party transactions constitutes a connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed, except for those
described above in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions”, in respect
of which the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

On 3 June 2021, the Company (the “Borrower”) entered into a facilities
agreement relating to up to US$100,000,000 senior secured term loan and
revolving loan facilities (with a greenshoe option of up to US$25,000,000) (the
“Facilities”) with, among others, various banks as lenders and Credit Suisse
AG, Singapore Branch (the “Mandated Lead Arranger & Bookrunner, MLAB’,
as mandated lead arranger and bookrunner, agent of the finance parties and
security trustee, the “Agent” and the “Security Agent” for the secured parties)
(the “Facilities Agreement”). The term of the Facilities is 3 years from its first
utilisation. The purposes of the Facilities are, among others, for the repayment
and/or discharge of the outstanding amount under an existing term loan facility
obtained by the Group as set out in its announcement of 22 February 2018, and
the general corporate purposes of the Group.

The Facilities is initially guaranteed by Aspire Education Information Co., Ltd. and
Aspire Education Holding Co., Limited, both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group, and Mr. Li Xiaoxuan, the controlling shareholder of the Company (the
“Guarantors”).

It is provided in the Facilities Agreement, among other things, that an event of
default will occur if any of the following takes place:

(i) Mr. Li Xiaoxuan does not pay on the due date any amount payable
pursuant to the Facilities Agreement and personal guarantee (the “Finance
Documents”);

(i)~ Mr. Li Xiaoxuan does not comply with any provisions in the Finance

Documents and if the failure is capable of being remedied, not remedied

within ten (10) business days of the earlier of (A) the Agent giving notice

to the Borrower, and (B) the Borrower or the Guarantors becoming aware
of the failure to comply;
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Any representation or statement made or deemed to be made by Mr. Li
Xiaoxuan in Finance Documents or any other document delivered by or on
behalf of any of the Borrower or the Guarantors under or in connection
with any Finance Document is or proves to have been incorrect or
misleading in any material respect when made or deemed to be made,
unless those circumstances are capable of remedy and are remedied
within ten (10) business days of the earlier of the Agent giving notice
of the misrepresentation, breach of warranty or misstatement to the
Borrower and the Borrower or the Guarantors becoming aware of the
misrepresentation, breach of warranty or misstatement;

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan is or is deemed for the purposes of any applicable law
to be unable to pay his debts as they fall due or bankrupt, suspends
making payments on any of his debts or by reason of actual or anticipated
financial difficulties, commences negotiations with one or more of his
creditors with a view to rescheduling any of his indebtedness, admits his
inability to pay his debts as they fall due or commits an act of bankruptcy;

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan enters into any composition, scheme, individual voluntary
arrangement or other arrangement with his creditors or has an interim
order made in relation to him, any person presents a petition or files
documents with a court or any registrar for his bankruptcy; and/or

Mr. Li Xiaoxuan repudiates a Finance Document or evidences an intention
to repudiate a Finance Document.

In case of occurrence of an event of default which is continuing, the Agent may,
and shall if so directed by the majority lenders, by notice to the Company: (i)
cancel all or part of the total commitments under the Facilities; (ii) declare that
all or part of the Facilities, together with accrued interest, and all other amounts
accrued or outstanding under the Finance Documents be immediately due and
payable; (i) declare that all or part of the Facilities be payable on demand
by the Agent acting on the instructions of the majority lenders; and/or (iv)
exercise or direct the Security Agent to exercise any or all of its rights, powers,
authorities, discretions or remedies under the Finance Documents.
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DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the charitable and other donations made by the
Group amounted to RMB17,908,000.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended 31 August 2021, the Company was not engaged in
any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim
of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatening
against the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 August 2021 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 164(1) of the Articles of Association, the Directors, secretary
and other officers and every auditor for the time being of the Company and
the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation to any
of the affairs of the Company and every one of them, and every one of their
heirs, executors and administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them,
their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or
trusts; and none of them shall be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or
defaults of the other or others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake
of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys or
effects belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe
custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys
of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or invested, or for any
other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in the execution of their
respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto; PROVIDED THAT this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of said persons.
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IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

The important events occurred since the year ended 31 August 2021 are
disclosed in note 40 of the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has reviewed and
discussed with the management in relation to the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company, the internal controls and financial report
matters, and the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance.
The annual results has been reviewed by the Audit Committee, together with the
Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
114 to 132 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued shares,
the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, was held by the public at all
times during the Reporting Period and as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young was appointed as the auditor for the year ended 31 August 2021.
The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer itself for
re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor
will be proposed at the AGM.

RECOMMENDATION TO CONSULT PROFESSIONAL TAX
ADVICE

If the Shareholders of the Company are not sure about the tax effect on the
purchase, holding, sale, trading or exercise of any rights attached to the relevant
shares of the Company, they are recommended to consult independent experts
for advice.

On behalf of the Board
Chairman

Li Xiaoxuan

China, 30 November 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures with a view to being a transparent and responsible
organization which is open and accountable to the Shareholders. The Board
strives for adhering to the principles of corporate governance and has adopted
sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and commercial
standards, focusing on areas such as internal control, fair disclosure and
accountability to all Shareholders to ensure the transparency and accountability
of all operations of the Company. The Company believes that effective corporate
governance is an essential factor to create more value for its Shareholders. The
Board will continue to review and improve the corporate governance practices of
the Group from time to time to ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board
in order to optimize return for Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 August 2021, the Company has complied with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested to the Board.

The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Group,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall strategic
development of the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitoring of the performance of the senior management. The Directors have to
make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the chief executive officer (Mr. Zhao Shuai) and the senior
management of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
consisting of three executive Directors, Mr. Li Xiaoxuan (the chairman of the
Board), Mr. Zhao Shuai (the chief executive officer) and Ms. Shen Chunmei, and
four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hu Jianbo, Mr. Kwong Wai
Sun Wilson, Mr. Chan Tung Hoi and Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter. During the year ended
31 August 2021, all Directors have given sufficient time and attention to affairs
of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably qualified for his/her position,
and has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/her
duties effectively and efficiently. Biographical information of the Directors are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial, business or
family relationship among the members of the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules to appoint at least three independent non-executive
Directors. In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications or financial management
expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules and the Company
has appointed four independent non-executive Directors representing more than
one-third of the Board and is in compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



EEELULBE
. A®
11 ABREEIPESSREIMES T
b T BRER MY 75 &t o
2. HBREY
21 RERTEBERHDENER AATR

2.2

RAZEZSZ L RAEREKBBERT
FEBRNBERTE-

rEBERTESENEMAAR )
TEEEHZRESEHES L B
BARRRMER - Fi  XERBBEER
Bk BXRER R NBRRBEE
B URESETKRIAAEERERN
FHEMEZ-ESSRMEEEHUMA
AEABRE T EEZBANERFT DR
RESEREZTILHES-

3. HilBE&E

3.1

M ESABZKERBEAEENREER
RET YEAKSEZREZEZ UK
R BRRAENERBABARNRE
RHEAUAESEFENER ETEZ
EBHEZEREZ TN EREURES
ENFE - TERAEE-NSZRILE
& o

4. BIIREXR

4.1

4.2

REZESHTEERBRBTREE
DERARRNEN M -REZESH
SR WABREMFFELHOET LR
HETEZRUHESSHE-

REZEERERABENHMITER
BESFETEL -RBITESEERE
MAEAS ETFZREMEHEBSZTLER
MES URERHESEDEZRRE
REABKR-REEZESTERRESS
BMEZTILRTEESTS MUK — 3

7 e

5 FEEHHEE

5.1

5.2

7N BUER & B A 7N & B 48 U (www.xingaojiao.
com)

ABR A R E B AT A BUR ) E B
FMAHEERE BEZTLER (W
BIUNREREESEAREFRTHN

[EXERREIAKE-

TEEBRS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

1.

Purpose

1.1

The purpose of this policy is to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board.

Policy statement

2.1

2.2

With a view of achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a wide range of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service,
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant and
applicable from time to time. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy and shall be taken full account of the benefits of
diversity on the Board when considering candidates.

Measurable objectives

3.1

The selection of candidates will be based on the Group’s
Nomination Policy and will take into account the Board Diversity
Policy. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and the needs of
the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect.

Review and Monitor

4.1

4.2

The Nomination Committee will review this policy in due course to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any required amendments to this policy and propose amendments
for approval by the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
this policy, including reviewing the composition of the board of
directors at least once a year, taking into account the benefits of all
relevant levels of diversity, and following this policy when making
recommendations for director appointments. The Nomination
Committee will also ensure that board diversity is part of evaluating
the effectiveness of the board.

Disclosure of this policy

5.1

5.2

This policy is published on the Group’s website
(www.xingaojiao.com).

A summary of this policy, together with any measurable objectives/
specific diversification objectives (if any) and progress made
to implement this policy, will be disclosed in the “Corporate
Governance Report” in the annual report of the Group.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &

115



116

TEEBRS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REBHE
1. BH
11 ZESNEETSRBEEAR REFT
BEEREEEITENESSRME
o

12 ABRRGRAZEESHFEHEMNEBERRR
RN ERERERERFER -

2. EEiZE

21 ZEESAMMEREARZENERZERE
(BEFRRIUTRE IRETESS
REASENZEESSRENEFT
B

oif
)

(a) 1 ;
) RABERBBETEREMIERH
TENRM SEBREBE,

© FARANEE KRABNOFER
BOEARNAMNER

d EBERHEMNSZTL BEET
AR Fie  WIERBBEER
HRER KR AEANRBESR

) BEIGHMZIFEERRE THAR
DREAWKIEEERER R

 ZESHESSFIHRENEM
HiEBE R

22 BRRZARIMNESSREARENRE
FTESSEMRERE HYARBEAD
ANASERAREMERRFNSR
PIHEAT

NOMINATION POLICY

1.

Purpose

1.1

1.2

The Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board
and advise the Board on the appointment of directors and the
succession plan of directors.

This policy sets out the main selection criteria and principles used
by the Committee in making any relevant recommendations.

Selection criteria

2.1

2.2

The Committee considers, include (but are not limited to)
the following factors when assessing candidates, and makes
recommendations on the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the
Board:

(@  Integrity;

(b)  Achievements, experience and reputation in China’s private
education industry and other related industries;

(c)  Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interests and
attention to the business of the Company;

(d)  Diversification of the Board in all aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

(e)  the ability to assist and support management and to make a
significant contribution to the success of the Company; and

() any other relevant factors as determined by the Committee or
the Board from time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
reappointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be
made in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and
other applicable rules and regulations.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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Nomination process

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Board members are invited to nominate candidates, if any, for
consideration by the Committee. The Committee may also nominate
candidates for their consideration, and the Secretary of the
Committee will then meet.

For the appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence
in respect of such candidate and make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval.

For the re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the
Board for its consideration and recommendation, for the proposed
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

For the procedures for shareholders to nominate any candidate
for election as a director, please refer to the “PROCEDURES FOR
SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETING” published in the annual report of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

Approval and review of this policy

Any future amendments to this policy must be reviewed and approved by
the Nomination Committee and submitted to the Board for approval.
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MODEL CODE

The Company has also adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors in March 2017.

In October 2021, Mr. Li, the chairman and an executive Director of the Company,
inadvertently breached Rule A.3(a) and Rule B8 of the Model Code by purchasing
the Shares during the black-out period which commenced on 1 October 2021
and shall end on 30 November 2021. According to Mr. Li, while he is fully aware
that there are restrictions for directors’ dealings in the Company’s shares and
had always been in compliant since the Company’s listing, he overlooked in this
occasion due to the fact that the Company has only recently changed its financial
year end date from 31 December to 31 August. Hence, the commencement
of the black-out period had been brought forward and coincided with the
beginning of the week-long National Day holiday in the PRC for the first time.
Due to his rare oversight, Mr. Li failed to instruct and remind his assistant who
is authorized by him to purchase the Shares at certain pre-determined prices of
the new black-out period to ensure his compliance with the Model Code. Prior to
executing any trades, his assistant failed to inform the designated director on his
behalf. As a remedial measure to avoid future reoccurrence, Mr. Li is committed
to attend training on Listing Rule compliance, director’s duties (including the
Model Code requirements) and corporate governance matters to be given by the
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, Hong Kong Institute of Directors
or other course providers approved by the listing division of the Stock Exchange.
In addition, Mr. Li offers to undertake not to trade in any of the Company’s
shares until he completed his training. In order to ensure the awareness of
his assistant or any other future third party who may assist Mr. Li in his share
dealings, the Company will adopt measures to simultaneously inform Mr. Li and
his assistant of the commencement of black-out period in the future. In order
to facilitate this process and ensure the effectiveness of these measures, Mr. Li
shall ensure that the Company is kept informed of the contact details of his
assistant or other future third party who may assist Mr. Li in his share dealings.

Save as disclosed above, having made specific enquiry with all Directors of the
Company, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code regarding directors’ securities transactions
during the year ended 31 August 2021.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Since their appointments, independent non-executive Directors have played a
significant role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at the Board
meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s performance. Their views carry significant
weight in the Board’s decision, in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear
on issues of the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional and industry
expertise and management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and management
so that all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account, and the interests
of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

The Board has four independent non-executive Directors with two of them,
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson and Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter, possessing appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and financial management expertise in
compliance with the requirements set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received confirmations of independence from each of the
existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent and
that they have met the specific independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

There is no change in information of Directors which is required to be disclosed
in this annual report pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) and 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Any newly
appointed Director would receive an induction package covering the Group’s
operations, businesses, governance policies and the statutory regulatory
obligations and responsibilities of a director of a listed company. The Directors
have been informed of the requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code regarding continuous professional development.
According to the records maintained by the Company, the current Directors
received the following training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company in compliance with the new requirement
of the Corporate Governance Code on continuous professional development for
the year ended 31 August 2021:

EERBREG gt /0% EER
BAIR LR E R HitERE#

Corporate Governance/Updates on
Laws, Rules and Regulations

Accounting/Financial/Management or
Other Professional Skills

HERE/ HEEE,

R S AR HRE B B A R SE§=

Attend Attend

Read Seminars/ Read Seminars/

EENF Name of Directors materials Briefings materials Briefings

BTEE Executive Directors

EZHELE Mr. Li Xiaoxuan y Y Y y

HAD K4 Mr. Zhao Shuai y Y Y y

BHEB LT (R20205 Ms. Shen Chunmei Y Y Y y

8A2THEZR ) (appointed on 27 August 2020)
BUKHTES Independent non-executive
Directors

BREELE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson y y Y y

HEREE Mr. Hu Jianbo y y y y

RLBEE Mr. Chan Tung Hoi Y Y Y y

TrHRET Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter y Y Y y
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

MEETINGS

The Board meets to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and
financial performance of the Group from time to time. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of communications.

The Board will convene the board meetings at least four times a year.

The Board commits that once any Board meeting is held, it will ensure that all
Directors will be provided with relevant materials relating to the matters brought
before the meetings. They will have separate and independent access to the
senior management and the company secretary of the Company at all time and
may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense. Where
queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken to respond as promptly
and fully as possible. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
will be given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with the Articles, as
well as relevant rules and regulations.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are/will be
recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by the Board and
the Board committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by the directors.

Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting are/will be

sent to the directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on
which the meeting is held.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &

121



TEEBRS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

HZE2021F8A3MBLFEE - S EEREEE2EE  The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board

EBRRASHNENEECHEERIMOT and the general meetings during the year ended 31 August 2021 is set out
below:
HERE HERE
EEEERBAY BRAXERE
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
EEHR Name of Directors Board Meeting(s)  General Meeting(s)
HTES Executive Directors
T AL Mr. Li Xiaoxuan 8/8 11
RN & Mr. Zhao Shuai 8/8 11
BEMHmLZL Ms. Shen Chunmei 8/8 11
BIUFHITES Independent non-executive Directors
BREELE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 5/8 1/1
BRI e Mr. Hu Jianbo 8/8 1/1
PREEBEE Mr. Chan Tung Hoi 8/8 11
TR L Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter 8/8 1/1

* HREBRFBEAMEFTESRIEER14XBEHBUR * As the 14-day quarantine policy is implementated in Hong Kong and mainland China due to the

WEZE oL -HAEE BEBZTIRBER COVID-19 epidemic, Mr. Li Xiaoxuan, Mr. Zhao Shuai, Ms. Shen Chunmei and Mr. Hu Jianbo
SEBBGIFrEEFAEERRAS - attended the general meeting via video conference.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 August 2021, there is no change in information of
directors and chief executives of the Company.

Each of Mr. Li Xiaoxuan, Mr. Zhao Shuai and Ms. Shen Chunmei, being the
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a specific term of three years and automatically renewable. The
service contract of Mr. Li Xiaoxuan and Mr. Zhao Shuai commencing from the
Listing Date and the service contract of Ms. Shen Chunmei commencing from
27 August 2020, will automatically continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other,
which notice shall not expire until after the fixed term.

Each of Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Hu Jianbo, Mr. Chan Tung Hoi and
Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter, being the independent non-executive Director of
the Company, has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for an initial fixed term of one year commencing from the Listing Date and
automatically renewable, 22 December 2017, 26 August 2019 and 26 August
2019 respectively and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing by served by the independent non-executive
Director to our Company or with immediate effect following the notice in writing
served by our Company to the independent non-executive Director.

The above service contracts are subject to the retirement of directors by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles.

The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the Board and senior
management of the Company, whose biographies are set out on pages 49 to 56
of this annual report, for the year ended 31 August 2021 are as follows.

FEE (AR®T)

Remuneration band (RMB)

AE

Number of individual
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The Board has established (i) audit committee, (i) remuneration committee;
and (iii) nomination committee, with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the board committees which explain their respective role and
the authority delegated to them by the Board are available on the website of
the Company at www.xingaojiao.com and the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk. The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee pursuant to a resolution of the
Directors passed on 20 March 2017. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditors, review the financial statements and material advice in respect
of financial reporting, and oversee the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company. Their composition and written terms of reference are
in line with the Corporate Governance Code. As of the date of this annual report,
the audit committee comprises of three members, namely, three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu Jianbo, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson and Dr. Pang
Tsz Kit Peter, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson is the chairman of the audit committee.

The Group’s unaudited financial results for the six months ended 28 February
2021 and the audited financial results for the year ended 31 August 2021
have been reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the opinion that the
preparation of the relevant financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure has been
made. The audit committee has also reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and selection and appointment of the external
auditors. In addition, the audit committee reviewed the internal control of the
Group and oversaw the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group during the year end 31 August 2021.
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During the year ended 31 August 2021, two meetings were held by the audit
committee. The individual record of each member of the audit committee at the
meetings of the audit committee is set out below:

HERE

£ZE®

BRI

Attendance/

Number of

Committee

EEHR Name of Director Meeting(s)
BEEEE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 2/2
HEREEE Mr. Hu Jianbo 2/2
¥ FERIEL Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter 2/2

FNEES
ARABBER017FEIB20BERLFMEE S I 5T
VEARESEE FNZESNETEREANAE
HITESRARAEBAENETHNEZE (BEEY
FE ERESEFNLREESH (BEMRTBAHKL
HEEIZENEE) ) RAJTESNFHNLRE
EEeEHHEERE -FNZESENARKREEBE
HEFETEERTARIHNRE -REAFHRAH
FNZEESH=ZBREAR D—BHITES (F
ZHEE)RMBBILFHTESE (HEREER
BEELE) BEELEATHNZESERE -

HEVNFSANBILEFE FMEZEEERTE
EREREBAENTFEHEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 20 March 2017 with
written terms of reference. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments (including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment), and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. Their composition and
written terms of reference are in line with the Corporate Governance Code. As of
the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee comprises of three
members, namely, Mr. Li Xiaoxuan, an executive Director, and two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu Jianbo and Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson.
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson is the chairman of the remuneration committee.

During the year ended 31 August 2021, the remuneration committee reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management.
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During the year ended 31 August 2021, one meeting was held by the
remuneration committee. The individual record of each member of the
remuneration committee at the meeting of the remuneration committee is set out
below:

HEXE,

ZEg

EERE

Attendance/

Number of

Committee

EEHR Name of Director Meeting(s)

BEEEE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1

ZEEEE Mr. Li Xiaoxuan 1/1

R EE Mr. Hu Jianbo 1/1
REZES NOMINATION COMMITTEE

AABBER017FIABERLIREBREES 5]
VEORESHE -REEEZEENTERSEATHE
HNESESMER BEERAR TRZEEREZA
HBUMREREANESSHESENESAE
UBRFEREAFE LA -YEEEMNESTAER
BEESRHEEEZEN REEZEENTERSH
HEEBRZEA BEEFRAEERE ZELR-
RERBITENECRERBIEINESHE RS
ZEENARKREABEHZEFELEEARTE
BRXMWRE - BEXAEHRAH RREEEH=F
REMAK B—BHTEESZTZHEAERRMBBEL
FBTEERLBLERBREELEE T2 E4E
ABIREZEEXE-

HZE2021F8A3IALFE REZESERTE
EENRE RERMER-

The Company established a nomination committee on 30 March 2017 with
written terms of reference. The primary duties of the nomination committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis
and to recommend to the Board the suitable candidates for directors after
consideration of the nominees’ independence and quality in order to ensure
the fairness and transparency of all nominations. In identifying suitable director
candidates and making such recommendations to the Board, the nomination
committee would also take into account various aspects of a candidate, including
but not limited to his/her education background, professional experience,
experience with the relevant industry and past directorships. Their composition
and written terms of reference are in line with the Corporate Governance Code.
As of the date of this annual report, the nomination committee comprises
of three members, namely, Mr. Li Xiaoxuan, an executive Director, and two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Tung Hoi and Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson. Mr. Li Xiaoxuan is the chairman of the nomination committee.

The nomination committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, during the year ended 31 August 2021.
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During the year ended 31 August 2021, one meeting was held by the nomination
committee. The individual record of each member of the nomination committee
at the meetings of the nomination committee is set out below:

HERE

£ZE®

BRI

Attendance/

Number of

Committee

EEHR Name of Directors Meeting(s)
EE 0 Mr. Li Xiaoxuan 1/1
BEEEE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1
REL\EE Mr. Chan Tung Hoi 1/1
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. Wong Wai Ling, whose biography
details are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report. Ms. Wong Wai Ling has been informed of the requirement
of the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Ms. Wong Wai Ling has informed the
Company that she has taken at least 15 hours of training covering corporate
governance and accounting matters per annum during the Reporting Period to
comply with the requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her primary
contact person of the Company is Ms. Shen Chunmei, an executive Director.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the finance department,
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Company
and the Group for each financial year which shall give a true and fair view
of the financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company and its
subsidiaries for that period. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of Ernst & Young, the Company’s external auditor, on the

financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the authorized
external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of the
external auditors. The Company engages Ernst & Young as its external auditor.
Details of the fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young during the year ended
31 August 2021 are as follows.

AREBT T

RMB’000

% E AR Audit services 4,500
I E R Non-audit services -
4,500

EERMBHRRNEM
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 August 2021.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as
are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before them for approval. The management
provides all members of the board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are featured with a
defined management structure with limits of authority and well-rounded policies
and procedures, and are designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations,
to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets
of the Group. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
also recognises its overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
In addition, the audit committee also has the responsibility for reviewing and
assessing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. From the
Listing Date to the date of this annual report, the Company has adopted the
following policies and procedures and taken the following measures to improve
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
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In order to ensure the effectiveness of our risk management and internal
control system, the Company has established various management and control
procedures (the “Risk Management and Internal Control Procedures”) for
identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant risks associated with the
achievement of its operational objectives. The Company will conduct complete
the Risk Management and Internal Control Procedures with scientific analysis and
assessment, to recognize potential risk points. By virtue of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Procedures, the senior management of the Group reviews
and evaluates the internal control process, monitors any risk factors on a regular
basis, and reports to the Board on any findings and measures taken to address
such variances and identified risks. The Board, with the assistance of the senior
management of the Company, also conducts regular management meetings and
on-site inspections to check and monitor the potential risks associated with the
business operation and financial management of the Group.

With the integration of the real situation of the Company and various applicable
laws and regulations, the management of the Company can act in concert
to develop solutions towards the risks, to organize the business operation
systematically, and to monitor and mitigate possible risks. The Company also
requires all staff of the Group to comply with certain internal risk management
and internal control standards, and together build a regulatory environment
of risk control and standardized operation. In addition, the Company has also
established policies and procedures with clear segregation of duties applicable
to certain operating units to ensure the effectiveness of risk management
and internal controls. The day-to-day operation is also entrusted to the
individual department or school, which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance, and is required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board
or the audit committee. This process is subject to continuous improvement.

Meanwhile, with the assistance of the professional auditor, the audit committee
will supervise the Company’s revenue and expenditure for the financial and
economic activities, to further strengthen the functions of risk management, to
ensure the effective implementation of risk management and internal control
system and the Company’s standardized operation and healthy development. In
order to comply with the relevant requirements under the Corporate Governance
Code in relation to the corporate risk management and internal controls, the
Company has established an internal audit department for the purposes of
simultaneous updates between the corporate governance and the Code on
Corporate Governance and continuously improving the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal controls.

The Company has provided inside information training courses to the Directors
and senior management of the Company to ensure that all relevant facts and
circumstances that may have material effect on the share price of the Company
is assessed in a timely manner and that any material information which
comes to the knowledge of any one or more officers of the Group be promptly
identified, assessed and, if appropriate, escalated for the attention of the Board
to determine whether a disclosure is required.
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that sound and effective
internal control systems are maintained so as to safeguard the Group’s assets
and the interest of the Shareholders. The Board has developed its systems of
internal control and risk management and is also responsible for reviewing and
maintaining an adequate internal control system to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, with the assistance of the audit
committee, has conducted review of the risk management and internal control
and considered the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are adequate and being implemented effectively. Such review covered
all material controls, financial, compliance and operational controls as well as
risk management mechanisms.

The Board, with the assistance of the audit committee, has also reviewed
and was satisfied with the adequacy of the Company’s resources, the staff's
qualifications and experience, the training courses and the related budgets in
accounting, internal review and financial reporting functions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more member(s) of the
Company (“Shareholder(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board of the Company by mail at 25/F, Tower A, Global
Trade Center, No. 36 North 3rd Ring East Road, Dongcheng District, Beijing,
PRC, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing
them to the Board of Directors of the Company (Board of Directors) by mail at
25/F, Tower A, Global Trade Center, No. 36 North 3rd Ring East Road, Dongcheng
District, Beijing, PRC or by email ir@xingaojiao.com. The investor relations
department of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions and
inquiries, to the chief executive officer of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the Memorandum and the Articles on 20 March 2017,
which has been effective since 20 March 2017 and the Listing Date, respectively.
There has been no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 August 2021.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely and effective
communication with the Shareholders of the Company and investors. Therefore,
the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
the investors and the shareholders of the Company receiving accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circular. The Company also publishes all corporate
correspondence on the Company’s website at www.xingaojiao.com. The Board
and senior management of the Company maintain regular dialogues with
institutional investors and analysts from time to time to keep them informed
of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. Members of the
Board and the Board committees will attend the annual general meeting of the
Company and answer questions raised during the meeting. Separate resolutions
would be proposed at the general meeting on each substantially separate issue.

The Company Secretary of the Company would explain the procedures for
conducting poll before putting a resolution to vote. The results of the voting by
poll will be declared at the meeting and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (REVISED VERSION)

The Board has adopted a revised policy on the payment of dividends (the
“Dividend Policy”) on 30 November 2021. The Dividend Policy aims to set out
the principles and guidelines that Board intends to apply in relation to the
declaration, payment and distribution of dividends to the Shareholders. Details
are disclosed as follows:

1.

PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES

1.1

Subject to the Cayman Islands Companies Law and the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), the Board
of the Company has absolute discretion on whether to declare and
pay dividends. Declaration or payment of dividends by the Company
is also subject to the applicable laws and regulations including the
laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Dividend Policy of the Group

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

The Board determines the form, frequency and amount of dividends
based on the Company’s financial results, general financial
conditions, future operations and earnings, capital requirements,
capital adequacy, statutory fund reserve requirements, cash flows,
contractual restrictions, future business prospects, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends, interests of the
Shareholders of the Company and any other factors that the Board
considers relevant.

The Board currently intends to recommend an annual dividend of
not less than 30% of the profits available for distribution earned by
the Company in each financial year.

In any event, a dividend may only be declared and paid out of the
profits and reserves of the Company that are lawfully available for
distribution (including share premium), and in no circumstances
may a dividend be paid if this would result in the Company being
unable to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Shareholders may declare dividends by ordinary resolution in
general meeting, but no dividend may be declared in excess of the
amount recommended by the Board.

Any future dividend payments to the Shareholders will also depend
upon the availability of dividends received from the subsidiaries of
the Company. Regulations in China may restrict the ability of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries to pay dividends to the Company.

REVIEW OF THE POLICY

The Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the Company’s
financial and cash flow position. The Board will continue to review the
Dividend Policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount, if at all, for any given
period.
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B M % BRI S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of
China New Higher Education Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China New Higher
Education Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 141 to 259, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 August 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 August 2021, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.
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EECBITAREREM R ER 7S HF#FEA  We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities

AENEF-—GHHRANEME BRELEERE

for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,

ARNET- R EENEBHEBREHUTELEDES  including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the

EHRAMBERREANERRARMETIEMEA  performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks

BF-BEENEFREF (EEAEELUTEEMA  of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of

THERINGER BESHMEMES T H|RERE  our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters

REGFERRERHTER below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Key audit matter
BEENSE

Business Combination

EHEH

During the year ended 31 August 2021, the Group completed acquisition of
Lanzhou College of Information Science and Technology (“Gansu School”)
at total consideration of approximately RMB670.2 million. The accounting
for the acquisition involved significant judgement of the management for
the purchase price allocation mainly in relation to the valuation of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets, and the
remaining goodwill balance. The Group engaged an external independent
appraiser to perform the valuation.

BE2021F8ABLEE EXEEUARENARKOI02EE
AEBEBBEMNGEERNEER ([HREER]) - ZWBNSE
BEYREEBHBEERIBNEANE TEZE@BYE BE
REE REVE CTREEERS THELASNEE - EEE
ZEEINERE LA EITEE -

Information about the acquisition was disclosed in Note 3 Summary of
significant accounting policies — Business combinations and goodwill and
Note 32 Business combinations to the financial statements.
EREZWBNERBENMBRRWNIIEA ST HRME—F
BEHRBEURMWERESF S -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EENETNNEERRETSE

The audit procedures, among others, included the following:
B RFEEATSEE:

° Evaluated management’s future cash flow forecasts and
the process by which they were drawn up;

e HHEEEMNARREREV|IRZZEIN
HIFTBRE

° Involved our internal valuation expert to assist us with
assessing the competency, capabilities and objectivity
of the external appraiser, reviewing the methodologies
and the assumptions by reference to the historical
experience and the available market information; and

e HMEARLERRBYPESTAIEGLERD
EE BOAREBM USZBEFLRETAT
SERNBRERIERRBR R

° Checked the accounting for preliminary allocation of the
purchase consideration.
e REBEREBENULSILSHERE-
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Key audit matter
BREHEE

Goodwill Impairment

& (8

The Group recognized goodwill in an aggregate of RMB371.6 million as at
31 August 2021 arising from a series of acquisitions, which were supported
by an annual impairment review required by HKAS 36. Management’s
assessment process involved significant estimates and judgements,
including:

R2021F8A31H EEEBIAR—RIIWBMELENDESH
ARBINOBE T HARBEBSTEAERREETH
FEREEHTFUMMEE EEBNTGEBESRERGT RHE
BiE:

° the expected cash flow growth assumptions used in the Group’s most
recent budgets for the next five years approved by the management
including future industry development, pricing strategies, market
supply and demand, and gross margins;

s EEEBHANESEBEARIFENEEPEANERRE
NEERRBR BERRTERR TERK TmHEHRE
EFZE;

° the growth rate used beyond the period covered by the budgets; and

e BHEEREPHEMANERE IR

° the discount rates and long term growth rate applied to future cash
flow.

e ERARARBEETRENFTERRRHBRZ

Information about the accounting estimates and disclosures related to the
impairment assessment of goodwill were disclosed in Note 3 Summary of
significant accounting policies — Business combinations and goodwill and
Note 17 Goodwill to the financial statements.
FEEFAANERRERERENAERANEEEERER
MBBRNISEA ST HRME - EBFEHREEURMZE7
& o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENNMEEBRESSER

The audit procedures, among others, included the following:
EtERFEEUTRE:

° Evaluated management’s future cash flow forecasts and
the process by which they were drawn up;
e HEEEENRRAESREB/ARHEBTER;

° Assessed the key assumptions by checking against the
historical trend and industry index;
e BERYRBEBERITEEHTGHEAERR

° Assessed the actual performance in current year against
the prior year budgets to evaluate historical forecasting
accuracy;

e HRIFEBREFGAFEMEMRRER UG
BT TR MR TR

° Performed sensitivity analyses on the forecasts;
o  HRBABETHRED M

° Involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the methodologies and the discount rate and
long term growth rate used by comparing to the industry;
and

e HERNNAEERBAETEMEEBHBHES
FEANFEUARTEZRRAEREER R

° Evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
regarding the goodwill impairment testing.

e HEEEEHEHBBNENREEETENS
Dt
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Key audit matter
BREHEE

Income Tax

FriZ#

As set out in note 11 to the financial statements, according to the
Implementation Rules for the Law for Promoting Private Education, private
schools for which the school sponsors do not require reasonable returns
are eligible to enjoy the same preferential tax treatments as public schools.
The preferential tax treatment polices applicable to private schools
requiring reasonable returns are to be separately formulated by the relevant
authorities under the State Council.

MBI BEBRERMTNAE RE(RBBABEREZEREHND -
BREBEFAERGEONFNRHERGERZZIHAPER
HENRKEEFE -BEBRTEHBERMESTHEEAR
ZRGELHRRPNERVHEREBRSTBEREK -

No corporate income tax was provided on the income from the provision
of formal education services by Northeast School, Central China School
and Gansu School (collectively the “PRC Private Schools”). In accordance
with the historical tax returns filed to the relevant tax authorities, the PRC
Private Schools did not pay corporate income tax for the income from formal
educational services and have enjoyed the preferential tax treatment since
their establishment. As a result, no income tax expense was recognised for
the income from the provision of formal educational services by the PRC
Private Schools during the year.

EEBTEFRRLER EFERRHREER (BB [HERM
BERNBEHEEHERBEASNWRAGTREERSES -REMD
FEVBHERINBEATRTR PERHERLARARER
BERBIFBUABMNEEMREHR BERIUR—BEZEH
WEEFE A RFRALEFRTERHERREZEHER
BISWABRMEHASX

There were significant judgements involved in management’s analysis and
assessment, such as the assessment on the possible outcome of the tax
provision based on historical experiences and interpretation of the relevant
tax laws and regulations in respect of the preferential tax treatment enjoyed
by the PRC Private Schools.
EEENONMRAGIRERAE GIHNRERES SBTHB
BREENAERER UREFBETERHERZENHKERRS
BHMEBEBERERNERE-

Information about the income tax was disclosed in Note 3 Summary of
significant accounting policies — Income tax and Note 11 /ncome tax to the
financial statements.
FEFREBHNERNBENMBRRMIIEAS T HEHME -
BRHURMENAZH -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENNMEEBRESSER

The audit procedures, among others, included the following:
EtRFEEUTRE:

Discussed with management to evaluate their
interpretation of the tax laws and their assessment of the
tax obligations of the schools operated by the Group for
the current year;

HEBEENR FEREHREINBERAEE
EEAFEKEERNMABR BHEHTME

Evaluated management’s assessment on the application
of preferential tax or applicable tax rate to the respective
schools;
A EEEYSEREAEERERERBE
B REA4

Examined the historical tax filing returns filed to the
relevant tax authorities;

EEMEBENBRERINBEANRF R,

Discussed with the Group’s external PRC legal advisors
to understand their view with respect to the interpretation
of the existing applicable laws which would have impact
on the applicable tax on the respective schools; and
HEEENTENMCEEBERN® THREEY
ROTEREENBENEEY 25 L2ESHRE
RINVBABBEEEEZE R

Assessed the eligibility of the preferential tax treatment of
schools with the assistance of our internal tax specialist
by reviewing the applicable tax laws and regulations,
any new policies or rules, and historical tax returns
filed to identify if the management’s understanding and
interpretation could be supported.
EESENANBHBERNGY T BREEEA
B BCE R AR AR R R B AR IFHE
MESERRLE FHERNBREESFBER
LERAREUFAEEEBNIEMRRMERE-
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Key audit matter
BREHEE

Revenue Recognition

VONTd

Revenue mainly comprised the tuition fees and boarding fees from students,
and these fees are collected through the official payment channels at
the beginning of each academic year. Students’ identity and applicable
program are registered with the relevant education authorities. Tuition and
boarding fees are calculated by reference to number of students and the
annual fee of applicable program for the academic year, and are recognised
proportionately over the relevant year of the applicable program. For
the portion of tuition and boarding fees received from students but not
recognised is recorded as deferred revenue. Given the significant amount
and volume of transactions and the risk of overstatement of revenue, we
considered it a key audit matter.

BAZTZREBLEEERABFEAN ZSWARSETHER
EREAXARERDN -BLENEHREAREBRECREBRHE
ERBT -BERAIBENZSRZEFNELYERERARE
NEEBXE YNEAREHBFERLABIANR SWEN
REANBLEBERSTBEEDITFTAELERA - ZRETEZWN
SHEREEEARBTARANEAR EEREAERETSE.

Information about the revenue recognition was disclosed in Note 3 Summary
of significant accounting policies — Revenue recognition and Note 6
Revenue, other income and gains to the financial statements.
FERABINERRBERV B RRWIIEA ST HRE -
WAEZRMTOMA - Eftt 722 R 1Z 75 o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENNMEEBRESSER

The audit procedures, among others, included the following:
EtEFEEUTRE:

° Understood the basis of revenue recognition and the
overall transaction process and procedures adopted by
the management;

. THREEBEMNBARREEREGARZ B
BRER;

° Tested management’s key internal controls in relation
to revenue receipts process made through the official
payment channels;

e MEAREBEFRBEXIXNHEENKRANE
EER R B E TN

° On a sampling basis, reviewed and checked the
relevant supporting documentation including the student
payment records, official student records registered
with the relevant education authorities, and the payment
remittance receipts of tuition and boarding fees;

e MEVEBEIEMENH (ERBLEHERE R
ERHAMBIMNEANBERERZFE
ERFEENERKE) ETEHARRE;

° Checked the amount of deferred revenue and the revenue
recognised in the year; and

s MEEEWASHERREFRBERNBA R

° Checked the related disclosures.

e BEMBRESZE-
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BRFHROHEMLESR

BARESAHHAMENAESE - HMERNERE
HNFHNER TEEGFEUBRRRTENX
HERE -

ESHGEMBBRRFLNERLBEREAME
B MESTEHHMERNBREARANKIE

A
ffg ©

HRESERGEUBHREAMS EENETRME
HtER tMERAMENETRESMBE/RSE
FELEEERERTRBNENFEERATRTA R
UFFHEERERRL -MEESERCETHNT
ERREMENHBEAERRL  FLZARER
BAEE-plt EEHAEHRE-

EENGEVBRRAXKENER

BAREFSAEERBEEBSTMASHEMNE
BUBHRELENREBAARANKEER  HR
HEMAFPHRRIEANGEUBHRE RESE
EHRUGEVBRRBLENEEANDERE U
EZEGEMBBRRAEFEHNKFRERM
BEHMNERERRL -

EREGEUBHRRE ELANESALTNL
EREEFECENRE TRBEEBFELEREN
EH(NMER) RIEBEAVESHEEEEFR
PIFILEE  FRRI 2 IS E|EM BRI THIIE
BRARAUSERERERNETE-

EREEEHPERAESEIREEEES
MBERERFNEE
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EENEEACERENERS U BBRRERM
EIEFEHARKFRAERMERNERNBERR
MoABERHBEESERNRBMRE - A HEE
BEERREE RUUMAERMLARZ TS
MARABENRARHEMTEMATEEHEE
EREE-

OTHER
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Qur report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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ELHREREEEN (HPEE) EFtmsral&EE -
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HARBYRBMBENESREARAREE
%o

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lawrence K.W. Lau.

BB EIEREAT Ernst & Young
BEETE Certified Public Accountants
BB Hong Kong
202111 A30H 30 November 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

L ON

HERA

EF

H A Uit ] 8 &
HERDEHAX
THRAX
HAbpA
Bl & R A

B B A1 728

Fr&®iR <

£/ HRE

LT AL HEAS:
BATERAA
e RS

BRARAEBERKRREEERER

EXN(AR®T)
-/ HREF

BwE(AR®T)
—F HREF

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF

THE PARENT
Basic (RMB)
— For profit for the year/period

Diluted (RMB)
— For profit for the year/period

BraE

Notes

11

13

B ZE2021F H ZE2020F
8A3THLEE S8A3ITHILENEA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AR®T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,497,455 721,644
(830,292) (432,997)
667,163 288,647
317,978 74,678
(20,245) (10,476)
(84,638) (42,308)
(60,300) (10,512)
(142,103) (76,388)
677,855 223,641
(86,058) (26,546)
591,797 197,095
567,824 174,909
23,973 22,186
591,797 197,095
0.36 0.11

0.34 0.1
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e HWERB0FANIBLERE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

B ZE2021F H ZE2020F
8A3THLEE S8A3ITHILENEA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AR®T T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
F HRER PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD 591,797 197,095
Hit 2 HE W= OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REZBEBETIEEHI2ESE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEarHEMtEEKE: THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO
PROFIT OR LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS:
BREMERRNVELZ5E Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements 36,315 2,696
REZBBSTEEFI2ESE Net other comprehensive income
EanEtzEkzFaE that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods 36,315 2,696
F/HRAEMEE G HIBRFBE  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD, NET OF TAX 36,315 2,696
E/HREEWNERAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD 628,112 199,791
LT AL FEA: Attributable to:
BATEEA Owners of the parent 604,139 177,605
FERER Non-controlling interests 23,973 22,186
628,112 199,791
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 AUGUST 2021

HRBEE

M MERRE
BREYE
EREEE
kS
HibEPEE
EERIBREE
HiERBEE

FRBEERE

RBEE

BARE HtERFIER

Hib&EE

BAFEFABENEREE

BEAER
72 #3173
BERBSZEN

RBEERE

RBAEE

IEIEW A
HitE N FIARETER
FTERITR HE ALK
HEEE

AR E %

I FIE W 31

FEA3%i 18

RBEERE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Pledged deposits

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred revenue

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
Lease liabilities

Convertible bonds

Deferred income

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

BraE

Notes

14
15
16(a)
17
18
28
19

20

21
22
22
22

23
24
25

16(b)
26
27

20214 20204
8H31H 8H31H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AR¥ET T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
4,091,258 3,100,669
349,125 213,693
839,280 467,968
371,569 241,732
62,116 23,479
9,786 -
867,093 671,507
6,590,227 4,719,048
161,904 139,510

- 118,041
284,115 271,796
120,090 -
775,787 608,234
1,341,896 1,137,581
350,933 274,029
955,878 1,019,916
568,313 718,242
6,713 9,762
646,459 -
13,476 9,185
67,311 26,799
2,609,083 2,057,933
(1,267,187) (920,352)
5,323,040 3,798,696
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 AUGUST 2021

20214 20205
8H31H 8H31H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
et AR¥ET T AR¥ET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SFERTREMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 25 1,786,319 1,161,798
HEEE Lease liabilities 16(b) 1,588 5,996
IEFE IR 25 Deferred income 27 201,177 32,589
ELEFREESE Deferred tax liabilities 28 141,649 95,588
IRBEERETE Total non-current liabilities 2,130,733 1,295,971
EEFE Net assets 3,192,307 2,502,725
= EQUITY
BRAEEAELESR Equity attributable to owners of the parent
i Share capital 29 1,086 1,056
] Reserves 31 3,011,244 2,319,069
3,012,330 2,320,125
FERER Non-controlling interests 179,977 182,600
4 RE 2 Total equity 3,192,307 2,502,725
Li Xiaoxuan Zhao Shuai
=2  Bh
Director Director
S o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
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MEBRETARERBZ0IEANIBLEEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
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MEHWHEBEE
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ENFREHR

RETHMERETREFH

B Z2021F B ZE2020F
8H3TALEE 8A3IHIENEA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
Bt ARMT T ARBT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: 677,855 223,641
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 7 142,103 76,388
Interest income 6 (26,349) (9,837)
Other interest income from
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 6 (6,248) (1,7406)
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 8 131 134
Fair value losses, net
Convertible bonds 336 -
Revision of a lease term arising from
a change in the non-cancellable period
of a lease (142) -
Depreciation of items of property
plant and equipment 14 140,495 81,947
Depreciation of investment properties 15 6,165 3,555
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16 24,281 12,733
Amortisation of government grants 27 (18,734) (6,876)
Amortisation of other intangible assets 18 9,298 4,237
Impairment allowance of prepayments,
other receivables and other assets 8 2,154 2,094
Reversal of impairment allowance of
prepayment on investments 8 - (19,774)
Equity-settled share option expense 30 6,498 1,843
957,843 368,339
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
other receivables and other assets 4173 (31,114)
Decrease in other current assets - 394
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and
accruals (257,923) 153,829
Returns of government grants 27 (2,800) -
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue 39,730 (451,674)
Cash generated from operation 741,023 39,774
Interest received 23,457 9,837
Income tax paid (35,701) (4,085)
Net cash flows from operating activities 728,779 45,526
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
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CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Receipt of government grants for property,
plant and equipment
Additions to other intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Redemption/(purchase) of
wealth management products
Proceeds from disposal of
wealth management products
Decrease in payables for investment
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
for investments
Recovery of prepayments for investments
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issues of shares
Share issue expenses
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds
New bank and other borrowings
Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Principal portion of lease payments
Interest paid
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Payment of consideration payable

for acquisitions
Dividends paid
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits

Net cash flows from financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year/period
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR/PERIOD

B ZE2021F B ZE2020F
8H3THIEEE SA3IHILENEA
Year ended Eight months ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020
Bt AR® T AR®ET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(297,658) (131,018)

2,482 3,383

(36,760) (43,138)

25,698 2,330

(45,617) (5,172)

32 (471,655) (37,573)
118,041 (118,041)

6,248 1,746

- (30,000)

(202,212) 75,658

- 136,792

(120,090) 107,500
(1,021,523) (37,533)
207,475 276

(2,883) -

642,377 -
1,568,002 979,023
(1,481,229) (579,107)
(8,984) (5,790)
(153,468) (51,139)
(64,000) (297,000)
(84,380) -
(149,876) (114,041)
(12,319) 109,036
460,715 41,258
167,971 49,251
608,234 559,007

(418) (24)

775,787 608,234
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
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B Z2021F B ZE2020%F
8H3TALEE 8A3IHIENEA
Year ended Eight months ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020
HtaE ARBT T AR¥ET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 775,787 560,734
Non-pledged time deposits with original

maturity of less than three months

when acquired - 47,500

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
financial position 22 775,787 608,234

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
cash flows 22 775,787 608,234
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AEIREBEEHR
AATRR2016F7AHIREHRERFHE L A
EEMALAEREERAT - AAATF
1 3% = 5= #b 41k & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands e 2R X R R2017F4B19OR E B BB S
RBMAERAR (TR ERLEMe

RABAB—RREEZRAT - FR KAFR

EHMBAR (GBI AEE])EREHEA
RANE ([HEDREREHRBHERS -

BARHEQRANER
ADNAEEHBADHENT

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 8 July 2016.
The registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 19 April 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
principally engaged in rendering private education services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

et B R

=L AMREEDE

Place and date of

incorporation/registration and

Name operation

AEAZEEGERRERAT 201658858
(MBEAR)) (We wRw) F8/TEAH

Tibet Daai Huihuang Information and 5 August 2016, PRC/
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huihuang Mainland China
Company”) (Note (@), (b) and (@)

ERERAREREEBEARALT  2005F5H198

(K@K b)) hE/ HE R
Yunnan Einsun Education Investment Group 19 May 2005, PRC/
Co., Ltd. (Note (a) and (b)) Mainland China
EBIBER ([EMER]) 2005%8A11H
(HiEte) HE/ RER
Yunnan Technology and Business University 11 August 2005, PRC/
(“Yunnan School’) (Note (a)) Mainland China

BROTER/
ZfMBRAEE AAREGREEIE TEEH
Nominal value of Percentage of
issued ordinary/ equity interest attributable
registered share capital to the Company Principal activities
H# LE:
Direct Indirect

1,000,000% 7t 100% IRl R B EE R AR

(T£xl) %
United States dollar - 100% Rendering of technical and
(“USD") 1,000,000 management consultancy
Services
ARB(TARY]) - 100% REZR
34,900,9597T
Renminbi (‘RMB”) - 100% Investment holding
34,900,959
AR #16,000,0007 - 100% REHERH
RMB16,000,000 - 100% Rendering of education
Services

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEHESXEBER AT
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BARMELATNESR (F)
ARNAEEWBADHELT : ()

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

=L

Name

ENTEBXER [EMNER])

(Hit)

Guizhou Vocational College of Industry &
Commerce (“Guizhou School”) (Note (a))

TREREHEREARECLT

(HEt@R b))

Beijing Aiyinsheng Education Investment
Co., Ltd. (Note (@) and (b))

REEERER ((RLEBR))

(HiaR )

Harbin Huade University

(“Northeast School”) (Note (a) and ()

REMERRER ((REER)
AERADTEER]) (HiE)

Luoyang Science and Technology

Vocational College

(“Luoyang School”, formerly abbreviated
as “Henan School”) (Note (a))

ERAZEARBESR
(TERERI)) (K@)

Guangxi Yinghua International Occupation
College (“Guangxi Schools”) (Note (a))

ERREDIRBEZHKHETE
(TERER]) (Hite)
Guangxi Yinghua International
Occupation Middle School
(“Guangxi Schools”) (Note (a))

AR S B R

AHREERY
Place and date of

incorporation/registration and

operation

201267A83R
HE HEIR
3 July 2012, PRC/
Mainland China

2012108168
HE HEIR
16 October 2012, PRC/

Mainland China

2003F5A8228
HE HEIR

22 May 2003, PRC/
Mainland China

2013F7819R
HE HER

19 July 2013, PRC/
Mainland China

20061 H20H
HE HER

20 January 2006 PRC/
Mainland China

200648108
HE ER

10 April 2006 PRC/
Mainland China

ERTLE/
HEftRAEE
Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share capital

AR #1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000

A #300,000,0007T

RMB300,000,000

AR #21,372,0007T

RMB21,372,000

A %10,000,0007

RMB10,000,000

AR %33,000,0007

RMB33,000,000

AR #5,000,0007¢

RMB5,000,000

FRARERER DL

Percentage of

equity interest attributable

to the Company
E# &

Direct Indirect

100%

100%

100%

- 100%

- 73.91%

73.91%

100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

FEE

Principal activities

REHBRHE

Rendering of education
Services

REER

Investment holding

REHBRHE

Rendering of education
Services

REBBRHE

Rendering of education
Services

REHBRHE

Rendering of education
Services

REHBRHE

Rendering of education
Services
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Bt 1% 3R R Mt 5 82201 FE8A3ALEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

AEEHR (E) 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BERAMBATMNESR (&) INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
AABEEMBATNFEBOT : (F) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)
AMKL TSR BROTER/
% AHREELE ZfBRAEE AAREGREEINE TEEH
Place and date of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation/registration and issued ordinary/ equity interest attributable
Name operation registered share capital to the Company Principal activities
H#E LE:
Direct Indirect
ERAMEEERBERMER 20095108 26A AR #5,000,0007T - 100% REHERH
(TERER]) (Hite) HE/ RE R
Guangxi Qinzhou Yinghua International 26 October 2009 PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100% Rendering of education
Occupation and Technology School Mainland China Services
(“Guangxi Schools”) (Note (@)
Mt REER ([ERER]) 20101818 AR #3,000,0007T - 100% REHERH
(HiEte) HE/ RERY
Hubei Enshi College 1 January 2010 PRC/ RMB3,000,000 - 100% Rendering of education
(“Central China School”) (Note (a)) Mainland China services
BMNEEREZR ([HRER])  2002F11A22H AR 80,000,007 - 100% REHERH
(HiEte) HE/ RERY
Lanzhou College of Information Science and 22 November 2002 PRC/ RMB80,000,000 - 100% Rendering of education
Technology (“Gansu School”) (Vote (a)) Mainland China services
TREEERAENEERART  2014F6A17H AR #10,000,0007 - 100% 1t R
(TXRBE]) (HitaRb) HE/ PER
Beijing Lianhe Open Education 17 June 2014, PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100% Technology Services
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Lianhe”) Mainland China
(Note (a) and (b))
BN SHBERRBERDA 202128250 A R #300,000,0007T - 100% REZR
(HEtaRe) HE/ RE R
Zhengzhou New Higher Education 25 February 2021, PRC/ RMB300,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
Technology Limited (Note (a) and (b)) Mainland China
ERERANRELER 2011F12A318 AR #5,000,0007T - 100% REHERH
(TEEBEER]) (WiHe) HE/ RE R
Yunnan Einsun Science and Technology 31 December 2011, PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100% Rendering of education

College (“Yunnan Vocational School”)
(Note (a))

Mainland China

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEHESXEBER AT
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Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

Notes:

(a) The English names of these companies represent the best effort made by the
management of the Company to directly translate the Chinese names as the companies
do not register any official English names.

(b) Limited liability companies established in the People Republic of China.

(c) Northeast School is a subsidiary of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and, accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control
over it.

(d) Huihuang Company is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

During the year, the Group acquired Gansu School and Beijing Lianhe from
independent third parties. Further details of the acquisitions are included
in note 32 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for wealth management products
and convertible bonds which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The Group recorded net current liabilities of RMB1,267,187,000 as
at 31 August 2021 (31 August 2020: RMB920,352,000), included in
which were deferred revenue of RMB350,933,000 as at 31 August 2021
(31 August 2020: RMB274,029,000).
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21 RBEXE (F)
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

In view of the net current liabilities position, the directors have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the Group
and its available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.

Having considered the cash inflow from operations, the directors are
satisfied that the Group is able to meet in full its financial obligations as
they fall due for the foreseeable future. To mitigate any liquidity issues that
might be faced by the Group, the Group has obtained adequate banking
facilities from reputable financial institutions to meet its obligations as and
when they fall due.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. Should the
Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, and to provide for any further liabilities which might arise.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the financial
statements.

As set out in the announcement of the Company issued on 29 July 2020,
the financial year end date of the Company and the Group has been
changed from 31 December to 31 August to align the financial year end
date of the Group with the academic year of the schools operated by the
Group in the PRC, which ends in August each year. The corresponding
comparative amounts shown for the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of
cash flows and related notes covering a period of eight months from
1 January 2020 to 31 August 2020 are therefore not entirely comparable
with those of the current accounting period.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEHESXEBER AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 August 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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2.1

2.2
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(ili) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 are described below:

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting and provides guidance for preparers of
financial statements in developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement and
reporting financial performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition criteria for
assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in the financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

[ S

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2’

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?®

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Insurance Contracts®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®®

Insurance Contracts® °

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41?2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align
the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4
was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

158

CHEMAEEHREMNEBH B R
HEA (&)

AHMSERRARENZEERYBREE
Bl zE—FSERMT -

EBUBREENEI0RE LB B ERSE
2835 (20114 ) BT A MBARB B M BHREE
AlZE105E R B B 25 E B 55285K (201145F) 2
HERNEEREEHABEENASIEE QT
CENEEHESRANEEN T —BiE-
ZEBITAERRNBEEHABELNARE
ERNAZENEELERRABR —BER
B EREHRBIEBE - HRTEBR B
BHNEERG XEZFHELENREHEEE
UEBENREENZHELNTREE QT
HEZAR RREENEZTERRA -ZS
BT RBAEEER - S8 AEER
2016F 1A IR TERBMBRSERNEI0HR
EB ST ERI 5285 (20115 ) 2B T 4Ky LA
FRFENBHR MFORFINEXBHER
HBENIREEQAANETEETRERE
BT REE - R 2SI AT RIRE
EA-

BB MEEZAFES - FB S EREIY
SoERBMBREENETN FEUBRE
ZRELE R BB B RELRF1655 28]
FAREBMNREZRRIERERBRANRE R
BRREMETAPAEEELEMBRSE
BB FER BT ARE—HER AT
BERE AHHETCEREEREEZS
NEESRECERESBETSHREERERN
ERMNEZMEFTARREE ARERESEHSE
BRI EEEARECEEARBBESHNR
ERENHEEREELZRANREEZFH A
MR EZE o RSB R AFRE G
EEEREAXHFEENETEELERER
B MASKLETER - BERB A&
EENEARBEREEIBREBMBRS
ZAFSENWEFREETRE UHERHE
REFERE - ZEBETARATRERBREHY
R % RNERRF R EE SRR
BAMEAIEBRNZAE ZRREAFE
EREEHIEBECHETEBRRR 2R
E-HERASEEMNERRR XKD
RARR24E R R AT EBHR LI ZEB
AABREBARBEENER UEMBR
RNERERHTHANREEREHEEN
ERMIARAREERBNTE - ZSEF]
RR2021F1RA1B R 2 RARBENFEHBE
¥oUEEHER CERBASILRE
e

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a
temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and
shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
denominated in HKD and in US$ respectively. The foreign currencies
based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) as at 31 August 2021. If the interest
rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the
Group will apply this practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings when the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and
expects that no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a result
of applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of
the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects to measure the non-controlling interests at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired

set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
(CONTINUED)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is measured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower
than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 August. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
(CONTINUED)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its wealth management products and convertible
bonds at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — Dbased on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets, deferred
tax assets and non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)~ is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(il the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
(b)  (Continued)

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viiiy the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the parent of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it
is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (CONTINUED)

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

1.9% t0 12.1%

Over the shorter of

the lease term and 10%
19.4%

12.1%

19.4% to 32.3%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Electronic devices

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of an investment
property to its residual value over its estimated useful life of 50 years or
over the remaining lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised in the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the costs of the item can be measured reliably;
otherwise, the expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of
property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because
its use has changed, the transfer does not change the carrying amount of
the property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that property for
measurement or disclosure purposes.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five to
ten years.

Client relationship

Client relationship acquired through the acquisition of a subsidiary is
stated at cost less any impairment losses and amortised on the straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of five years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
(CONTINUED)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Leasehold land
Office premises

40 to 50 years
2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &

169



170

Bt 1% 3R R Mt 5 82201 FE8A3ALEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

3.

EXSEHHRME (&)

HE (&)
FEBESREA (&)

(b)

()

HERE

REERKB A UEEHRELNE
ERARERAEMERE-HENEE
REBEMR(SEEETHERIER)BMEM
FE W A0 B 22 B SR OE ~ BUR R B8 BUE R R
MASHEERRUREARRERGEE
ERTXWINEE - HERXETBER
SESERETENBERERNGTE
BERHEREHARBRAEBETER
BEREUZRLAE FRAKLEEXEN
SR THRRERINZNTEEE
MEEHRBENRNSESRG A
BARRS -

RAEHERENREER AREAER
FEafETsEE HAKERAESE
M AN EERRANRTE - RAH
AR HEEESHENEMRRAE
By BN 3 E XA AEREMRE D - 1t
Sh B EAER (BNEHEE - BER
HR2F (fINESILEZNEEFEHY
AREENRBESCL)RNBENRRE

ENEERTIGNEE)AIEHTEM
ERENREE
ERHHEE

AEESEHEERRRREARET
BERMAZYENEHAE (WEHE
Erm A B EEBI2EAHUT
TETESBERERNESR) -

EHEHENAEREEERARERE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

()

()

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of staff dormitories and office premises (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as other income in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption, the
Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. The Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEHESXEBER AT



EXSEHHRME (&)
RERHEERMEE (&)

wETE (&)
BRAFEFSAERZTHBEE (&)

ZENEEASEYETTHEBLERERA
$E*AE@%EWLAEMEMEMVX

BRER ${En+)\iaﬁﬁzﬁrﬂﬁéziiﬂ7lé
MEEZANEWRATREZRABIAR/HAM
WA e

RIEBRESMEE

@Eﬂﬁf‘%(éﬁ(ﬂui@}ﬂ)—lﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬂ’ﬂ—%ﬁ

DR -—ABLEREEN—I)ETIE
&ﬂ—:%&%ﬂi%iﬁﬁ (EAKEGEEUH
R RBER) ¢

s WHEBREEMSE
& 5 =

RERENEINEE

e AEECERHUMZREEMSERS
RENERN IRE-—BEIELZH]
EREBRERENERLT CAEZEH
XNEWRERETE=ZTNEH B
AEBECEZZEEENE RN AR
REH AOAEEL REFIREZ
HEEBAMIARKER BECER
ZEEEMNZESE-

EXARECERHEUNZEEEMBSREN
ENEMNSTIENZH ARFEREDN
REEEMBENERREKREREE M
TREZIREZBEENBAB I ARRE
B BWRERZHEEENEGE ZED
EREERRARERE2ERERA &
ZBEAT AKETEI-EHEBEEE-CE
BREERNMBAEERAIRMRAEEIRERE
FREENEES

&

BERHCOEREEFLERNEAEES
BEZREENRRAEEAEE R A E] <E’J
EeRETENBEESE:

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

This category includes wealth management products which the Group
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Interest income from wealth management
products classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primary derecognised (i.e. removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEHESXEBER AT



EXSEHHRME (&)

EMEERE (HF)
— M= (&)

BHERATENEREE E—REXT
THEERLERE YEEUTRESEAR
AHEEERNE HERATXFRNEL
BANEZRBRERESNEER -

E-—RE - 2RIEBYHRBEIAURIL
EREENEERR BHEE
BERAREESER2EAABE
EFBENEEE

BB - SRMIBEBYHRBEAUNRE
ERMEERR BYFERE
ERESREE BHBER
BEEZR2YRBEES
BHNEENE

FE=ER - RESAHEERENER
EE (ETRBERRKEE
HE) HEEBRBERESZR
EHENFEBENEE

=

BB

HRTEBREARERINGNEE AL
SERAEREERERTAMEARER DN
FEFLHRARE AEERABLCEIET
FHEEREFE - REBLEX A8EF
SEMEERARNSL MERSHREEH
REZPRHGFESERIABRBBE KL
EERBEABELFEBREREBEER
WRBEBAREERFEOAEMERZE L

EmAE
WHERR B

TREERIAERR RS EARQIFER
ABENEREE EXRERIEIKRE
(@A) °

FEzREENSRAFERARMABER
RERARENRE ABBREEERER
5 AR

FEENEREAEREAEMEMRE T
BRESRTRBITRAMER-

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 1 -

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 -

Simplified approach

For contract assets that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables, convertible bonds
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position,
net of transaction costs. Convertible bonds issued by the Company can
be converted into the share capital of the Company at the option of
the investor. The Group designates convertible bonds denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the Company as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. They are initially recognised
at fair value. In the subsequent measurement, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability shall be presented in other comprehensive
income, and the remaining amount of change in the fair value of
convertible bond shall be presented in profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Tuition and boarding fees received from college are generally paid in
advance prior to the beginning of each academic year, and are initially
recorded as contract liabilities. Tuition and boarding fees are recognised
proportionately over the relevant period of the applicable program. The
portion of tuition and boarding payments received from students but not
yet recognised is recorded as a contract liability and is reflected as a
current liability as such amount represents revenue that the Group expects
to earn within one year. The academic year of the Group’s colleges is
generally from September to June of the following year.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group
does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Other income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Service income and catering income are recognised at the point in time
when the services are rendered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Other income (Continued)

Income from sales of textbooks is recognised at the point in time when
ownership of the books has been transferred.

Donation income is recognised at the point in time when the ownership of
assets has been transferred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after
1 March 2018 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note 30 to
the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account
when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of
the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to
an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme managed by
the local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of the payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The Group has no obligation for the payment of retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in RMB because the Group’s
principal operations are carried out in Mainland China. The functional
currency of the Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated outside
Mainland China is Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") and the functional currency
of the subsidiaries established in Mainland China is RMB, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which those entities
operate. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising
on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Contractual arrangements

Certain subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of education services,
which falls in the scope of “Catalogue of Restricted Foreign Investment
Industries”. Foreign investors are prohibited to invest in such business.

The Group exercises control over these subsidiaries and enjoys all
economic benefits of certain subsidiaries through the Structured
Contracts.

The Group considers that it controls these subsidiaries, notwithstanding
the fact that it does not hold direct equity interest in the certain
subsidiaries, as it has power over the financial and operating policies of
the certain subsidiaries and receives substantially all of the economic
benefits from the business activities of the certain subsidiaries through
the Structured Contracts. Accordingly, the certain subsidiaries have been
accounted for subsidiaries during the year.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
these properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with
renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether
or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date,
the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the lease
(e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Income tax

Significant judgement is required in interpreting the relevant tax rules and
regulations so as to determine whether the Group is subject to corporate
income tax in respect of income from the provision of formal educational
services. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may
involve a series of judgements about future events. New information
may become available that causes the Group to change its judgement
regarding the adequacy of the tax liabilities. Such changes to tax liabilities
will impact the tax expense in the period that such determination is made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 August 2021 was RMB371,569,000
(2020: RMB241,732,000). Further details are given in note 17.

Provision for expected credit losses on other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for other receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings that have
similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next year which
can lead to an increased number of defaults in the education sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of conditions may also not be representative of a student’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s other
receivables is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not
in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in the production and provision of services, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output of the
asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of
the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/
or residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed
at the end of each year based on changes in circumstances. Further
details of the property, plant and equipment are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of education services in
the PRC.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reporting about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
information reported to the directors of the Company, who are the chief
operating decision-makers, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance, does not contain discrete operating segment
financial information and the directors reviewed the financial results of the
Group as a whole. Therefore, no further information about the operating
segment is presented.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

During the year, the Group operated within one geographical location
because all of its revenue was generated in the PRC and all of its long-
term assets/capital expenditures were located/incurred in the PRC.
Accordingly, no geographical segment information is presented.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

No revenue from sales to a single customer amounted to 10% or more of
the total revenue of the Group during the year.
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WA-Hitrzm RIEH 6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WADWT : An analysis of revenue is as follows:
B 220215 B E20205F
8H31H 8H31H
IEFE 1E\E A
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AR®ET T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEZFAEHZHA Revenue from contracts with customers
=5 Tuition fees 1,345,294 670,817
FEE Boarding fees 152,161 50,827
1,497,455 721,644
REEFEHZHA REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
() WKAZEEH (i) Disaggregated revenue information
HZE20215F HE2020F
8H31H 8H31H
WEFE 1E\E A
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REER Type of services
HE R Education services 1,497,455 721,644
i & T 5 Geographical market
R A i Mainland China 1,497,455 721,644
L ON AL Timing of revenue recognition
BERF M BEENRE Services transferred over time 1,497,455 721,644
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

6. WA -HtsrzmREsE (&)
REEFEHNZWA (K)
() WADEEH (&)

TRITRAREPERINVNBAS
BoREeHECRBREBADTANELER

6.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that was included in the deferred revenue

Al at the beginning of the reporting period:
B ZE2021F B ZE2020%F
8H31H 8H31H
ILFE 1EN\1E A
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
STAREEAEZWR AL Revenue recognised that was included
EERUWA in deferred revenue at the beginning of
the reporting period:

HER®E Education services 274,029 725,363

(i) BREH (i) Performance obligations

BHEBRBERHANEER BEE
NEBEBVRABEREEFANEAN-

BESANH 2EREENGEHEHK (K
ERHESER) NRZEREENT

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and tuition and boarding fees are generally paid in
advance prior to the beginning of each academic year.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at
31 August are as follows:

B ZE2021F B ZE2020%F
8H31H 8H31H
ILFE IEN@EA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEHKERABBRANSE: Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:
—FR Within one year 350,933 274,029
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WA -HttW=EKkEsE (&) 6.

REFEFEHNZWA (&)

(i) BHEE (E)

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

(CONTINUED)

(CONTINUED)

(i) Performance obligations (Continued)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

H At W 35 2 48 5

PR 7% U 28

RAT R B
BRAFEAABENERMEE
EENHEAMR S WS
REMEEERNEEN
MAEE W
HBEEMN N BEEEMNK

B

Bk E

B (BaE @)

HEER

BOBRERNTERERE

HAt

Other income and gain

Service income

Bank interest income

Other interest income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Gross rental income from investment
property operating leases:
Other lease payments, including fixed payments

Government grants

Catering income

Donation income (Note (a))

Sales of textbooks

Reversal of impairment allowance of
prepayment on investments

Others

B E2021F H ZE2020F
8H31H 8H31H
IFE IENE A
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
94,823 7,596
26,349 9,837
6,248 1,746
83,401 26,039
18,734 6,876
15,168 -
48,483 -
21,226 -

- 19,774

3,546 2,810
317,978 74,678

Kiit@  ZERIEBEATREEZRERR
EREMEINIBRENERZED
FENEFRERRF

Note (a): The amount primarily consists of external donations of electronic devices
and software related to teaching activities to promote integration between
industry and education and cooperation between enterprises and colleges.
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Bt 1% 3R R Mt 5 B22021FE8A3ALEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

7. WMERE
RMERAEDHMT :

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

RITERREMBERFE
HEREBEFE

I I A FEFABRN
TREENNERXRAE
B BAAER B

B ZE2021F B ZE2020%F

8H31H 8H31H

“FFE IEN@EA

Year ended Eight months ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020

AR T AREET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Interest on bank loans and other loans 149,121 75,983

Interest on lease liabilities 460 405
Total interest expense on financial liabilities

not at fair value through profit or loss 149,581 76,388

Less: Interest capitalised (7,478) -

142,103 76,388
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Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

BR %1 A% F 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEEBBRBRABANDENR, (5T T The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
BIEBEN:

BERANMX (TEE
EERRSITHRAE
BN (AaE9) ) -
TERFS
DR E Yz BRERX
RAKE BB

(EREMERETE)

ME -BERRBINE

REMERE
EREEERE
Hit B EE#H

e WS
BERRBGHEE

R AHEAGETEZ
HEFMIA

o B4 B % A
RAT A B W
SNEEZRROFE

AN FIR - At B WA R
HitEERERE
BORERMGFIRBERE

D EERFE:
AR E %
HEME MERRE
HEWEE

BZE20214F B Z2020%F
8H31H 8H31H
“FE WENEA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
BraE ARMET T AREET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Employee benefit expense (excluding
directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration (note 9)):
Wages and salaries 483,268 271,119
Equity-settled share option expense 5,016 1,770
Pension scheme contributions
(defined contribution scheme) 42,930 8,182
531,214 281,071
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 14 140,495 81,947
Depreciation of investment properties 15 6,165 3,555
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16(a) 24,281 12,733
Amortisation of other intangible assets 18 9,298 4,237
Rental income 6 (83,401) (26,039)
Government grants released 6 (18,734) (6,876)
Lease payments not included in
the measurement of lease liabilities 16(c) 94 101
Auditor’s remuneration 4,500 4,500
Bank interest income 6 (26,349) (9,837)
Foreign exchange differences, net 1,772 1,985
Impairment allowance of prepayments,
other receivables and other assets 2,154 2,094
Reversal of impairment allowance of
prepayment on investments 6 = (19,774)
Fair value losses, net:
Convertible bonds 26 336 -
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 131 134
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Bt 1% 3R R Mt 5 82201 FE8A3ALEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

EERRETHRAEHMH

RIELEMHRA - FB D AEBIZE383(1)@) -~ (b)
ORNEURAT (KEESNZER) R A
FOBWECE HREERESTHRAER
BT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year/period,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

B 220215 B E20205F

8H31H 8H31H

IEEE IENEA

Year ended Eight months ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020

ARET T AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

e Fees 1,037 726
H {th 3R BN - Other emoluments:

Fe RMRBEVER Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,535 1,023

RIBMABIEA Performance related bonuses 2,348 1,009

DRREL Tz BRERX Equity-settled share option expense 1,482 720

EBIRESFHEIMHER Pension scheme contributions 108 73

7,473 2,825

8,510 3,551

RBEFE BTESHIREOAEEHREMHR
RBMRBEALTNBRET SRR BRE
FRE-—SHBRARMBERRME0 -ZE
BRENATVTERARLBEHEBEE DREBE
HREBRBZRTER Mt ARKNFENB
BENETREEELANEZTRESITHRA
EMERE-

During the past years, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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9.

EERESTHRAEHM (&) 9.

A BAFHTES

RE/HBAXNFBLEATESENG
EWT:

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(A) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year/period were as follows:

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

HE0NFANALEE
Year ended 31 August 2021

e EER NREX 2 Rk
ik BNERN RAMBEAL  BREMX TR st

Salaries, Equity-settled Pension

allowances and Performance share option scheme
Fees  benefits in kind  related bonuses expense contribution Total
ARBTT ARBT T ARBT T ARETR ARBT T ARBT R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BRELE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 299 - - 55 - 354
HEREE Mr. Hu Jianbo 240 - - 45 - 285
RL/EE Mr. Chan Tung Hoi 249 - - 7 - 320
YrHREL Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter 249 - - 71 - 320
1,037 - - 242 - 1,279

HZE202058A31HENEA
Eight months ended 31 August 2020

E2c A= 3204 UREZ A2 RiNE
ik ENEN RAMBERAL  BRERX B @zt

Salaries, Equity-settled Pension

allowances and Performance share option scheme
Fees  benefitsinkind  related bonuses expense contribution Total
ARETFR AREF TR ARBF R AREFR ARETR AREFR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEEEE Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 212 - - 40 - 252
HEREE Mr. Hu Jianbo 160 - - 37 - 197
RL/EE Mr. Chan Tung Hoi 177 - - 52 - 229
PTHREL Dr. Pang Tsz Kit Peter 177 - - 52 - 229
726 - - 181 - 907

FRMEBEENBIFATESHH IR
(20205 1 £&) o

There were no other emoluments payable
executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).

to the independent non-
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Bt 1% 3R R Mt 5 82201 FE8A3ALEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

9. EERBEBTHRAEBEM (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(B) MITESE (B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HE0NF8ANALEE
Year ended 31 August 2021
He 2ER NREX 2 Bk
ik BENEN REEBTAL 2 BRENEX TEIHM st
Salaries, Equity-settled Pension
allowances and Performance share option scheme
Fees  benefitsin kind  related bonuses expense contribution Total
AR¥TR AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥ TR AR¥T R AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITES Executive directors
By Mr. Li* - 1,075 1,000 666 51 2,792
HEAD A& Mr. Zhao Shuai - 562 500 271 42 1,375
mEMZL Ms. Shen Chunmei - 1,898 848 303 15 3,064
- 3,535 2,348 1,240 108 7,231
EREREAQRDYPTES ESTSERE - . Mr. Li, who acts as an executive director of the Company, is also the chairman

of the Board.

BZ2020F8831HIENEAR
Eight months ended 31 August 2020
§& 2HR MRES T2 RikE
ik ENEAN REEBETA BRERX AR @t
Salaries, Equity-settled Pension
allowances and Performance share option scheme
Fees  benefitsinkind  related bonuses expense contribution Total
ARBF T ARBT ARBFR AR®TRT AR%TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
HITES Executive directors
o Mr. Li - 667 667 313 36 1,683
HERD LA Mr. Zhao Shuai B 333 333 222 36 924
REMZL Ms. Shen Chunmei - 23 9 4 1 37
- 1,023 1,009 539 73 2,644
F/HRN TBRZHREESSIHESTHRA There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
ENESRREHRZEMTENE - waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year/period.
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10. B REHFMES

FRA-IEBReHFHNEERE=2EF (2020
FWMEBES)  HFMEFRERN EXXHEI -
BTME (QRF =ZR)FAQXAESHK
BITRAENBESHFNEE2FAFHNFE
LU

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2020: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of remaining two
(2020: three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

B 220215 B E20205F

8H31H 8H31H

IEEE IENEA

Year ended Eight months ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020

ARET T AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

HE RUREYEAN Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,229 1,733
FRIRMEREIEA Performance related bonuses 900 933
DRz ERERX Equity-settled share option expense 972 666
BIREFHEIHR Pension scheme contributions 93 108
4,194 3,440

FHNFUTHENFESRFESTHRA
ENRESFNESHENT

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

[=3=F §¢
Number of employees
B ZE2021F B E2020F
8A3THLEE S8AIHILENEA

Year ended Eight months ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020

AR®T T AR®ET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

500,0017& 7t £1,000,00058 T HKD500,001 to HKD1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001 7t 21,500,000 T HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 7t £2,000,0007%8 T HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 - 1
2,500,001 7T £3,000,0007& 7T HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 1 -
2 3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10.

11.

TEBREFNES (&)

RBEFE CEOZEHFESRIZSTHR
AEBREHFHNEENAEDBTEHRHRBE R
HIERE FRE-—SPHFBEHRYBHRERM
AN ESEA-EREBHARERRE
ROEHEBREAFERREAHEE M
AAXRFEYBERRANSECHN L
EERFBRETHRAEBRSHFHEEMEH
WEBHEA-

Fr i ®
AADREHSHBAAANNEHBEM
RYBEREARECLT AU BAMD
FR8 8L o

HARAEERFALBEEMEETBEIRNE
BRENERBER RAEBREBREHR
FTREE-

RE(RBHRBREZERKH) ([EiK
PINHBEERAE RRERERETERS
BEH 9 EZHBERGE BREAR
EERETERSGEOR WERFERFM
ERNERGEREZZHARBERMERNB
WEESHE MEKKR TEEBRBARSE
TERARERCENRERBRNHBESR
FAREBERE -AM - BILEA ERLE
AT EETENER ERIRA-RE
RXTHBERBERNBEIRKE FER
MERBRERIURCEZZBERBEFE -
WER ERBERERABURARBEERE
BioEL  EMBRNFALEREREERK
ERBASURABIFAEHMAI -ZEER
BMARBDENMRFEFNMEER-RIBAEE
MEEBBROFE BRERQIMERE
REFMBIFEFNMEERNEBERBEEK
WEMBRUEEEREE  AERAFER
EERERBAERABRBLANEERS
BEBRFE-

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

11.

During the past years, share options were granted to the non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their services to
the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in note
30 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

INCOME TAX

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and accordingly is not subject to income tax.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had
no assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the
year.

According to relevant provisions of Implementation Rules for the Law for
Promoting Private Education (the “Implementation Rules”), private schools,
whether requiring reasonable returns or not, may enjoy a preferential
tax treatment. The Implementation Rules provide that the private schools
for which the sponsors do not require reasonable returns/schools are
elected as to be not-for-profit schools are eligible to enjoy the same
preferential tax treatment as public schools, and relevant authorities
under the State Council may introduce preferential tax treatments and
related policies applicable to private schools requiring reasonable returns.
To date, however, no separate policies, regulations or rules have been
introduced by the authorities in this regard. In accordance with the
historical tax returns filed to the relevant tax authorities, the PRC Private
Schools have historically enjoyed the preferential tax treatment since their
establishment. There was no corporate income tax imposed on the income
from the provision of above schools. As a result, no income tax expense
was recognised for the income from the provision of formal educational
services by above schools during the year. These schools also have not yet
elected to be for-profit or not-for-profit schools. According to the relevant
in-charge tax bureau, since the relevant tax policy for schools that have
not yet elected to be for-profit or not-for-profit is not yet announced and
if the school nature has not yet been changed, the schools could follow
previous corporate income tax exemption treatment for income from
provision of formal educational services.
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Fr&® (&)

REB(EREASEADAHEEEERAHR
WHEBENED) AEBMEEm M-
Eff -HE HEtERARBAERSHEE
EXNETEERERITIZFLWNESRD
EFEBHRB R -HE2021FE8A3BLEFEE -

BRRGALAARBEABEABREZRERRK
HERNERAR REEHERETEH
MERKAREZEERR URKEMMH
ETHBRAATEZZI%MNBELEFTEHRMN
RoAGEEETEABKRINEMER AR
BEREMB TSRS EMER -

RIE(PEARENMBECEMESE L) K
BRMKINIERECERIIBEREES
TREIRE BZEIR10% T EHMENR - ZHRER
2008F1 A1H B4 BE A RK2007F12831
HEBF -MPEARLRIERES I LRE
BB KWHE SRABEBHRBEE - HE
W RAEBRZERPE AR LB Q
T B2008F 1A THEMEELERR 2K KRS
BMTENB - ANEEE T K B2 5 R20205F
NEEBERIME 20200 Z2022FE A
HEBET R -

Hit i BERRFEFABADREAEEL
EAEREERENRITHRAR

11.

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

According to the Circular on Issues Concerning Tax Policies for In-depth
Implementation of Western Development Strategies, certain qualifying
entities of the Group that are located in Yunnan, Guizhou, Guangxi, Gansu,
Hubei Province and Tibet Autonomous Region engaged in encouraged
business are entitled to a preferential corporate income tax rate of 15%.
Huihuang Company was subject to the PRC income tax at an original tax
rate of 15%, which was subsequently changed to 9% under the Tibet
Autonomous Region’s preferential investment policies upon the successful
application by the Company for the year ended 31 August 2021. According
to the Preferential Policies for Key Pilot Zone of Development and Opening
Up (‘EZBIZBAMELERE") in Ruili City, Yunnan Province, certain
subsidiaries located in Ruili are entitled to a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 9%. Other entities of the Group established in mainland China
are subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. Certain subsidiaries of the Group
obtained the Certificate of Resident Status of Hong Kong in 2020, the
applicable rate is changed to 5% from 2020 to 2022.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

BZE2021F B E2020F
8H31H 8H31H
IEFE EN\EA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AR¥T T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BN &R Current
F/HAXH Charge for the year/period 82,466 32,697
IEFE (K7 2E28) Deferred (note 28) 3,592 (6,151)
F/HAREL KA Total tax charge for the year/period 86,058 26,546
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1. T8 (&)
BAATREABIMBARFMEDLER
) 35 58 B SR B 0 BB AT % FIIE PR A9 8 58
THRERBRSENHERIHE UR
R REERBRNYENT

11.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the statutory tax rates to the effective tax
rates, are as follows:

BRBE AR R

BEEB R ENHRIA
BEENNEHEEETH
BB R

FH B A B BE A S TR B EE A
BRI zEHBREE

MBLFE
BRBELAAREZ RN
UREHENELSEERE

%
)

B8 5140 BR o B B 88 2 B AT 3
XHELENBIRE SR

CEEABTHRERIESSE
RERNBIEBER
N ERER

BASEERNRITEN
BiIE W

Profit before tax

Tax at statutory tax rate

Lower tax rates for specific provinces or
enacted by local authority

Effect of withholding tax on earnings
remitted and anticipated to be remitted
by subsidiaries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Recognition of deferred tax assets related to
previously unrecognised deductible
temporary differences

Tax credit arising from additional deduction of
research and development expenditures of
PRC subsidiaries

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

Tax losses and deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate

B 220215 B E20205F
8H31H 8H31H
“FFE WEN1EA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AR T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
677,855 223,641
169,464 55,910
(80,684) (19,227)
6,712 7,278
(92,951) (125,971)
83,429 107,660
(3,351) -
(1,505) -

(575) (4,231)

5,519 5,127
86,058 26,546
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13.

iR E

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

FH-ESRZTERARE0.0545T Interim — RMB0.054 (2020: RMB0.042)

(2020%F : AR¥50.0427T)
EERB-EREER
AR #0.0837T (20205 : &)

per ordinary share
Proposed final — RMB0.083 (2020: Nil)
per ordinary share

12. DIVIDENDS
BZ2021% HZ2020%F
8H31H 8H31H
IEFE WENEA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARBT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
85,620 64,726
131,623 -
217,243 64,726

ERRERBREASADARTALER
FAFAG LHARETEE.

BAREERRREAERAEN

BREAZINCSEDNIREFAIQAAZER
B% 3R FE 4L 5% A & F X1,578,283,1178% (2020
:1,541,108,4860% ) D BT EERMNEF Y
HEtHE-

BREFRANSEDRBEFAFATEER
BREREMEEFNGFE - FTERAAHESERM
BYO9BAFTESRERBAMANFAC
BRTNEBRBE URBREBRMNET
HERMERBEENNEBERPRIFERET
ERAEEREBRBEEASRERL BT

13.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,578,283,117 (2020:
1,541,108,486) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

13.

g;%ﬂ%iﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁi@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ
- (CONTINUED)

BREFARBERANVAEDER:

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

B ZE2021F B ZE2020%F
8H31H 8H31H
“FFE IEN@EA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AR T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZX Earnings
BREREARBRFE2FNDT  Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
TR IR REL SR the parent, used in the basic earnings
per share calculation: 567,824 174,909
- aTBBRESNERSTE Add: Impact on profit or loss from
convertible bonds 4,316 -
NBaHRKRES DI FEEERR Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
B QA% ERRERESER the parent before fair value losses on
convertible bonds 572,140 174,909
&vig S Q=]
Number of shares
B ZE2021F H E2020F
8H31H 8H31H
IFFE IEN@EA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
AR®T 5 ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000

i &) Shares

REREABATEZE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
R ETEER in issue during the year/period used in
IEFITE the basic earnings per share calculation

e T ERMEFIE :  Effect of dilution — weighted average number of
ordinary shares:
Share options

Convertible bonds

B
R E 2

1,578,283,117

1,994,559
112,533,792

1,641,108,486

437,462

1,692,811,468

1,5641,5645,948
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

14 ME - BERXE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
20218 A31H 31 AUGUST 2021
BT REXE RE GERELE ETHE EEIR @zt
Leasehold Motor Furniture and Electronic Construction
Buildings improvements vehicles fixtures devices in progress Total
ARETR ARETR ARBTR INGL S ARBTR ARETR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M2020F9A18 - At 1 September 2020:
KA Cost 2,914,777 7,730 14,376 257,111 126,531 158,684 3,479,869
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation (200,667) (2,232) (10,827) (99,573) (65,901) - (379,200)
EETE Net carrying amount 2,714,110 5,498 3,549 158,198 60,630 158,684 3,100,669
R2020F9A818 - At 1 September 2020, net of
BMBRITE accumulated depreciation 2,714,110 5,498 3,549 158,198 60,630 158,684 3,100,669
HE Additions 25,694 1,199 1,083 50,875 19,423 267,889 366,163
BRI B AR (Ai£32)  Acquisition of subsidiaries
(iote 32) 723,786 - 295 30,522 11,138 32,819 798,560
e Disposals = = (452) (1,868) (293) = (2,613)
ERFRENE Depreciation provided during
the year (74,891) (2,092) (1,183) (38,323) (24,006) - (140,495)
ERBEEIR Transfer from construction
in progress 56,745 - - - - (56,745) -
ERERENE Transfer to investment properties (31,026) - - - - - (31,026)
R2021E8H318 At 31 August 2021, net of
BHNREFFE accumulated depreciation 3,414,418 4,605 3,292 199,404 66,892 402,647 4,091,258
R2021E8A31A At 31 August 2021:
B Cost 3,689,976 8,929 15,141 334,194 153,357 402,647 4,604,244
ZiE Accumulated depreciation (275,558) (4,324) (11,849) (134,790) (86,465) - (512,986)
RETE Net carrying amount 3,414,418 4,605 3,292 199,404 66,892 402,647 4,091,258
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

14 Y% -BERKE ()
202058 A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
31 AUGUST 2020

BT HERE RE GEREE ERE ERIR @it
Leasehold Motor Fumiture and Electronic Construction
Buildings improvements vehicles fixtures devices in progress Total
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2020F1A1A : At 1 January 2020:
BA Cost 2,812,605 5,050 18,613 251,718 123,779 184,257 3,396,072
ZiIE Accumulated depreciation (158,045) (1,060) (10,616) (75,979) (60,440) - (306,140)
REFE Net carrying amount 2,664,610 3,990 7,997 175,739 63,339 184,257 3,089,932
W2020F1818 At 1 January 2020, net of
BNRESHE accumulated depreciation 2,654,610 3,990 7,997 175,739 63,339 184,257 3,089,932
HE Additions 16,838 720 134 6,186 9,597 66,044 99,519
KE-EHEAR Acquisition of a subsidiary - 1,960 23 121 911 - 3,015
3 Disposels - - (3,303) (125) ] - (3517)
HRGHERE Depreciation provided during
the period (42,622) (1,172 (1,302) (23,723) (13,128) - (81,947)
EREEEIR Transfer from construction
in progress 85,816 - - - - (85,816) -
ERERENE Transfer to investment properties (532) - - - - (5,801) (6,333)
12020F8A318 - At 31 August 2020, net of
BMBRIHE accumulated depreciation 2714110 5,498 3,549 158,198 60,630 158,684 3,100,669
RO00E8831R : At 31 August 2020;
BA Cost 2,914,717 7,730 14,376 257,111 126,031 158,684 3,479,869
BiiE Accumulated depreciation (200,667) (223 (10,827) (99,573) (65,901) - (379,200)
REFE Net carrying amount 2,714,110 5,498 3,549 158,198 60,630 158,684 3,100,669

R2021FESAZIH REFENBARE
354,511,000 (2020F8A31H : A B #&
372,492,000) NETEFMEREDEFRE
HEE o

R2021F8A3TH REAFENBARYE
10,616,0007C (20208 H31H: AR#
182,969,000t ) WA KB E TIEF - HRERE
BEUREFERBECERTERBRITREMME
A (HFEE25) ©

At 31 August 2021, the application for the property ownership
certificates for certain buildings with a net book value of approximately
RMB354,511,000 (31 August 2020: RMB372,492,000) was still in

progress.

At 31 August 2021, certain of the Group’s buildings, furniture and fixtures
and electronic devices with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB10,616,000 (31 August 2020: RMB182,969,000) were pledged to
secure bank and other borrowings (note 25).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

BEYE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥ET T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE /Y REE Carrying amount at beginning of year/period 213,693 210,292
BERBEERE Additions from acquisitions 106,500 -
EREEEWE Transfer from own-occupied property 35,097 6,956
F/HRAHRTE Depreciation provided during the year/period (6,165) (3,555)
RE/BRZREE Carrying amount at end of year/period 349,125 213,693

A8A31H : At 31 August:

BRI Cost 372,875 231,278
E i Accumulated depreciation (23,750) (17,585)
BREFE Net carrying amount 349,125 213,693

R2021F8B31H REMEZAFEMITY
A AR %809,200,0005t (2020%8A31H : AR
#£587,500,0007C) c ZEEHBLEESER
R EMET B EEMNGEEEGED
BHE - BE BUMKERETEEEE-
HEFAEEL B EABEE - HE TRy E
PHEEERSRBEMYERINERBEEE
EMAR - ZHELIHACREETEHESE
REEBFTAIRZEBR REWEZLFES
EEREEETERTAERE ASIE (5
=) e

ZREVMERBEEHEHETFE=F #
—SHEFBRRYBRRMEE6 -

M2021F8A31TH BREEBEBARE
74,077,0007T (20208 A31H : B)WAEHE
ETREVECERFERRBRITREMMER
(Fff3E25) ©

As at 31 August 2021, the fair value of the investment properties was
estimated to be approximately RMB809,200,000 (31 August 2020:
RMB587,500,000). The valuation was performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer. Selection criteria of the external valuer
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The valuation was determined
using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes
such as property size. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is the price per square metre. The fair value measurement
hierarchy of the investment property requires certain significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 16 to the
financial statements.

At 31 August 2021, certain of the Group's investment properties with
a net carrying amount of RMB74,077,000 (31 August 2020: Nil) were
pledged to secure bank and other borrowings (note 25).
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16. &

REBEREHEA

FEBEAREEREBENEFNEESN
ERAMFH-AENIRUABETRBEASE L
i A RA0E0F MBRBZE L HEEW
R BT ERBENEARE - EFHES
BEAZEZELF - —RME AKERAEA
SEUIANTEERDBEBEEE

16. LEASES
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group has lease contracts for buildings used in its operations. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods between 40 and 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of
buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years. Generally,
the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group.

(a RAEEZE (@) Right-of-use assets
F/HAAEEFERAEEEREAER The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
BT movements during the year/period are as follows:

KN
MAEYE TiHEERE it
Prepaid leasehold
Office premises land Total
AR¥T R ARBETT AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20201 81H As at 1 January 2020 17,241 459,795 477,036

RE Additions 1,706 - 1,706

WE-BERBLARMARE Additions as a result of acquisition of

a subsidiary 2,582 - 2,582

EREREYE Transfers to investment properties - (623) (623)

WEEHR Depreciation charge (5,511) (7,222) (12,733)

12020F8 A31H K2020F981H As at 31 August 2020 and

1 September 2020 16,018 451,950 467,968
NE Additions 1,569 35,037 36,606
AbBEHRBEARMAE Additions as a result of

acquisition of subsidiaries 589 362,958 363,547

BRERENHE Transfers to investment properties - (4,071) (4,071)

TEER Depreciation charge (9,732) (14,549) (24,281)

HETIRHENESE Revision of a lease term arising from

mBHHEME a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease (489) - (489)
20218 H31H As at 31 August 2021 7,955 831,325 839,280

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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16. HE (&) 16. LEASES (CONTINUED)
TEBERZEBA(E) THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (CONTINUED)
b HEEE (b)  Lease liabilities
F/HRRNAEEECREE (BETER The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under interest-
RITREMER) REBOT : bearing bank and other borrowings) and the movements during the

year/period are as follows:

20214 20205
2021 2020
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE /B REE Carrying amount at beginning of year/period 15,758 17,260
HHE New leases 1,569 1,706
W EE T B A B MR E (F72E£32) Additions as a result of acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 32) 589 2,582
F/HRACHERIMNENREEE  Accretion of interest recognised
during the year/period 460 405
INEN Payments (9,444) (6,195)
HEETAHEREE Revision of a lease term arising from a change
MBI EIEET in the non-cancellable period of a lease (631) -
RE/HRZEEE Carrying amount at end of year/period 8,301 15,758
DA Analysed into:
BIERER o (K7 at25) Current portion (note 25) 6,713 9,762
FEBNEREB > (A aE25) Non-current portion (note 25) 1,588 5,996
HEEBNEHAI MR BERERM T The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39 to
39 F& © the financial statements.
AEBCREPRMAT B BRELEDE The Group has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 and
1698 VISR " WEH HBARERME T applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions
BMERRENHERFNAMESERKA granted by the lessors for leases of certain plant and equipment
SEEERAERERE 2 during the year.
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16. HE (&) 16. LEASES (CONTINUED)
AEBEHBEBEA(F) THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (CONTINUED)
() REZABRWEEHEEZELT (c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are
as follows:
B E2021F H ZE2020F
8H31H 8H31H
IEFEE 1ENE A
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEEEBRE Interest on lease liabilities 460 405
FREEEZITERA Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 24,281 12,733
HEHEEERNEX Expense relating to short-term leases
(FFASEERARITHAX) (included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses) 94 101
HKIFEENKE Gains on termination of lease (142) -
RERAERRIELE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 24,693 13,239
(d) FHE B 27 ERE B E N EE33(c) (d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33 (c) to
HE - the financial statements.
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HE (&)
AEBEBFESEHBEA

AEBRBELEHEZHHECRERRE
ERETHAMENREYE (MFsE15) -
ZEHENGKRBEERBEXINERES
WRERTHRETEHHSAR - FRA
EEEZNESWAS ARYS3,401,000T
(2020%F : AR #26,039,0005t) @ s¥ 1B &R EF
IR MIEEG o

R2021F8A31H BAAEBERBEHAEMAR
ZAAHEKCEHENEWRARIIBHEENRE
mE:

16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

LEASES (CONTINUED)
THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of
several commercial properties in the schools and academic buildings
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised the Group during the year was RMB83,401,000 (2020:
RMB26,039,000), details of which are included in note 6 to the financial
statements.

At 31 August 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

202068 A31H
31 August 2020

20218 H31H
31 August 2021

ARE T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within one year 52,995 23,951
—FUFERFEUR After one year but within two years 34,848 18,992
MEULEB=FUR After two years but within three years 27,963 13,714
=FUEEEFUR After three years but within four years 16,749 9,348
MELEBRFUR After four years but within five years 9,430 4,125
BEEUE After five years 21,914 9,703
163,899 79,833
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17. GOODWILL

20201818 :
2N
Z2FRE
BREFE

20201 B1BE A IR BT RE
WE—REHEAT

7202058 A 31H
202058 318 :
AR
Z2FRE

SREFE

20209 A 1B A IR EFTEE
WEEM B AT (#1aE32)

2021 FE8H3TE AR REFE
202158 H31H :

2N

ZFEE

AREFE

At 1 January 2020:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated impairment
Acquisition of a subsidiary

At 31 August 2020

At 31 August 2020:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 September 2020, net of accumulated impairment
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2021:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

ARBT R
RMB’000

225,379
225,379

225,379
16,353

241,732

241,732

241,732

241,732
129,837

371,569

371,569

371,569
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e (&)
[k RN S

EBREBEHUNBNEENIEETIRS
EEBMBUETRERS

s BHEERREELEN
e RUEERREELEN
e ERERREELEN
s ERERRTELEMN
e EMBXRERREELEN
e IRBMEREEALEN
e HREERREELEN

BEERELELEN

PHREREERREELENV - HEREA
A ARM195364,000t REERBEEE
BUNTWESEDNRERSREERB &
NEFHUBBAERENRESREFARUMSE
AEENELEE ARNEEBBRFEHE
SERBEMNRESREZIERESI% (2020F :
3%) BARREREFINZHAITERA
18.3% (20204 :18.2% ) °

RUBEREETELEN

PTHRERILERBESELEEN 2 HEREAE
BARMT50000T - RIEERREELE N
HaRESENTRERGREEEMEN
TFHEEERENESRETANUFER
BEAEZEC AREEBBEFHRIL
BEREVEEREZE R EHI% (2020F :
3%) EBARREREFINZHAINERA
16.3% (20204 : 16.6% ) °©

17.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units for impairment testing:

o Luoyang School cash-generating unit

o Northeast School cash-generating unit

o Guangxi Schools cash-generating unit

o Central China School cash-generating unit

o Yunnan Vocational School cash-generating unit
o Beijing Lianhe cash-generating unit

o Gansu School cash-generating unit

Luoyang School cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Luoyang School cash-
generating unit is RMB195,364,000. The recoverable amount of the
Luoyang School cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the Luoyang School unit
beyond the five-year period is 3% (2020: 3%). The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 18.3% (2020: 18.2%).

Northeast School cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Northeast School cash-
generating unit is RMB750,000. The recoverable amount of the Northeast
School cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the Northeast School unit
beyond the five-year period is 3% (2020: 3%). The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 16.3% (2020: 16.6%).
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mE ()
mERENE ()
REERALELENR

STHREERERRSCELENV - HEEREA
B ARE28982000t - EHERRESELE
NWTRESEDNRERSREEBREN
TEHPRKEERENBESRETARUER
EREFELIEE - AREERBEFHER
BRENESHREZEREAI% (2020F :
3%) EBARREREFAINZHAINERA
17.2% (20204 :18.0% ) °

EHBRAEAZELEN

PTHREEFERRESELEN 2 HEREAE
BARM28300T - EFERREELEN
HaWESEDNDRERGREEEBEMEN
TFHMEEERENESRETANUFER
BEIELZECE AREEBBRFHES
BEREVNEESREZIEREHI% (2020F :
3%) EBARREREFINZHAINERA
17.7% (20204 : 18.5% ) °

ERBEERETELEN

PEHEEEREERBEELEEV2HER
HEAARY16353000t EMBEERE
SELEBENNTRESENRERSRER
B ENEFHUKEERENESRETR
BUERAEENELEE - ANEERBRBR
FHZEZEREERENESRECZEREA
3% (2020 : 3% ) - BANRKREREFE R 2 H
BIHTEEZE 518.0% (20204 1 17.6% ) °

IRBEREELEN

PTHRELFBAERSELAENCHEREDAE
BARBS516,000t -t RHEERESELEE N
HAIKRESENRERSREEEHENE
FHEBEERENRESREFANUEHE
B ELEE ANRHEEBREFHEMNR
EHRECEREZA BARKRESREEND
2B ATITEE B16.5% ©

17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Guangxi Schools cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Guangxi Schools cash-
generating unit is RMB28,982,000. The recoverable amount of the
Guangxi Schools cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of Guangxi Schools unit
beyond the five-year period is 3% (2020: 3%). The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 17.2% (2020: 18.0%).

Central China School cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Central China School
cash-generating unit is RMB283,000. The recoverable amount of Central
China School cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of Central China School unit
beyond the five-year period is 3% (2020: 3%). The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 17.7% (2020: 18.5%).

Yunnan Vocational School cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Yunnan Vocational
School cash-generating unit is RMB16,353,000. The recoverable amount
of Yunnan Vocational School cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
Yunnan Vocational School unit beyond the five-year period is 3% (2020:
3%). The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was
18.0% (2020: 17.6%).

Beijing Lianhe cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Beijing Lianhe cash-
generating unit is RMB516,000. The recoverable amount of Beijing
Lianhe cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the unit beyond the five-
year period is 3%. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 16.5%.
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mE ()
mERENE ()
HBERALELENR

STHREHBEERBRCELENV - HEEREA
ABARE120321 000t - HERERBESESE
BUNTWESEDNRERSREERB &
NEFHUBBAERENRESREFARUMSE
AEENELIEE - AREEBBRAFEHY
HEREMNBESHREZERZEAI% - BFHR
REeEREFERNZHATITEERE16.4% °

FTE LB ESELESBENR2021F8A31HER
202008 A HMEAEER AEECEA
ZHBR TXHIASREEBEAETHE
BEIAMEENRESTEFIMEKENS
HEFERE:

RERA-FHAEHESHEDERELHER
EEBEHARRTENES-

AEEMNR-BERTHEEENEZNEEDN
ERARBEEFEEFEN —FERWFHEE
MNEB(REARARREABAA)IRAA TS
EO

MRR-FTAMRRBBRBAIANR ARR
HEABREVEBNEERAR D2ERRERE
BERFBEHETERREZ 2B TARL
MARZEBLERUAEAEFAEEEERK
BE-

RUBRX-REERXDERELEER
EEEUARRTENERMEE -

RERRETELEMUNTSBERRUREN
ERTEBRRABTHEEEINBER KR
A=

EEEETHETRESRRENEIER
RABREHRERE DHRRBEABREN
BERTHEEME -

ARBNESCHAZSERAENSE RS
B URANEEZSFEZERTFHETIANNT
BENEE ERARSHTEEYAUGE
REeELENTRESENEMEEERN
FRERELER HESHONTREESEDN
EeRHREE-

17.

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Gansu School cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Gansu School cash-
generating unit is RMB129,321,000. The recoverable amount of Gansu
School cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of Gansu School unit beyond the
five-year period is 3%. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 16.4%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the above cash-
generating units for 31 August 2021 and 31 August 2020. The following
describes each key assumption on which senior management has based
its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The budgeted sales amounts are based on the
historical data and management’s expectation on the future market.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins achieved
in the year immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant units, which are determined using
the capital asset pricing model with reference to the beta coefficient and
debt ratio of certain publicly listed companies conducting business in the
PRC education industry.

Long term growth rate — The long term growth rate is based on the
historical data and management’s expectation on the future market.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of the
cash-generating unit and the discount rates are consistent with external
information sources.

The key assumption on which the management has based its
determination of goodwill’s recoverable amount is budgeted sales
amounts, which are dependent on the number of students and unit tuition
and boarding fees.

The directors of the Company have estimated the reasonably possible
changes in those factors and acknowledged that, even if the most
unfavorable possible values were assigned to those factors, the
recoverable amount then calculated, after incorporating any consequential
effects of such assignment on the other variables used to measure the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit, would still exceed its
carrying amount.
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18. b ELEE

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B4 EFBE st
Client
Software relationship Total
ARE T ARE T AR¥T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2021F8H31H 31 August 2021
2021 F9IR 1B KR A Cost at 1 September 2021, net of
KRR accumulated amortisation 22,345 1,134 23,479
nE Additions 45,559 - 45,559
WEEM B AR (HiE32) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) 2,376 - 2,376
FRGHREH Amortisation provided during the year (8,984) (314) (9,298)
R20215E8A31H At 31 August 2021 61,296 820 62,116
H2021E8 /318 : At 31 August 2021:
B Cost 91,614 1,200 92,814
2T EH Accumulated amortisation (30,318) (380) (30,698)
REFE Net carrying amount 61,296 820 62,116
20208 A31H 31 August 2020
202051 1B HIRL AN - Cost at 1 January 2020, net of
BMBR R E accumulated amortisation 21,223 - 21,223
= Additions 5,291 - 5,291
WEEHT B 2 7 Acquisition of a subsidiary 2 1,200 1,202
HR 5T IR 1 8 Amortisation provided during
the period 4,171) (66) (4,237)
202088311 At 31 August 2020 22,345 1,134 23,479
H2020F8 8318 : At 31 August 2020:
o Cost 43,679 1,200 44,879
RETE Accumulated amortisation (21,334) (66) (21,400)
REFE Net carrying amount 22,345 1,134 23,479
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19. HthERBEE 19. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
20214 8A31H 202058 A31H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFENTRIE (Kit(a) Prepayment for investments (Note (a)) 674,517 472,355
T b fE ARETEN RIE Prepayment for land use rights 174,091 172,368
ME- -BERREELFE Prepayment for property, plant and equipment 17,899 26,256
Htt\mEEEFRARIE Prepayment for other intangible assets 586 528
867,093 671,507
Biat@E)  EAREFEEREB M mEE Note (a): Prepayment mainly represents down payments for investments
==Y A= RN of Zhengzhou City Vocational College.
20. A ROE H U FIEREM  20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
'E ASSETS
20218 H31H 20208 H31H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BNER Prepaid expenses 14,401 2,100
B R EAMEWFIE Advance and other receivables 52,867 78,168
ETIER Staff advances 2,898 2,408
BE K HE A FE W IE B Deposits and other miscellaneous receivables 98,557 64,954
168,723 147,630
WERE Impairment allowance (6,819) (8,120)
161,904 139,510
ZEREAREREBRARMERA The amounts are interest-free and are not secured with collateral.
EEERSOHEAREERETRES T An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
L ERHEEER - BEEERAFTEMU provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
EEEANTRAEFSENEHAE (AR are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
BFERRTIHR) -HEERRMR T HENE with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating). The
ER - EEREEEUNRBREIHNTESH calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
EEBEEH BN ERRLEMRRE money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at
HHEERATZEEM- the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions.
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20. T RRIE - HAth FE W FRIE | H fth 20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER

BE(#) ASSETS (CONTINUED)
TXEIEEAEENEER HMWBEEW Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
RE(FFARSREMBEERRE)FHE Group’s tuition and other miscellaneous receivables included in deposits
BEMNEERRER: and other miscellaneous receivables using a provision matrix:
20218 H31H 31 AUGUST 2021
EEE
Past due
B HME 1226 2183E 3B4E JEP L @
Current  Less than 1 year 110 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years Over 4 years Total
BHEEFRE Expected credit loss rate - 0.47% 1.69% 35.07% 87.11% 100.00% 11.09%
AEAE(ARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) - 40,264 13,987 1,072 1,171 4,998 61,492
BHEESE (ARBT )  boected credit losses (RMB'000) - 188 237 376 1,020 4,998 6,819
20208 H31H 31 AUGUST 2020
Sk
Past due
L PRIE 1208 pEX):S IB4E ENE @t
Current  Less than 1 year 110 2 years 210 3 years 310 4 years Over 4 years Total
BHEEFRE Expected credit loss rate - 1.30% 30.30% 72.06% 82.06% 100.00% 17.20%
BREE(ARETR) Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) - 35,824 3,997 2,895 825 3,680 47,221
BHEEEE (ARBT )  Bpected credit losses (RMB'000) - 466 1,211 2,086 677 3,680 8,120

21. BAFEFABENEREE 21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

202168H31H 20206 8H31H

31 August 2021 31 August 2020

ARET T ARBT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HihF EmBRE RAFE Other unlisted investments, at fair value = 118,041
L EHIRE R PR R T RITHE R The above unlisted investments were wealth management products issued
ER REGYRERENHFELALIFEXSE by banks in Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as financial
RAE MERFNSERARLAFLEFAERR assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows

HWEmEE- are not solely payments of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

DEPOSITS
202148 H31H 20208 831H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE KRBT ER Cash and bank balances 775,787 560,734
EHFEREEEBAER Time deposits and pledged deposits 404,205 319,296
1,179,992 880,030
W EEFER Less: Pledged deposits (284,115) (271,796)
PREEERIEAER Non-pledged time deposits with original
A ZEIRBEHTFR maturity of more than three months
when acquired (120,090) -
HERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 775,787 608,234

REEHR XEBUARETTENRER
R1T45r B AR #765,757,0007T (20204 : A
< #£605,085,0007T) c AR TEEE B ALK
HE® - Am  REHE R (HEE K
Bl RGGEE -EERFEEERE) A&
BN EBERENRNINELZBRNRITEAR
MHBAEME

ROTREBBREBESARTERNRFENZ
BRRFE-EHREPERONERPRF A
SENNREEFRMEAAER LREH
EHERFRANRFR - ROTEHRESIEHA
ERDERREEIRENTRAGERY
YR AT ©

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB765,757,000 (2020:
RMB605,085,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

23. IEEUW A

23. DEFERRED REVENUE

EHEBEHBUOT: Details of contract liabilities are as follows:
2021%8H31H 202098 H31H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Tuition fees 310,220 259,206
TEE Boarding fees 40,713 14,823
EHNEEHE Total contract liabilities 350,933 274,029

BRNEBEREE RREMAAERE M WERE
E2EBBR - AREREEFHAAMEAR
BENEEBERAEBE-ZEREBENRER
REFENEREIEI -BEBERE R
EHEBERBESER -

A2021FE8A3IR - AN EBENNDEESRAR
WEHEERREE ABIE AR

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from students
in relation to the proportionate service not yet provided. The Group
receives tuition and boarding fees from students in advance prior to
the beginning of each academic year. Tuition and boarding fees are
recognised proportionately over the relevant period of the applicable
programme. Students are entitled to a refund of the payment in relation to
the proportionate service not yet provided.

The increase in contract liabilities as at 31 August 2021 was mainly due
to the acquisition of Gansu School and the increase in the number of
students.
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24 Bt B RERETER 24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
202158 H31H 202058 A31H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEVX BERREN Payables for purchase of property,

B FRIE plant and equipment 157,812 90,342
EstiEA Rt RE Accrued bonuses and social insurance 78,319 107,492
mE4 WA MIBEE A (f/2F()) Miscellaneous expenses received from

students (note (a)) 94,663 102,387
re Deposits 73,069 35,640
EREEERRE Payables to cooperative schools 8,666 12,656
A AR Advance from lessee 33,384 34,931
FEAFE2 4 % M B9 B R 485 BY Government subsidies payable to
students and teachers 58,552 55,286
BAWERE (FED)) Consideration payable for acquisitions (note (b)) 285,420 289,800
B E Dividend payables - 64,256
H fth FE S 7R IB Other payables 161,418 182,429
EstER Accrued expenses 4,575 12,244
TREFELENEIEE Boarding fees refundable to students = 32,453
955,878 1,019,916
FHRESKDBEEAR T E -RER BRE The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The
REREEH HtENRERESEANE carrying amount of other payables and accruals at the end of the year
HEEEQAFEES- approximated to their fair value due to their short term maturity.
Kiita) . BERAREDWRBEENBEBEER SREBL Note (a):  The amount represents the miscellaneous expenses received from students which
T AT will be paid on behalf of students.
Kretm) : FEREIEZEEERBWBHERWESEER Note (b):  The amount mainly includes consideration payable for the acquisition of non-
REWBHRERIEREZEFNREAR controlling interests in Luoyang School amounting to RMB155,420,000 and for the
#5155,420,0007T & A R #80,000,0007T ° acquisition of Gansu School amounting to RMB80,000,000 in accordance with the

acquisition agreements.
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS
20218 831R R2020%E8831H
As at 31 August 2021 As at 31 August 2020
BERA= ] AR®TR BBR=® ) ARBF
Effective Effective
interest rate (%) Maturity RMB’'000 interest rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
ik Current
BEARTER Bank loans — secured 4.62-6.00 2021-2022 340,526 4.35-6.37, 2020-2021 123,538
HIBOR+0.05
REOBEMBTERD  Current portion of long-term 5.20-6.65, 2021-2022 149,958 4.99-7.20, 2020-2021 335,377
BERER 2 bank loans - secured LIBOR+2.20 HIBOR+2.25
REFEMAEMETRM  Current portion of long-term 5.84-14.38 2021-2022 77,829 7.28-14.38 2020-2021 263,601
R other loans - secured
RBRAK Transaction costs - (4,274)
568,313 718,242
BEEE (F216m)  Lease liabilities (nofe 16/0) 3.82-4.26 2021-2022 6,713 3.82-4.26 2020-2021 9,762
AR ES (#1i226) Convertible bonds (7ote 26) 646,459 -
1,221,485 728,004
FE DR Non-current
BRBRTER Bank loans — secured 4.50-6.37, 2022-2029 1,651,463 4.99-6.65, 2021-2025 1,058,440
LIBOR+2.20 HIBOR+2.25
BEAEMER Other loans — secured 5.84-14.38 2022-2027 154,210 7.28-14.38 2021-2030 110,354
RBRAR Transaction costs (19,354) (6,996)
1,786,319 1,161,798
BERE (Wit6n) Lease liabilities (note 16(b)) 3.82-4.26 2021-2026 1,588 3.82-4.26 2021-2024 5,996
Fhy Total 3,009,392 1,895,798
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

202148 H31H
31 August 2021

20208 H31H
31 August 2020

ARET T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
2 Analysed into:
EEEBRTER: Bank loans repayable:
R—FRRREX Within one year or on demand 490,484 454,640
REZF In the second year 681,981 439,516
RE=ZFZFERHEF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEEEME) 875,763 516,865
BBRF Beyond five years 74,365 95,064
2,122,593 1,506,085
EEEEMER: Other borrowings repayable:
R—FRARZRER Within one year or on demand 731,002 273,365
REZF In the second year 155,253 72,509
RE=ZFZFRHF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEEEME) 544 28,078
BBRE Beyond five years = 15,761
886,799 389,713
3,009,392 1,895,798

FERTERRHMERETIEELEE
HIERER

(i)

(i

(vi)

(vil)

R2021F8 A3 A AR EBARAEFEN
B AR%10,616,0007T (20205F8 H318 :
AER#182,969,0007T) 2 EF - RERE
BURE FRME (HFE14)

R2021F8 A3 1B AEBE THREFE
B ARYET74,077,0007T (20205F8 H318 -
Z)WREWE (HEE15)

ERAEEETHEARD ZRG

TEERBESELZL (ZEEZERB)
B EANER (HIEE36(C))

AEEREEEEHOAEENEAT
BIWDARR

REBBWIZES A2021F8A3AEEA
AR #284,115,0007C (20205F8 318 :
AR #271,796,0007T) ; &

EHER - EMNER - EAERRER
ERNBEREBEERERE-

All of the bank loans and other borrowings are jointly secured and pledged

by:
(i)

(i

(vi)

(vii)

the Group’s buildings, furniture and fixtures and electronic
devices with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB10,616,000 as at 31 August 2021 (31 August 2020:
RMB182,969,000) (note 14);

certain of the Group’s investment properties with a net carrying
amount of RMB74,077,000 as at 31 August 2021 (31 August 2020:
Nil) (note 15);

the pledge of shares of the Group’s certain subsidiaries;

personal guarantees executed by Mr. Li and Ms. Yang Xuging
(spouse of Mr. Li) (note 36 (c));

corporate guarantees executed by the Group and subsidiaries of the
Group, which are controlled by Mr. Li;

deposits of the Group with an amount of RMB284,115,000 as at
31 August 2021 (31 August 2020: RMB271,796,000); and

the charging right of tuition and boarding fees of Yunnan School,
Guizhou School, Guangxi Schools and Luoyang School.
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26. ATIARE S

FRACRITAURRESWT

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The convertible bonds issued during the year are as follows:

202068H31H
31 August 2020

202148 H31H
31 August 2021

BATEFABENEBAR:  Financial liability at fair value through

profit or loss:
AERES

Convertible bonds

AR®TR ARBT R
RMB’000 RMB’000
646,459 -

R2020F 98168 AARREQATNEZE
Fff /B 2 B Goldensep Investment Company Limited
(MBTADHERLIEE(BFEB)BRAT (K
MADNTLREHZ Bt BTACRE
(TN £ 4258 2100,000,000 TR AT 2 IR &
(R ESR]) MAQXAEREHET
ARBEBETRRESWIERRRIEGSAR
BENREREAR REHRACRERE
RENBREERBARBRE AT BRKRES-
RBREFTRESEEANEREERAS
BREE0TETHWAATHEZLER -

BHESFTHIEE AEENR2020F11A10H
H 2B E2021F98288 A+ B ([EEE])
(BIEEEMA)NEXRFEERE (RFEH
EFREFNESFZTEEFTENFERN
) RUNSHBRRBRESRCIETERAE
REE0.0001EZE T AR HMEZBER (R
zAEeEBE BRRBERTH) - BRE
AR ENEEREROISETAEAS
Re22E T -ESFHEBITHES (B1FZAE)E
MEREZEERSRFEMNE1.00%1 2 LEAR
202138308 & 28 B X 1 - 202158 A 31
H E5EEANARBEESFERABERAAAE
BAL o

B ITO 20209830 TR - BITREBERE
FRABENREALTBH S B E2020E9817
HR2021F6B10B A ER-e

On 16 September 2020, the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Goldensep Investment Company Limited (the “Issuer”)
entered into a subscription agreement with Credit Suisse (Hong Kong)
Limited (the “Manager”), pursuant to which the Issuer has agreed to issue
convertible bonds at an aggregate principal amount of U.S.$100,000,000
(“Convertible Bonds”), and the Company has agreed to guarantee payment
of all sums payable by the Issuer in accordance with the terms and
conditions in relation to such Convertible Bonds, and the Manager has
agreed to subscribe and pay for, or to procure subscribers to subscribe
and pay for, the Convertible Bonds. The Convertible Bonds can be
converted into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company with a par value
of USD0.0001 each at the option of the bondholders.

Each bond will, at the option of the holder, be convertible (unless
previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) on or after
10 November 2020 up to the close of business (at the place where the
bond certificate evidencing such bond is deposited for conversion) on the
date falling ten days prior to 28 September 2021 (the “Maturity Date”)
(both days inclusive) into fully paid ordinary shares with a par value
of USD0.0001 each of the Company at an initial conversion price of
HKD6.313 per share. The conversion price was adjusted from HKD6.313
per share to HKD6.22 per share due to the effect of the interim dividend.
The bonds bear interest on their outstanding principal amount from and
including the issue date at the rate of 1.00 per cent per annum, payable
in arrears on 30 March 2021 and the Maturity Date. As at 31 August
2021, the bondholders had not converted the bonds into ordinary shares
of the Company.

The issuance was completed on 30 September 2020. Details of the
issuance and adjustment to the conversion price are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 17 September 2020 and 10 June 2021
respectively.
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27. DEFERRED INCOME

202158H31H
31 August 2021

202058 H31H
31 August 2020

AR¥ET T AR¥T T

RMB’000 RMB’000

RE/ B At beginning of year/period 41,774 46,320
B Additions 25,698 2,330
KEHE QT Acquisition of subsidiaries 168,715 -
BABE Released to profit or loss (18,734) (6,876)
BEBM Return to government (2,800) -
REBX At end of year/period 214,653 4,774
R BNER IR Less: Current portion (13,476) (9,185)
FERNERE 2 Non-current portion 201,177 32,589

I 3E W 3 FE WL T AR S 5 18 5 B AT W R AV B
B -ZERFHBREREENTART
EREHRBARS-

Deferred income represents the government grants received for subsidies
in connection with certain leasehold improvements. These government

grants are released to profit or loss over the expected useful lives of the
relevant assets.
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28. EERIE 28. DEFERRED TAX
F/HRNELHEEEREEZEEHNT The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year/
period are as follows:
EZEBEEE DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
20214
2021
W B8
W A = B
EEXZ BHRFEW
BB ATEAR FERE #at
Fair value Depreciation
adjustments allowance in
arising from excess of
Withholding acquisition of related
taxes subsidiaries depreciation Total
AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R20206F981H At 1 September 2020 - 84,695 10,893 95,588
FREFTA (MBRE)EIHE K Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
BT 18 the statement of profit or loss
during the year 6,928 (2,512) 10,769 15,185
WEESEIE 2B (F#:#32)  Addition from acquisitions (note 32) - 32,683 - 32,683
R2021F8 AN A MR IR Gross deferred tax liabilities at
BELEE 31 August 2021 6,928 114,866 21,662 143,456
BEREESE DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
20214
2021
] 4t 35 88
U TREEN RRERB
REBRKA HEBE O BINEE #at
Impairment Losses available
Unrealised losses on for offsetting
income received financial against future
in advance assets taxable profits Total
ARBT R ARBT ARBT R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202059818 At 1 September 2020 - - = -
FRFTA (HIBRE)EER Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
MBS R 18 the statement of profit or loss
during the year 2,361 387 8,845 11,593
R2021FE8 A3 MR IE Gross deferred tax assets at
EERE 31 August 2021 2,361 387 8,845 11,593
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28. IEZERIE (&) 28. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
EZEBEEE DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
20205
2020
Wi — BB
DNAEEZ
SRk NEEAE Hit Fah
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Withholding acquisition of
taxes a subsidiary Others Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARBT R ARBT R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M2020F181H At 1 January 2020 5,479 85,811 10,269 101,559
HAGTABERAN Deferred tax credited to the
EIERIE statement of profit or loss
during the period (5,479) (1,296) 624 (6,151)
WBEBEZFE Addition from an acquisition - 180 - 180
20208 A31B 1Y Gross deferred tax liabilities at
ELHERERAE 31 August 2020 - 84,695 10,893 95,588
BEJNENMS BHEARM®1,807,000T For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
(20200 B)WETELZEHBEERAED amounting to RMB1,807,000 (2020: Nil) have been offset in the statement
R BERRRPIBE - UT AR ERSEE of financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
MBS AEBELERIEGRIEND balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
20214 20205
2021 2020
AR¥T T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEHBEMRRRERN Net deferred tax assets recognised in
EEFREBEEEFE the consolidated statement of
financial position 9,786 -
REEHBEMRRRERN Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in
ELEHEESEFHE the consolidated statement of
financial position 141,649 95,588
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28. IEZERIE (&)

EEHRBAKE (&)

AEBTEREHTEANHEEEARE
22,311,0007t (20204 : AR#¥17,124,0005T) >
MEBEBEEBSR—ZEREFRIE T ALLE
AREZRFR EANRE - RZEEBINHED &
SEEBRENKMBARNEELERRASZLT
RAGEBERB RN AERERIEEE
M ANZEEERREEHEEE -

WERATIRERRDELEBRBEE

28. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB22,311,000 (2020: RMB17,124,000) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items:

Tax losses

BIEEE

20214 2020%
2021 2020
ARET T AREETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
22,311 17,124

IEFER IR & & R 1) 82 BB R R FE SR B S F
EREBEBENZENRER THRAREERE
BE - ZEREBEMR2025F (BEZF)
B

REB(PFEAREMBEEEMEBHE) R
EAthR IMIERECEOIFTRESRE
TREVER R BIRI0% B R BAFENF -ZHAEB
20081 H1H LR Bi#E AR2007F12831
HEBRF - MPBEABRIIERES A EE
BRI ZBWHE  SEABRKBNHRBEE
o AEERZERTERERZNKE D
T B2008F 1A THEMEERR 2K R E
BRMEHHR -ANEEE THEB LD T R20205F
NEEEEREME 2020220224 E A
BEETHY% o

FA2021F8A31A  AEBBER AT RN R
HETHEARAHEARR 2 BBEIEL AT
BHAEH ARYG6,928,0007T (2020F : &) o
BRREEVEBRRBEANSEIN MERTE
HEBFPEHRBARARBEMAERATRNE
REANEBREENEFNFBANRERELR
B-EERA ZEHRTREANSREBERER
WARAEELRENER BEZEHREL
ARABRENERITEITEIRZEHRTE
F o

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future taxable
profits is probable. These tax losses will expire up to and including year
2025.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. Certain subsidiaries of the Group
obtained the Certificate of Resident Status of Hong Kong in 2020, the
applicable rate is changed to 5% from 2020 to 2022.

As at 31 August 2021, the Group recognised relevant deferred income
tax liabilities of RMB6,928,000 (2020: Nil) on earnings anticipated to be
remitted by certain subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. Other than the
amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax
has not been recognised for withholding taxes for the earnings expected
to be retained by the PRC subsidiaries and not to be remitted to a foreign
investor in the foreseeable future. In the opinion of the directors, such
remaining earnings will be retained in Mainland China for the expansion
of the Group’s operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such remaining earnings in the foreseeable future.
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29. A 29. SHARE CAPITAL
i 12 SHARES
202148 H31H 202058 A31H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERITRHAR: Issued and fully paid:
1,585,822,3108% (20204 : 1,585,822,310 (2020: 1,541,175,430)
1,541,175,4300% ) Z B R ordinary shares 1,086 1,056
ARATWBRASEFMMOT : A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:
f% 10 &0 B ©H &8
Number of shares Amount Amount
TEx ARBTREME
USD’000  RMB’000 equivalent
EEIE Registered: 2,000,000,000 200 1,355
ERITRHME: Issued and fully paid:
20201818 At 1 January 2020 1,541,100,000 154 1,056
SITFEBRRE (MtaE) Share options exercised (Vote (a)) 75,430 - =

202058 831 H &% 20205F981H At 31 August 2020 and

1 September 2020 1,541,175,430 154 1,056
BITHRHD Issue of new shares 44,000,000 4 30
SITEBRRE (HHta) Share options exercised (Vote (a)) 646,380 - -
M2021E8A31H At 31 August 2021 1,585,822,310 158 1,086
KiaF@) - BZE2021F8H31H I F E - 646,880 I8 i 4 Note (a):  The subscription rights attaching to 646,880 share options (2020: 75,430 share

(2020 : 75,430 B R RE) I R BRRC K E
23.92478 7T (20204 : G MR4.085/8 7T) W R B E
1768 (M 5E30) » B B3 17646,8808% % 19 (2020
FI75430 D) BB eRE (KREX) A
A R 52 435,0007T (20204 : A R #276,0005T) °
REBRERETER ARMA28T (2020F: AR
o) MEREREEARE

options) were exercised at the subscription price of HKD3.924 per share (2020:
HKD4.085 per share) (note 30) during the year ended 31 August 2021, resulting in
the issue of 646,880 shares (2020: 75,430 shares) for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of RMB2,435,000 (2020: RMB276,000). An amount of RMB428
(2020: RMB52) was transferred from the share option reserve to share capital
upon the exercise of the share options.

BRE SHARE OPTIONS

AABBRETEFBRBBEETHNE Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options

PR FERIEE B RR M HI0A © issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to the financial
statements.
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iR ST 2

AATKE—HERESE (58] ER
AEWAEEEERINEERSHEHERM
BRERER - FENCERSHEHEEELRD
AEE (BEAEEBYFHATES HiMb
BEERAEBERBRKE 2 HER) - 5T &8 R
2017F3B20B £ BRIFE S ITEBUE R IEET >
HESEZBARBRERTF-

RIBFHE BRAATR TN RITEBREN
ESBEEATERMEERA LT A (B
2017548198 ) R QA BB BITIRMHIN10% © 7£
FA+—ERHBR REBRED SN
BEEERSHEERITHROBRSHE F
BRAARQABEMEECDBETRMDEI% - EM[
BHERENE - PREBREALCRRAE
REAEHE

BYFAQAES THARITERRIAHE
FABEANBEREAEBIFITESS
TN BFARAETERRABILFE
BOTESHEEMBRANEARERE B
BARBEMEGEC BHTRDM0.1%RNAE
(REAQXFTARE L BHNRHER) BB
BEEL EEMT-EABBER AERR
ERERRAS LHtE-

ETEBRENZEVNIREYEHET=TN
ARER THARANERREREE
ToFRHBREZTENIHESEE I
REZEZTFRBHERL RRFTERBR
BRENHPEFTLFERAEERBEBHTE (U
REERE) -

BRECTEERESBEE HETEERU
TZBEEE: ((A2ARMZHE: ((RAF
RORBREZNBEPEBIA ZWHE:
RNA2AFRONREEZNAHAAERS
AHEBXAZFHWRHE-

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group and suppliers of goods
or services to the Group. The Scheme became effective on 20 March
2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the listing date,
i.e. 19 April 2017. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKD5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HKD1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and commences after a vesting period
of three to five years and ends on a date which is not later than five
years from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares; (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer.
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BRELAETFHFEARDBREIARRK
BEREZER -

RIBEBAR DB R2017FIB20R KM 258 F
I 5 B IR A I 2020 F R H 2 BB AR A
HEWT:

FA202057H238 5 4,367,200 B IR EFE H I
HEAE ARGRSIIBTITEEER-

LT RARE/BMRBRETEERTEZER
B
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.

Under the Scheme adopted by the Company on 20 March 2017, there
was no share options granted during the year and details of share options
granted in 2020 are as follows:

On 23 July 2020, 4,367,200 share options were granted and accepted by
grantees at an exercise price of HKD5.33 per share.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during
the year/period:

W9B18 1B1RH At 1 September/1 January
F/HRAERE Granted during the year/period
F/HRERK Forfeited during the year/period
F/HWAETE Exercised during the year/period
H8H31H At 31 August

20214 20205
2021 2020

miEFg B AR iR
TEE 2B TEE %A

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
BRET aa) BRER T4
HKD '000 HKD '000

per share per share
3.931 15,545 3.931 13,068
- - 5.330 4,367
4.350 (840) 3.829 (1,815)
3.924 (647) 4.085 (75)
4.447 14,058 4,323 15,545

FRACTHFERERITHEBR ZMEFY
IR1E B E #R5.962/8 5T (20204 : § iR5.817/8
JT) °

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was HKD5.962 per share (2020: HKD5.817 per
share).
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30. AR E (&)
RBEBRERTEBREZTEERTE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding

BRan T - as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
202145 2021
BREZE THEE
Number of options Exercise price 1T f£ 5 Exercise period
Sl BRET
’000 HKD
per share
88Y 5.920 2019%F9H3H £2023F9H2H 3 September 2019 to 2 September 2023
199 5.920 2020%F9H3H £2023F9H2H 3 September 2020 to 2 September 2023
142 5.920 20215 9H3H £2023F9H2H 3 September 2021 to 2 September 2023
1,897 4202 201943H1H E£2023%F10825H 1 March 2019 to 25 October 2023
866 4202 20204381 H E£2023%F10825H 1 March 2020 to 25 October 2023
582 4202 2021%3H1HZ2023%F10H25H 1 March 2021 to 25 October 2023
591 4202 2019%F9H3H F2023%F10H25H 3 September 2019 to 25 October 2023
401 4202 2020%F9H3H F2023%F10H25H 3 September 2020 to 25 October 2023
245 4202 20215F9H3H F£2023%F10H25H 3 September 2021 to 25 October 2023
60 4202 2022FF9H3H F£2023%F10H25H 3 September 2022 to 25 October 2023
60 4202 2023%F9H3H F2023%F10H25H 3 September 2023 to 25 October 2023
5 4202 2019410826 H £2023%F10825H 26 October 2019 to 25 October 2023
8 4202 2020510826 H £2023%F10825H 26 October 2020 to 25 October 2023
7 4202 2021510826 H £2023%F10825H 26 October 2021 to 25 October 2023
10 4302 2019%11H2H £20235%F11 818 2 November 2019 to 1 November 2023
6 4302 2020%11H2H £2023%F1181H 2 November 2020 to 1 November 2023
4 4302 2021%11H2H £2023%F1181H 2 November 2021 to 1 November 2023
1,170 3.640 2020F4H1H £2024%3H31H 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2024
712 3.640 2021F4H1H £2024%3H31H 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024
479 3.640 20229F4H1H £2024%3H31H 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024
623 3.110 20205%10H21H 220245108208 21 October 2020 to 20 October 2024
708 3110 2021510821 H 220245108208 21 October 2021 to 20 October 2024
944 3110 2022510H21H £2024510820H 21 October 2022 to 20 October 2024
1,347 5.330 2021%7H23H £2025%7H22H 23 July 2021 to 22 July 2025
1,203 5.330 202247 H23H £2025%7H22H 23 July 2022 to 22 July 2025
1,461 5.330 2023%F7H23H £2025%7H22H 23 July 2023 to 22 July 2025
14,058
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30. EERRAESTE (&) 30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
20204 2020
BREHE TEE
Number of options Exercise price  {T{#HA Exercise period
T BRET
'000 HKD
per share
354 5.920 2019 9H3H £2023F9H2H 3 September 2019 to 2 September 2023
213 5.920 20205 983H £2023F9H2H 3 September 2020 to 2 September 2023
142 5.920 2021F9H3H £2023F9H2H 3 September 2021 to 2 September 2023
2,112 4.202  2019F3H1H £2023F10825H 1 March 2019 to 25 October 2023
990 4.202 20203 H1H £2023F10825H 1 March 2020 to 25 October 2023
671 4.202  2021FE3H1H £2023%F10825H 1 March 2021 to 25 October 2023
591 4202 201998 3H E£2023F10825H 3 September 2019 to 25 October 2023
401 4,202 2020%F9H3H E£2023F10825H 3 September 2020 to 25 October 2023
306 4,202 2021 9H3H £2023F10825H 3 September 2021 to 25 October 2023
116 4,202 2022%9H3H E2023F10825H 3 September 2022 to 25 October 2023
116 4202 2023 9H3H E2023F10825H 3 September 2023 to 25 October 2023
10 4,202 2019%10826H £2023%F10825H 26 October 2019 to 25 October 2023
11 4,202 20205108268 £2023%F10825H 26 October 2020 to 25 October 2023
7 4202 2021108260 £2023%F10825H 26 October 2021 to 25 October 2023
17 4.320 2019511 B2B £2023F1181H 2 November 2019 to 1 November 2023
10 4320 202011828 £2023F11B1H 2 November 2020 to 1 November 2023
7 4320 2021511828 £2023F11 1R 2 November 2021 to 1 November 2023
1,296 3.640 2020F4H1H £2024F3H31H 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2024
788 3.640 2021F4H1H E2024F3H31H 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024
525 3.640 2022F4H1H E2024F3831H 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024
759 3.110 20205 10821H &E2024510H20H 21 October 2020 to 20 October 2024
760 3.110 2021 10821H &E2024510H20H 21 October 2021 to 20 October 2024
1,013 3.110  2022F10821H E20245F10H20H 21 October 2022 to 20 October 2024
1,299 5.330 2021F7823H F£2025%F7822H 23 July 2021 to 22 July 2025
1,299 5.330 202278 23H £2025%F7H22H 23 July 2022 to 22 July 2025
1,732 5.330 2023%F7H23H F£2025%F7H22H 23 July 2023 to 22 July 2025
15,545
FABERLBRE MEB E2020F8A31 No share options were granted during the year while the fair value of the
HENEARLEZCERELATERARARY share options granted during the eight months ended 31 August 2020
6,933,000t (BIRARM1.50) - Eit - &ZE was RMB6,933,000, RMB1.59 each, therefore the Group recognised share
2021 F8AAEEFEANSEHRABRER option expense of RMB6,498,000 during the year ended 31 August 2021
¥ AR %6,498,0007T (& £2020%8H31H Lk (eight months ended 31 August 2020: RMB1,843,000).

NE B - AK#%1,843,0000T) ©
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30.

BRESS (&)

BZE2020F8A3BIENEARK 2RALER
BREZAFEDIAREABHUN-ZBERNER
EITHET UEZEERHBEBRE G RERE-
TRIRAEAERN 28 A SIS

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the eight
months ended 31 August 2020 was estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

20204

2020

B B & (%) Dividend yield (%) 27
B W (%) Volatility (%) 53
2 7 B F) & (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.25
FETERETH (F8) Expected life of options (year) 5

BREZAFIERAFHDUEERERKEM
AREE A -—ERURERZTEENZ
ER - RERREBRBERBLORARBE 2
ER LR -—ERERER

AEAFEREEMAMRHBREZHEM
B

FRITERGCA6,88010 BREEH A RT BT
646,880 & 1B IR & # 48 IR A~ A R #54287T (41
PREITRIXA) E-PHBRYBHMRWE
29 °

RIBEER AQTRIBEFT B F 14,508,040
DEATEZERE- REAQIENER
R BEITENRTEZERESEHRAR
A T B 1714,508,0400% B8 /ML 138 AR IR 19 I BE Hb
B& 751,450.803< 7T ($OBREEITR X AT) ©

The expected life of the options is based on management’s best estimate
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur.
The volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The 646,880 share options exercised during the year resulted in the
issue of 646,880 ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital
of RMB428 (before issue expenses), as further detailed in note 29 to the
financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 14,508,040 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 14,508,040 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of US$1,450.80 (before issue
eXpenses).
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BEXRfHE
AEENEABEEARENE 2 ARER
BEBANBRANIE-FANAEEAEHEH
MBEARAKEREFBEABNMNIECHER
A(RE2INGEREEHIAMBRARRHE
BRFEERNHABEFHNAHERS) - F
RWWHREARERBAQT—BHWELQF
FEREDZEXRNEEFERD

EFEREMBERRERE

REFEEEEZZ AQXANPTENBELF
EEBOREEFNIBERATDIRFHEE (R
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ZERBEEVBREME RN —REFR)
ERNBRES

o

() REPEIFEZ AEEETHBEATF
ERARERE AXRBEEBEHTESS
2RI P B E MY BRBEBOE R AV 10% 2 B =
HEBNEERRFHBE EERHEED
HEBEMEARMG0% 1 F B~ 7%
Frea TIRENRRT 2405 EBER
RETERERAN HEERMCBROERT
EREMEARE25% °

(i) REPENEREREIR BERXREGEE
BHNRMEREASETEZERT D R25%
ks (RETFEARSHENEE)
TREBRRES -BRRESANRERY
BRUEEIHERBIORBIIAR-
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RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital reserve of the Group represents the capital contributions from
the then equity holders of the Group’s subsidiaries. The additions during
the year represent the injection of additional paid-up capital by the then
equity holders of the Group’s subsidiaries, which were consolidated from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the subsidiaries and/or
businesses first came under the common control of Mr. Li. The deduction
during the year represents the decrease in the Group’s net assets
resulting from the acquisition of non-controlling interests in a subsidiary
of the Company.

STATUTORY AND OTHER SURPLUS RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC shall make appropriations from after-tax profit to non-
distributable reserve funds as determined by the boards of directors of the
relevant PRC subsidiaries. These reserves include (i) the general reserve
of the limited liability companies and (ii) the development fund of schools.

(i) In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are domestic enterprises are
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting standards, to their
respective statutory surplus reserves until the reserves reach 50%
of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to share capital, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

(i) According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, private schools
that require reasonable returns are required to appropriate to
the development fund not less than 25% of the net income of
the relevant schools as determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the PRC. The development
fund is for the construction or maintenance of the schools or the
procurement or upgrade of educational equipment.
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32. ¥KEHf 32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

tREE

L EN2021F 2 A48 AT A > AN &E B A20214F2
BUBEKREARY2352,00c@ItAKXRED
¥EEERATINBLRESARRABRK
BERAGNESIEZ LFTBHERBELK
AEVTazEY BER#ERHEBERNE L
HERMBREFAEZFLH - WEHEAWK
BAEIAR-BERECR2021F28 LB S
FREZAFe

B 6 B 0 7 S B0 38 38 7 £ 8 D
BB BB AT S A EEER
5135 95 S % £ 6 17 5 1B 0 DA B R EE
RBBHAEREERUERBEESRY
AVE-

RUBEHMLREES TR CEERAEER
FEMOT:

BEIJING LIANHE

As announced on 4 February 2021, the Group acquired the entire interests
of Beijing Lianhe Open Education Technology Co., Ltd. in February 2021
from Beijing Daai Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. at a total consideration
of RMB2,352,000. Beijing Lianhe has years of experience in the provision
of online education related technical services for the establishment,
operation and maintenance of online education platform. The acquisition
was accounted for using the acquisition method. The purchase
consideration was settled in the form of cash in February 2021.

The acquisition will enable the Group to promote collectivised school
operation by applying information technology. For the purpose of
acquisition of Beijing Lianhe, the Group engaged an external independent
appraiser to perform the valuation with the identification and determination
of fair values to be assigned to the acquiree’s assets and liabilities as at
the acquisition date.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Beijing Lianhe as
at the date of acquisition were as follows:

A U BB B

BRAZATE

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

Bra ARBET T

Notes RMB’000

ME- -BEREE Property, plant and equipment 14 9
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16(a) 589
HitnE\EEE Other intangible assets 18 410
B RBITE Cash and bank balances 1,938
ENFE-HtEWREREMERE  Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 3,004
HihESREREFEHR Other payables and accruals (3,495)
HEAE Lease liabilities 16(b) (589)
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 28 (30)
BAFEFEZAHBIEEFEBE  Total identifiable net assets at fair value 1,836
R 2 Goodwill on acquisition 516
BRESEN Satisfied by cash 2,352
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AN A A B 2021 F4 208 FR A AEH
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
GANSU SCHOOL

As announced on 20 April 2021 by the Company, the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% school sponsors’ interest in Lanzhou College of
Information Science and Technology in April 2021. The school sponsors of
Gansu School were Lanzhou University of Technology and Shenzhen Hua
Yu Chang International Science and Education Development Co. Ltd. Gansu
School has been recognised as advanced unit of employment in ordinary
colleges and universities in Gansu province. The total consideration of
the acquisition was RMB670,154,000. RMB590,154,000 out of the
total consideration was paid as at 31 August 2021 and the remaining
of RMB80,000,000 is to be settled within the next twelve months of
the balance sheet date. The acquisition was accounted for using the
acquisition method.

The acquisition is part of the Group’s business strategy to expand school
network in regions with significant growth potential in the private higher
education sector. Gansu School is a private higher education institution
established in the PRC providing undergraduate education. For the
purpose of acquisition of Gansu School, the Group engaged an external
independent appraiser to perform the valuation with the identification and
determination of fair values to be assigned to the acquiree’s assets and
liabilities as at the acquisition date.
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32. ¥EH (H) 32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
HEER (&) GANSU SCHOOL (CONTINUED)
RUBRPHEERAUBIZEERARGD The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Gansu School as
FENT: at the date of acquisition were as follows:

A Uk BB B
AN Y - |
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
Hrat AR¥T T
Notes RMB’000
ME- -BENRKE Property, plant and equipment 14 798,551
BREWE Investment properties 15 106,500
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16(a) 362,958
Htht\mEEE Other intangible assets 18 1,966
BE& RIBITEER Cash and bank balances 118,913
JERFE - HMEUFIER  Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Hih&EE 7,217
R A Deferred revenue (37,174)
IE JE W 25 Deferred income 27 (168,715)
HihERBERESTER Other payables and accruals (188,796)
FFERITREHEMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (427,934)
EEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities 28 (32,653)
BEAFEFE2TEL Total identifiable net assets at fair value
EEFEARE 540,833
RUEREE Goodwill on acquisition 129,321
FEPESEN Satisfied by cash 590,154
EARE Consideration payable 80,000
670,154
ERACHEBEIEREAARBELE 2TERE The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected business
BHEME HUFEBRRA - BECHERD synergies arising from the acquisition, which is not separately recognised.
EBIEHEELERIKD- The goodwill recognised is not expected to be deductible for income tax
pUrpoSes.
AEERKEBHFERASATHENRNWERE The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using the present value
FFTECWEBHEEE - FAREERERA of the remaining lease payments at the date of acquisition. The right-of-
EEBNESEME- use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities.
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33.

XA (&)
HRER (&)
HUBHEAD 2 RERBIFOT

32.

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
GANSU SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries
is as follows:

ReRERR
B ENRENRE

221 FEHERNRENRE
EMEHRE e RIBITEES

BeRRESEYWRHFETARE
FEEACEERE

ARBT T

RMB’000

Total cash consideration (672,506)

Less: Cash consideration payable (80,000)

Cash consideration paid in 2021 (592,506)

Cash and bank balances acquired 120,851
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included

in cash flows used in investing activities (471,655)

RIEE B MRS ERHER (KB [
BEe WEMSRENEEBE T NitE&
HE (RWEBAETBEB—F) S EER
WEBHEFELR (MAXK)LEE R R
REETHRFTBEZEERERNFER A
WESPFERNSE T FTHE -

BB LUK B E2021FE8A31R L EE
TREERTERERABLAEBERKAA
RH37,246,000t R BAGZE BN ERMARY
35,180,0007T °

HREDEHLRBEREFEER K
SENFARARBANEDNBARE
1,597,170,0007¢ & A E#604,360,0007T

RERERERME

A EEHFRERSH

FR - AEEREFHETHINEE
FAREERHEEEIBEREAR
#51,569,0007T (20204 : A & #51,706,000
7t) B A R 1,569,000 (20205 : AR
1,706,000 ) °

33.

In accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations, the
amounts recorded for the acquisition are provisional and are subject to
adjustments during the measurement period of not exceeding one year
from the acquisition date if new information is obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and, if known, would
have affected the measurement of the amounts recognised as of that
date.

Since the acquisitions, Beijing Lianhe and Gansu School contributed
RMB37,246,000 to the Group’s revenue and RMB35,180,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 August 2021.

Had the combinations of Beijing Lianhe and Gansu School taken place
at the beginning of the year, the revenue and the profit of the Group for
the year would have been RMB1,597,170,000 and RMB604,360,000,
respectively.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(A) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB1,569,000 (2020:
RMB1,706,000) and RMB1,569,000 (2020: RMB1,706,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings.
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33. ZFERTREBRMEE (&)

(B) MEEBELE2EEEH

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(B) CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

20214 2021
BITR
HiEX HEAE WBRRES et
Bank and Lease Convertible
other loans liabilities bonds Total
AR®E T AR TR AR T ARE T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R20206F981H At 1 September 2020 1,880,040 15,758 = 1,895,798
MEREREZEH Changes from financing cash flows 46,069 (9,444) 642,377 679,002
HHEE New leases = 1,569 - 1,569
HEHRRZIEET Revision of lease terms - (631) - (631)
FEZH Interest expense - 460 3,746 4,206
U BB B B N R 2 38 Increase arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries 428,523 589 = 429,112
AL EER Fair value losses - = 336 336
R2021E8A31H At 31 August 2021 2,354,632 8,301 646,459 3,009,392
20205 2020
BITR
Hib &K HEERE et
Bank and
other loans Lease liabilities Total
ARETT ARET T ARET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202051 818 At 1 January 2020 1,469,569 17,260 1,486,829
MERESREZED Changes from financing cash flows 410,471 (6,195) 404,276
FHE New leases - 1,706 1,706
FEFH Interest expense - 405 405
Wi —EH B AT ZE M Increase arising from acquisition of
a subsidiary - 2,582 2,582
202068 A31H At 31 August 2020 1,880,040 15,758 1,895,798
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(C) HENARER L
HARSRBRZAEHMEENERSR

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(C) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash

HAT flows is as follows:

HE2021F HE2020F
8H3THIEEE SA3IHILENEA
Year ended Eight months ended
31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARB T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAREETHR Within operating activities 94 101
FFAREFEA Within financing activities (9,444) (6,195)
(9,350) (6,094)

34. EEEH 34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

RARERTEFREFZAEEEEFBH
TR B 95 SR 2R MY RE25 o

35. A&
REBPREMERE U T EFAE:

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s bank loans are
included in note 25 to the financial statements.

35. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments as at the end of the
reporting period:

202148 H31H
31 August 2021

20208 A31H
31 August 2020

AR®ET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

BRI HEREE: Contracted but not provided for:
ME -BERFZE Property, plant and equipment 659,495 190,818
BE Investments - 23,000
659,495 213,818
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36.

B S X5 RA&ERR

ARRAEERR RER UTES/DAR
HEAKEARZHEHNBEBT -

(A)

EEERER
HAEER
BELEE ARFE 2B
T4 ESEIE
BRELt EL i
LRABCEEE HBHTEEELRH
BRAR
BAERERE  HBTLEEH
EEABLE
(BEREE)
BAEHGERE HBTLEEH
EEABLE
(BREH)
LREE M2 LB 520216
2ASHERAREE—
GG
AZBMIANER HABRRLERKET
BRAH
TRAREEREE  AHABRREERKED
BRAF
I 2P A B ER2021 25 W IB A 5T
BAN2HEN Lt REAABrER
WEAA -
BRRZENBRRE S
ez F N AEER
FREFBFEUOTRS

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following parties/
companies are related parties that had transactions or balances with the
Group during the year.

(A) NAME AND RELATIONSHIP

Name of related parties

Mr. Li

Ms. Yang Xuging

Beijing Daai Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

Kashi Daai Huihuang Investment
Management Limited
Partnership

Kashi Daai Chengxin Investment
Management Limited
Partnership

Beijing Lianhe*

Xi'an Zhaowen Human
Resources Co., Ltd.

Beijing Honglue Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.

Relationship with the Group
and the Company

Chairman of the Board
Spouse of Mr. Li
Controlled by Mr. Li

Controlled by Mr. Li

Controlled by Mr. Li

Controlled by Mr. Li and
became a subsidiary of
the Group since
8 February 2021

Ultimately controlled by
Mr. Hu Jianbo

Ultimately controlled by
Mr. Hu Jianbo

As set out in note 32, the Group acquired the entire interests of Bejjing Lianhe
in February 2021. Beljing Lianhe became a subsidiary of the Group.

IN ADDITION TO THE TRANSACTIONS
DETAILED ELSEWHERE IN THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS, THE GROUP HAD THE
FOLLOWING TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES DURING THE YEAR:

XNTF-EREBIH

BREHERBE

tRES

Beijing Lianhe

Online education service fee to a related party

B 220215 B E20205F
8H3THIEFEE SA3IHIENEA

Year ended Eight months ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020

M EE ARET AR®T T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
3,169 2,000

R REBEBEE S LEHE 895K A
AT o

The transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and
conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.
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36. BBMARXZR&E6 (&)

C) HEBA 2HEMRS

(i)

(i)

(iv)

BEARDXTR20021F2848 W
ANRE RAEBEUREBELAEARYE
2,352,000t Bt R AELEEE
ERATWEMNB AR TES -
HDREBERANEEZENIINTE L
AR ZEBETHEE - B
XEME—SHFBTAMBER
MIEE32 ©

INF SE25FEL - AR EE T ER
TREMEFRBEAEREES
LEHEER

FR-AKEERADFNESHE
BAEEEHNAZBXANDER
BRDABITLTHABEIRE
RERBiHE REESHEHE
MERRARGG BREERAARY
580,0007T (20205 : A K #500,000
JT) e

B ZE2020F8831HLEN@AA K
EEHEAQRAESHER L EE
Rt FAEEZAERL T
AV ARKHGE REEFHE
BEMBRRRGHE BE2EAAR
#£648,0007T °

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(C) OTHER TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

(i

(i)

(iv)

As per the Company’s announcement made on 4 February
2021, the Group acquired a subsidiary, Beijing Lianhe, from
Beijing Daai Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. at a total
consideration of RMB2,352,000, based on a valuation of the
business performed by an external independent appraiser
engaged by the Group. Further details of the transaction are
included in note 32 to the financial information.

As set out in note 25, certain of the Group’s interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Li
and Ms. Yang Xuging.

During the year, the Group entered into service agreements
for the executive training course modules with Xi’an Zhaowen
Human Resources Co., Ltd., a company controlled by Mr. Hu
Jianbo, a director of the Company, for an amount totaling
RMB580,000 (2020: RMB500,000), based on the terms and
conditions mutually agreed by both parties.

During the eight months ended 31 August 2020, the Group
entered into a consulting service agreement with Beijing
Honglue Management Consulting Co., Ltd., a company
controlled by Mr. Hu Jianbo, a director of the Company, for
an amount totaling RMB648,000, based on the terms and
conditions mutually agreed by both parties.
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36. BB AR REG (EF) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
(D) AEEBFEEEBEAENME (D) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL OF THE GROUP
BE2021F HE20208F

8A3THILEEFEE SA3IHILENEA
Year ended Eight months ended

31 August 2021 31 August 2020
ARET T AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEERER Short term employee benefits 4,955 4,000
RIKEFTEIMHIR Contributions to the pension scheme 154 179
DR ERERX Equity-settled share option expense 1,189 912
BEEEEAEZNWEABME  Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 6,298 5,091
EREEREETHAEMESNE—SFES Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments are
HA B RERMETEI © included in note 9 to the financial statements.
37. €T ERN D E 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RBEPR SESHRIENREANT The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

20218 H31H 31 AUGUST 2021
THEE Financial assets
g § NN
FFERN
SREE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
AR%ET
RMB’000
FFAFEMARIE - HttEWRIER Financial assets included in prepayments,

HttEENESREE other receivables and other assets 147,503
2B ER Pledged deposits 284,115
REBELTNRE Prepayment for investments 674,517
EHBIF R Time deposits 120,090
HERHESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 775,787

2,002,012
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. ERMIENSE (&) 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
31 AUGUST 2021 (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

202158A31H (&)
eHERE

R
RAGEN

EA =R
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

ARET T
RMB’000

SFAEMEMSREREFSERAN Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
Bl =R 839,600
SFERITEREMMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 2,354,632
HEEE Lease liabilities 8,301
R ES Convertible bonds 646,459
3,848,992

202098 H31H 31 AUGUST 2020

THEE Financial assets
BATE BB HEE R
sFABRN FFEM
TREE TRMEE ®B5t
Financial assets
at fair value
through  Financial assets at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
STABEMARE HERRER Financial assets included
HthEENERERE in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets - 137,410 137,410
EEAER Pledged deposits - 271,796 271,796
REFERRE Prepayment for investments - 472,355 472,355
ReRFREEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 608,234 608,234
BEAFEFTABENESREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 118,041 - 118,041
118,041 1,489,795 1,607,836
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37.

38.

246

ERTAENDSE (&)

202058A31H (&)

THEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
31 AUGUST 2020 (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

SRAHMENRERETERN

TRAaE
SFERTRAEMER
HERE

R
BAGTEN
Ea- =R
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

ARBET T
RMB’000

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
865,249
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 1,880,040
Lease liabilities 15,758
2,761,047

ERMIANQIFERAIFEER

AEEEMITANKEER QX FE (REE
AREEUQNFEFEE)NT:

38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,
for those with carrying amounts that require recurring fair value
measurement, are as follows:

TREE
BAFEFABRRN

EBAM
BRI ERR A R

AR E 5

~EM
Group

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings

Convertible bonds

EREE NFE
Carrying amounts Fair values

20218 H31H 20208H31H 2021%F8H31H 2020%F8H31H
31 August 2021 31 August 2020 31 August 2021 31 August 2020

ARETRT ARBTR ARBTR AR®ETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

= 118,041 = 118,041

2,354,632 1,880,040 2,357,924 1,880,040
646,459 - 646,459 -
3,001,091 1,880,040 3,004,383 1,880,040
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SRIANAFERAFEER
(#&)

ERECTMG BEeRBSZEY CERE
HEEEG  SATEMRIE  EERRER
HthEENSMEE S ALLEMARER
EHEANSBABEN A FEEEEEEM
® O ITEEMABRZETANSRE-

AEEULERMBEERENYEREAENS
BMITANATVEFEEERRRER K
KEONERMBERELKEZETERER
REB/REAH MEBEXFHAIMEBMTANE
E2BHTEEARGENETEGARE -4
EREFMBEETENRSE-BRESR
EEEFTURMEBERERMANETH
HRFEMB2H-

TMEEREENATEUAZIAENRBRER
SZHFEBANRS (REIHBEEHFEERIN) &
MXZEEAR - TXHIARGTAFE
M ERBRR

SFTEERTREMERFENHATIHN A FER
BEEHERR - FERREKTFHIAN
R ALERUBEFERARESREFTE
R2021E8A31A HRAEBFERTRE
HERNTHEBENRBRMEBERN A FEE S
WHEAMTRE-

AEBRENFLTRE B EAMRIT
BRITHWEMER - AKBERABRAESRE
HEESX REEASCUKAREARNITAN
MENER A ZEFRLHTRENAFE.

THREZHEIDNRDVAEIREERE
AFEFABENEHEB - TBRRESE
A-EARAZAFEAE

38.

Bt 3% 3R R Mt 5 8220215831 AL FE
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, the current portion of pledged deposits, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief financial officer is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings has been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The change in fair value as
a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings as at 31 August 2021 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group
has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a
discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates
of instruments with similar terms and risks.

The convertible bonds were recognised as financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The
convertible bonds were measured at fair value using the binomial model.
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021

8. EMTITEMNAFERAFEREHR 38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
g FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity
analysis as at 31 August 2021:

(#&)

R2021F8ASIEMERM I BEGEZEARTRT
BERARERELBHBRESIM2HMESRS
WM

EER EXTUHER
Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input
akES “IEHAER HEEE
Convertible bonds Binomial Model Yield to maturity
15
Volatility
EERFIZ

Risk-free rate

ABE L]

Range

13.71%

44%

0.03%

DFEHBARBNHRE

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

BHEkEELA  (TH)1% (2020888318
B)RBHLATFE (BD) /BN (ARY
2,948,00070) / A R #2,967,0007T (202058 3
3IE:E)

1% (31 August 2020: Nil) increase/(decrease) in yield
to maturity would result in (decrease)/increase in fair
value by (RMB2,948,000)/RMB2,967,000
(31 August 2020: Nil)

RiELF (TH)1% (202058A318 1 B) BB
HAFEEM/ (D) ARE1,030,000%
(AR™1,029,0007) (202058A31H: %)

1% (31 August 2020: Nil) increase/(decrease) in
volatility would result in increase/(decrease) in fair
value by RMB1,030,000/(RMB1,029,000)

(31 August 2020: Nil)

BEBAELA (TH)0.05% (202058731
B:Z)REHATEEM (BD) ARY
7,000/ ( AR¥4,0007) (2020888318 :

z)

0.05% (31 August 2020: Nil) increase/(decrease)
in risk free rate would result in increase/(decrease)
in fair value by RMB7,000/(RMB4,000)

(31 August 2020: Nil)

R EER
THRUBAEESMIANATENBER:

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group’s financial instruments:

HRFEGTENEE: Assets measured at fair value:
AEETEFRMAEE
HA2021%F8H31RH As at 31 August 2021 Fair value measurement using
HE B EATEE BEATUER
miENRE WASE BWASE
(E—#4) (B=#4) (E=/) &5t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARB T AR¥T T ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BAFEFABRN Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss = = = =
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38. QEEI ENAFERAFEER 38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
(#) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
AFEEER(E) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)
BRFHEGTENEE: (&) Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)
DFEFEFAHE
202088318 As at 31 August 2020 Fair value measurement using
RER BAUBRE EATUEE
s RE PN ¢ - LN ¢ -
(-8 (5=#) (5=4) &t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARBT R ARBT T ARBT R ARBT R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEAFEFABEN Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss - 118,041 - 118,041
EHELAFENEE: Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
ATEM R A AR
M2021F8A31R As at 31 August 2021 Fair value measurement using
RE B EAAEHRE BEAFTUEE
™% R E AR WA B
(E—%) (F=#&) (£=#&) &t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETR ARMTR AR%TR AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
STEBITERREMMER  Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings - 2,362,633 - 2,362,633
TRRES Convertible bonds - - 646,459 646,459
- 2,362,633 646,459 3,009,092
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38.

39.

SMIANAFPERAFERR

(%)
AFEEHR (&)
EREAFENEE: (&)

38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (Continued)

202088318 As at 31 August 2020

FRBRTERRHEMER
other borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and

AVEFEAARE

Fair value measurement using

RAE R EATEE BEATTHE
TS HNBRE WAE WAEE
(B—%) (B=&) (=) Bt
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETR  ARBTR AR®TRE ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
- 1,880,040 - 1,880,040

MERABEEEERBR

FR EHEENATEFELEESE — K
HE_QMoBER TEEARELEE=ZH
(B ZE2020FE8H31BLENER 1 £) o

AEENTESMTABEFRRITRAEM
B RERASEEY EHRERRCENF
FR-ZEERIANTIEABRALER
MEEERES - AKERRTEHLER
EEREBE MELEEEELENHEMBER
RE - HMENRERETER-

AEESRIABRNIEARBAEAR
SeER EEARREDECAR EER
BEEEERSEARTEMRHENRER
AT -

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into and out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (during the eight months ended 31 August 2020: Nil).

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, time deposits
and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as other receivables and other
payables and accruals, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
which are summarised below.
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AEEHENTSNZEHNARERRES
SENFZERTEREB -BRNANERE
BN EE25 4 5 o

K £ 8 3 45 05 9 £ 47 ) 55 50 BA 9 e L £
EIES
TRUEBEFELMBREELTRNBERT

RE(EBFEERAZNTFE)NT:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with a floating interest
rate. The interest rates and terms of repayments of the borrowings are
disclosed in note 25.

The Group has not used any interest swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings)
as follows:

HZE2021FE8H31HLEEE

R (THE) RRBERTER
2 CR2) /1
Increase/(decrease) (Decrease)/increase

in basis points in profit before tax

Year ended 31 August 2021

AR RMB 50 (6,304)
ARME RMB (50) 6,304
B E2020F8H31HIEN\EA Eight months ended 31 August 2020

ARME RMB 50 (2,179)
ARME RMB (50 2,179

FERR

AEEERNEEFERFNE=ZFETX
S AEENHRRRERRFEEMRRETR
SNEEEREGFERETEERHERF-
o BURBEASHZFEEEEZALE
EHENERTFER-ZEREFUABEE
BEUYREMEERSENRE FAREER
KRB ENTERHEES -

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that all students and cooperative schools who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions that are
not denominated in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the specific approval.
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39.
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SRASIEMER MO B -MEFNETERE
MEERIREE-

F2021F8H31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without undue
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 August. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 August 2021

FARNRE. Financial assets included in prepayments,
HitEWFER other receivables and other assets*
HtWEERNEREE
-EE" - Normal™*

BEARS Pledged deposits
-HRaH — Not yet past due

EHEH Time deposits
-HRaH — Not yet past due

ReRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents
-HRaH — Not yet past due

REBARE Prepayment for investments
-EE" - Normal™*

TZERES
FEER ERRBGERR
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F-KE& FZRR EZRE LA % &5t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT R ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
89,021 - - 58,482 147,503
284115 = = = 284,115
120,090 - - - 120,090
775,787 = = = 175,787
674,517 = = = 674,517
1,943,530 - - 58,482 2,002,012
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 August 2020

TZEAEH
FEF#E EREGEESE
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
E-Ra E_RE ERE kb3 Bt
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARBT T ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FABRMARE Financial assets included in prepayments,
Hit W IER other receivables and other assets®
HitEERNERER
~E&E~ ~ Normal** 98,309 - - 39,101 137,410
SHEARE Pledged deposits
- REH ~ Not yet past due 271,796 - - - 271,796
HeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
-k aH — Not yet past due 608,234 - - - 608,234
RERNRE Prepayment for investments
~EE~ ~ Normal** 472,355 - - - 472,355
BEAFEFABRN Financial asses at fair value through
SREE profit or loss
— i R H ~ Not yet past due 118,041 - - - 118,041
1,568,735 - - 39,101 1,607,836

v FEFAFANTHE R ERF AR AEERAE S
REENRMEEEANTBEEN S  BERBEHE
B 7Y B HL B T 32 W 200 1% FE

BRFAABRMAE AtERFERAMEE K
ERNKEANETHBEE WAEEE AW EE
HEXBZEMEE R NI ERUREARREEES
W RRBRGEHEERIEE] BR 2HBEE
HEHEERBE T4 -

HRAEEERNEREFERINE=DE
TR HUEBAFAEFR - FERRESD
EREF/HFL HERTXEE -AEE
TESEETHNEERR-

For financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets to
which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets, and prepayment for investments is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical region and
by industry sector. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk
within the Group.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

S B L B
FEEEHHRSRESEMY HERST

REMEREENEERR -

TRELAHRAREAZAEZARBTIERNG
BEURgs EMEHMSARETENG
MT  HASEERREBROBRBANER (2
REBEEREENAFEED)NHRE
7 e

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has currency exposures from its cash and cash equivalents and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate of RMB
against USD and HKD, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

EnkBrTER BR B A1 228
(T¥) /E£H (H4) /#hn

(Decrease)/increase  (Decrease)/increase
in USD and HKD rate in profit before tax

% AR®T T

% RMB’000
BE2021F8A31HILEFE Year ended 31 August 2021
MARBEETRE If RMB weakens against USD (5) 153
MARBEETHE If RMB strengthens against USD 5 (153)
B TRETRE If HKD weakens against USD (5) (32,323)
B TRETHE If HKD strengthens against USD 5 32,323
MARBEBTERE If RMB weakens against HKD (5) (63,539)
MARBEBTHE If RMB strengthens against HKD 5 63,539
B E2020F8831H L@ A Eight months ended 31 August 2020
MARBEETRE If RMB weakens against USD (5) -
MARBEETHE If RMB strengthens against USD 5 -
MARBEBTERE If RMB weakens against HKD (5) (17,080)
MARBEBTHE If RMB strengthens against HKD 5 17,080
REE SRR LIQUIDITY RISK

AEEFNAKCEMRDESTHETAEEH
ETERNAR - ZTAZEETRRERS
MEEMENIBABERRRELEXBNE
FAIRERE -

AEEEEEBNARTENR TRKRES
HEEBERAMIAEERGERESHENLH
BEEM BT

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial investments and financial assets and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans, convertible bonds,
lease liabilities and other interest-bearing loans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the

tREERHEBERNT reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:
RERK =AR Z=Z+=f@A —-ZAHE &%
Less than 31012 1105
20218318 31 August 2021 On demand 3 months months years Total
ARETR ARETR ARETT AR¥ETTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TRRES Convertible bonds 649,184 - - - 649,184
HEEE Lease liabilities - 2,657 4,383 1,447 8,487
FERTREMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings - 140,332 371,895 2,169,965 2,682,192
FARtENTER Financial liabilities included in
EiERNSREE other payables and accruals 839,600 - - - 839,600
1,488,784 142,989 376,278 2,171,412 4,179,463
REXE @Al Z=Z+=fA -ZRF Bt
Less than 31012 1105
202068 H31H 31 August 2020 On demand 3 months months years Total
AR®ETR ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FERTREMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings - 302,307 451673 1,369,407 2,123,387
FARMESRER Financial liabilities included in other
B ERNERER payables and accruals 865,249 - - - 865,249
865,249 302,307 451,673 1,369,407 2,988,636
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EXEHE
AEBEFAEENTIEEEARRAEEN
FHEEERIRERBROEARL R UX
FEXBAERREERKL-

AEERBEERINEBREHREENR
BESREEEEA LB HEELHAE-
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REBEEMRNEERBLINT:

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year
ended 31 August 2021 and the eight months ended 31 August 2020.

The debt-to-asset ratios at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

BERE Total liabilities
EELE Total assets
EESEBLER Debt-to-asset ratios

20208 HA31H
31 August 2020

202148 H31H
31 August 2021

ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
4,739,816 3,353,904
7,932,123 5,856,629
60% 57%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(1)

As per the Company’s announcement dated 28 September 2021,
further to the announcements made in April 2021, the Company
updated that the acquisition of Zhengzhou City Vocational College
(“Zhengzhou School”) at a total consideration of RMB673,516,600
has obtained all applicable approvals from the relevant government
authorities and the Group is the sole school sponsor of the
Zhengzhou School with effective from 28 September 2021. As the
Group is still in the process of assessing the initial accounting for
above acquisition, the relevant financial information of Zhengzhou
School will be included in the Group’s 2022 annual financial
statements.

As per the Company’s announcement dated 28 September 2021,
the Company made the full redemption of convertible bonds
amounted to US$100,000,000 in accordance with the applicable
terms and conditions in relation to the convertible bonds and prior
to its maturity due date.

As per the Company’s announcement dated 28 October 2021, the
Group will repurchase shares of the Company in the open market,
at a maximum aggregate amount of HK$300,000,000, pursuant
to the resolutions passed at the annual general meeting held on
22 January 2021.

As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 19 November
2021, the Group entered into Shareholders’ Agreement (the
“Agreement”) in relation to the school sponsor’s interest in
Northeast School. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group would
acquire the remaining 26.09% school sponsor’s interest of
Northeast School for a total consideration of RMB292,500,000.
Upon completion of the acquisition process, the Northeast School
will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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41.
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

FRBEE
RN
EHEEE

FRBEERE

REBEE
BEeERBETEEY
[SF: R LRERN

F&E W Fff /& 2 7]

RBEERE

AN
BRI R H AR
H At B A9 $UE R FE S 2

RBEERE

RBEEFE

EERERRBDAER

e EY
HERTR A ER

FRBEERE

EERE

R
&N
®% (Brat)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries
Right-of-use assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Pledged deposits

Due from subsidiaries

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

20214 20205
2021 2020
ARET T AREETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
446,239 446,239
1,033 2,446
447,272 448,685
12,715 2,800
3,833 4,073
1,918,501 1,425,454
1,935,049 1,432,327
20,087 85,543
7,283 71,213
27,370 156,756
1,907,679 1,275,571
2,354,951 1,724,256
606,300 260,021
606,300 260,021
1,748,651 1,464,235
1,086 1,056
1,747,565 1,463,179
1,748,651 1,464,235
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

202091 B 1A &8k

EEIR2019FREAKRE
HALEIKRELRHE

BITRD
MURENNEREZ

2020F IR B

202068 H31H

FRAZHEKEBE
BITRAD

MR 81T B X

LUBR RS2 A HO BB IR 48 2

BRER W ERE
ERBRERE

2021 F P HEIIR B

202188318

Balance at 1 January 2020

Final 2019 dividend declared

Total comprehensive income
for the period

Issue of shares

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Interim 2020 dividend

At 31 August 2020

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Transfer of share option reserve
upon the forfeiture or expiry of
share options

Interim 2021 dividend

At 31 August 2021

EX
B 5% & EXEE BRERE B 1A REEE #at
Share Exchange
Share Capital option Retained fluctuation
premium reserve reserve profits reserve Total
AR¥BFT T AR®BTR ARBTRT AR®BTRT AR¥TRT AR%T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1,002,113 446,239 10,222 49,546 13,753 1,521,873
- - - (49,315) - (49,315)
- - - 64,591 (9,175) 55,416
347 - (71) - - 276
- - (345) - - (345)
_ - - (64,726) - (64,726)
1,002,460 446,239 9,806 96 4,578 1,463,179
- - - 217,475 (57,664) 159,811
208,070 - (625) - - 207,445
(2,883) - - - - (2,883)
- - 6,498 - - 6,498
- - (865) - - (865)
- - - (85,620) - (85,620)
1,207,647 446,239 14,814 131,951 (563,086) 1,747,565

R B B R

BB ERCTA2021F 1B 0B EEES &

R

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 30 November 2021.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BE017F Bz20185% HZ20198 BZ20208 BE0215F
128318 128310 128318 8A31H 8A31A
mEEE ILFE LFE I35 IENER EEE
Year ended Year ended Year ended Eight months Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December  ended 31 August 31 August
Results of operations 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ARBTR ARBTRT AR¥ETR AR®Tn AR¥ET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Revenue 414,405 561,450 1,089,221 721,644 1,497,455
EY il Gross profit 227,500 286,421 542,639 288,647 667,163
8/ EREFH Net profit for the period/year 233,322 254,268 430,354 197,095 591,797
AT AL RS Attributable to:
BRAREEA Owners of the parent 233,368 242,530 386,446 174,909 567,824
20175 20185 20195 20205 20215
EERERE 128318 128318 128318 8A31E 8A31H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 August 31 August
Assets and Liabilities 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
AR®Tn ARETRT ARETR AR®Tn ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
FRBEE Non-current assets 2,326,642 4,103,810 4,849,628 4,719,048 6,590,227
RBEE Current assets 243,261 549,699 1,151,737 1,137,581 1,341,896
hBaE Current liabilities 667,996 1,632,355 2,124,500 2,057,933 2,609,083
hBeEFE Net current liabilities (424,735) (1,082,656) (972,763) (920,352) (1,267,187)
EELERRDAR Total assets less current liabilities 1,901,907 3,021,154 3,876,865 3,798,696 5,323,040
FRBEE Non-current liabilities 177,052 741,943 925,209 1,295,971 2,130,733
BRER Total equity 1,724,855 2,279,211 2,951,656 2,502,725 3,192,307
ME - BERZ Property, plant and equipment 985,301 2,116,119 3,089,932 3,100,669 4,091,258
ReREEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 118,648 349,630 559,007 608,234 775,787
BB Deferred revenue 249,599 472,928 725,363 274,029 350,933
SFERTREMER Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 352,259 1,286,847 1,486,829 1,895,798 2,354,632
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

20178 20184 20195 20205 20214

B bt & 128318 128318 128318 8A31H 8A31H

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 August 31 August

Financial ratios 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

ARETFT AREFT ARBEF T ARETR ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

REL = Current Ratio 0.4 0.3 05 0.6 0.5

BARLLE (HE2) Gearing ratio (Vote 2) 20.4% 56.5% 50.4% 75.7% 74.0%
Btz . BEELREREREBEEBRUEER -BES M2 Gearing ratio equals to ratio of interest-bearing debt divided by total equity as of the end
BERFERTERREMERUREEESE of the year. Interest-bearing debt equals to the total amount of interest-bearing bank loans

g o and other borrowings and lease liabilities.

BE017F HE2018F HZ20198 HZ20208 Bzo015

128318 12A31H 12A31H 8H31H 8A31H

BeRE LFE LEE LEE IENEA LEE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Eight months Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December  ended 31 August 31 August

Cash flows 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

ARBTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARETR  AR%TR

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

RETBMEHERERE Net cash flows from operating activities 287,060 456,736 830,909 45,526 728,779

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &3 261



262

DEFINITIONS

[EBAL

“affiliate(s)”

[AAEERMA =48]

“Articles of Association” or “Articles”

['Aspire Education Consulting |

“Aspire Education Consulting”

['Aspire Education Management |

“Aspire Education Management”

[ Aspire Education Technology |
“Aspire Education Technology”
(B8 A

“associate(s)”

[ A |

“Ba Mu Pu”

[HeZEnH]

“Bei Ai Company”

BAEMBEALIMS BEESFEEFNZBEATIIZHEE A T Z 65 E
ZREATHEEREES I AEZSNEMEMA L

with respect to any specific person, any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or
controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with such specified person

R2017E3A20B B HRHRMN A QA BEBERME (KTEEET)
the articles of association of the Company conditionally adopted on 20 March 2017, as
amended from time to time

Aspire Education Consulting Co., Ltd.» —R2015F10A15ARBERBHER REFE
ERAMBRINERAR HELEERINWRIKEETEE9.19%

Aspire Education Consulting Co., Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands on 15 October 2015 and owned as to 79.19% by a family trust
established by Mr. Li

Aspire Education Management Co., Ltd.» —BIH2015F 108158 RIBERBHER =EF
EEXEFMAINERAR AT AE2EHRR

Aspire Education Management Co., Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated under the
laws of the British Virgin Islands on 15 October 2015 and wholly owned by Mr. Li

Aspire Education Technology Co., Ltd.» —RH2015F10B15BRIBEEBHEB D
EERAMBRINERAT HELEERCT.7%

Aspire Education Technology Co., Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated under the
laws of the British Virgin Islands on 15 October 2015 and owned as to 61.7% by Mr. Li

EELLMRBIMETHESE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EREARBEREERAT  —ER2010F58248RBEHPBEEZERINER 2
T OBHEEEEET9.19% EEEHEF0.80% EREHF0.98% BEEEHF0.40%"
EEHER0.59%  BEFIHEH0.15%  ZIEAEBI2% R B L L HEB14.37% - Fr =
EERBLZET(ZEEEZ )N BRENRERREYABYE=F BKH
AT ERR2—EBEEEZSEEM5.7305% K #

Kunming Bamupu Technology Co., Ltd.* (2B AKHERIFLER 2 F) , a limited liability
company established under the laws of the PRC on 24 May 2010, which is owned as to
79.19% by Mr. Li, 0.80% by Qin Hongkang (Z=Z B ) , 0.98% by Pan Yi (&ER) , 0.40%
by Yang Junxiong (#38#) , 0.59% by Wang Lei (GEE ), 0.15% by Yao Li (ki) ,
3.52% by Liu Fengming (2I/@ B ) and 14.37% Ms. Yang (# Z ) . Except for Mr. Li and
Ms. Yang (# Z 1) , the spouse of Mr. Li, all shareholders of Ba Mu Pu are Independent
Third Parties. Ba Mu Pu is one of the New Registered Shareholders and holds 5.7305%
equity interest of Yun Ai Group

TRERERAEREEREMELQT  —ER2012F10816 B IRIEFBEIEERL
NWERAR HEEEE2ERF - LEBEARAHREERNE —SRENHE
Beijing Aiyinsheng Education Investment Co., Lid* (t R EREHEREFREMT A
7] ) , a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 16 October 2012,
and wholly owned by Yun Ai Group. Bei Ai Company is the sole school sponsor of the Gansu
School
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[ERAESE

“Beijing Daai Gaoxue”

[Hem=7E ]

“Beijing Fangzhi”

[ =S |

“Beijing Lianhe”

ISyt

“Beijing New Higher Education”

=0

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[EBEFEHE (20195F) ]

“Business Cooperation
Agreement (2019)”

[&%A]

“Business Day” or “business day”

ELEDY

“Central China School”

[HERE]

“Chengxin Investment”

Bx
DEFINITIONS

TRAESEHERFEERAR —ER2018F3AHEFBER LN ER L
ACHEEEEZEHEE

Beijing Daai Gaoxue Education Technology Co., Lid* (IR AESE2HERHEAR
AE]) , a limited liability company established in the PRC on 23 March 2018. It is wholly
owned by Yun Ai Group

TRFEERLCXEBEFROA —BR2020F4820B REFEEER L2
BRAF

Beijing Fangzhi Yuanlue Corporate Management Co., Ltd.* (bt 5 EE K X EIE 5 R
‘A |)) , alimited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 20 April 2020

TRBEHRBRBEREERAT —ER2014F6 B 17ARBPBEEERILL
BERAR AZEEENEEZENE AR

Beijing Lianhe Open Education Technology Co., Ltd* (It RS RBRBERFEBRA
Al) , a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 17 June 2014,
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Yun Ai Group

TRFEEREBERERAR —BEFERNINERAT REZEENS
EME QA

Beijing New Higher Education Science and Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (dt =# &
HRREBEREGRAT), a company established in the PRC with limited liability and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Yun Ai Group

KATRESE
the board of Directors of the Company

BEAR BETEGREHBEERETCARRIT LNERSEHE
the business cooperation agreement entered into by and among Huihuang Company, the
Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and the New Registered Shareholders

BERIT-ROAZHEANEEENBEF(EHRA EFASEELARRBER
M)

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for business to the public and which
is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong

ERTAE REXHILERBEAZBREER EEABLERER —BR
2003$$E‘<?FEP BZZBINSSHERB - ETERRBEADNANGEHEE
B
After the completion of the transfer, the school name was changed from to Science and
Technology College of Hubei Minzu University* (34t B R K 22 R ZBx ) to Hubei Enshi
College (84t B HEEEPR ) , an institution of higher education established under the laws of
the PRC in 2003. Central China School is a consolidated affiliated entity of the Company

EAAREREREEESBLE(ERER)  —HBR2015F12812BREH
BRI NEREREE TEEERAEEBERARTEBEAERHEE
EEA%}\ BEGEE (ZEEZTFNERK) RREERRRE - HAFREB2019
FeRAWEETBAZEEEMNTERR
Kashi Daai Chengxin Investment Management Limited Partnership* (BB{t K BHERE
EEEBLE (BEREE)), alimited partner established under the laws of the PRC on
12 December 2015 with Mr. Li as its general partner and ten individuals acting as its limited
partners, including Yang Xuwei ( #5 fB4E) , the sister-in-law of Mr. Li, and the Principal
of Northeast School. Chengxin Investment ceased to be a Registered Shareholder of Yun Ai
Group since 26 August 2019
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[ B
“China” or “PRC”

[EEZBEA

“close associate(s)”

IPNCIEES N

“Companies Ordinance”

[E) (588 KM IER ) 5451 ]

“Companies (WUMP) Ordinance”

[ARAFE] ]
“Company”

[BEE AL
“connected person(s)”

MZRRR]

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ BEEA L]
“core connected person(s)

%2R
“Corporate Governance Code”

[REEH]

“Daai Partnership”

FEARLNE BiAREMS  TEESE BRMBITHERAE
the People’s Republic of China excluding for the purpose of this report, Hong Kong, the
Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

BB LETRBFFETNRE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

DNEMERG) (BEBEGH622E) (HApe KT BT WRK B TER)
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as the same may be
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

AT CEBRRMEMGRI)GRE (FEBEHENE) (HURETEEIT #Ha®
BATEH)

the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

FEFSHREEERAT —ER016F7ASHEHEHETMALNERR
BRAE

China New Higher Education Group Limited (P EI#FT &2 EBER 2 7)) , an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 July 2016

BEELTRAMETHES
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EELTRAFMEFHRE RIXEZEME TRIREAQRTWERKE
B Aspire Education Technology ~ Aspire Education Management » Aspire Education Consulting
REXRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the context requires
otherwise, refers to the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Aspire Education
Technology, Aspire Education Management, Aspire Education Consulting and Mr. Li

EELLMRBIMETHERE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

FHRBIM ST IR EEESRE R
Code on corporate governance practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

BHAEREEECRLE (BRER)  —ER2015F1288ARIBPEEE
RIMNEREELE BESFEAEBERAURZTAEREESFEAER
EBA - KREEBENVFSAGETHAEZEEEENRLERRE

Kashi Daai Investment Management Limited Partnership* (BBt AEREEE S H
2 (BRE%)), a limited partnership established under the laws of the PRC on
8 December 2015 with Ma Chongliang ( B 5= 52 ) acting as the general partner and Mr. Li
and Ma Chongliang ( 552 %) acting as the limited partner. Daai Partnership ceased to be
a Registered Shareholder of Yun Ai Group since 26 August 2019

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



Bx

DEFINITIONS

[RERA 15 BEAERMARBEZABTRAT —BER2018F3A 4B EFERINER D
A-HAZEESE2EESE

“Daai Shuren” Beijing Daai Shuren Education Consulting Company Limited* (It R X BB AR EFEHAE

PR 2 &) , a limited liability company established in the PRC on 14 March 2018. It is wholly
owned by Yun Ai Group

[E=] & AARES

“Director(s)” the directors of the Company

[EEEEE (2019%F) ] & BEHEEEERESEERTELINERESRES

“Directors’ Powers of Attorney (2019)” the school directors’ power of attorney to be executed by each of the directors of each PRC

Operating School

[BEandl & R aNESHAERREREMT LA —ER2014F11B13EIREBEFEERE
RIMNEBRAFR HEEEKEEL2ERE -REQAAAEPERNERERE
“Enchang Company” Enshi Autonomous Prefecture Changging Education Development Co., Ltd.* ( B} B 34 M

EEHEREEMREME AT, alimited liability company established under the laws of
the PRC on 13 November 2014. It is wholly owned by Yun Ai Group. Enchang Company is the
school sponsor of Central China School

[REEHEHZE (2019F) ] B RERR - EZEEREBELAASR AT LNREZ T HHE
“Equity Pledge Agreement (2019)” the equity pledge agreement entered into by and among the Registered Shareholders, Yun Al

Group and Huihuang Company

[ PR e s 3 | & M2019F 826 H R2019F12H6H T x4 - HERE - AEEH BERER
FEBAESEENEHEEEZEEEBRE
“Equity Transfers” the transfer of equity interests in Yun Ai Group from each of Mr. Li, Chengxin Investment,

Daai Partnership, Huihuang Investment and Shanghai Taifu to Songming Dexue on 26 August
2019 and 6 December 2019

[BRIBHEHZE (2009F)] 8 BEAR BEFEAECHBEERETCARRITLNEBERABHEGZ

“Exclusive Call Option the exclusive call option agreement entered into by and among Huihuang Company, the
Agreement (2019)” Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and the New Registered Shareholders

[ B RE MR R & BEAREBEFESREHEBEERIT YN BEREMREREEZAHZ
EEBEAWZE (20195F) |

“Exclusive Technical Service and the exclusive technical service and management consultancy agreement entered into by and
Management Consultancy among Huihuang Company and the Existing PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities

Agreement (2019)”

[REPEHEEER] & ATV R EABHEENRNASHEBEER IERER - BEMNER - BBER.
RLEER BEAREBR -FERER
“Existing PRC Operating Schools” the consolidated affiliated entities as at the time of the entering into of the Existing

Structured Contracts, namely, Yunnan School, Guizhou School, Luoyang School, Northeast
School, Guangxi Schools, Central China School

[BEHFEGEHESE] 18 REEREBRERREFEEEER
“Existing PRC Consolidated namely, the Existing Schools Sponsors and the Existing PRC Operating Schools

Affiliated Entities”
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[REERENRE

“Existing School Sponsors”

(REEBHEAN]

“Existing Structured Contracts”

[HERZER

“Gansu School”

[ Greenwoods 2 8 1 &F |

“Greenwoods Jia Xin Rui Xuan”

[AEEm ] =% [

“Group", “we” or “us”

[EEZER]

“Guangxi Schools”

R LR EABHEEGNNNREERENEEELE®/ THER BELF -
PMEE -BREQAFARIEELF

the current school sponsors, Yun Ai Group, Henan Rongyu, Haxuan Company, Qinzhou
Yinghua, Enchang Company and Bei Ai Company as at the time of the entering into of the
Existing Structured Contracts

BRERTFEENEEERREMNERNEBMEESH - NA T HEA2018F
10ABHMAERFEENEBEREBMEESHN - RAT B HA20185F12810
HWASEFAMBEENRLEREBEESAN -AQTAHA2019F1A1EANAD
EREENEAEREBEEARANG A A2019F8A268 M A E R AT
HENEREREBEED

namely, the structured contracts for Yunnan School and Guizhou School as disclosed in the
prospectus, the structured contracts for Luoyang School as disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 8 October 2018, the structured contracts for Northeast School as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10 December 2018, the structured
contracts for Guangxi Schools as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
11 January 2019 and the structured contracts for Central China School as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 August 2019

AEEAIHHEER] AEBERRIHEER] BRERE RBLEM
BETITAREFMIEER FEEABRMNEERKER  —BR2004FREPEE
BRINBISEHEKE

Formerly abbreviated as “Gansu College”, and now abbreviated as “Gansu School”, where
after the completion of the transfer, the name of the school was changed from College of
Technology and Engineering* (B NI T KE# 9l TFZEZPT) to Lanzhou College of
Information Science and Technology ( B8 M 15 2 &£ 2B ) , an independent institution of
higher education established under the laws of the PRC in 2004

GreenwoodsZ EIHHF R EGB X (BREE)  —HARBEHEEERILZER
ERLHE

Greenwoods Jia Xin Rui Xuan Tou Zi He Huo Qi Ye (You Xian He Huo) (Greenwoods3z & ¥
HREEGBLZE (BREE) ), alimited partnership established under the laws of the
PRC

RAF -EFENHEBLAR FEEEERRFACHBER IR FXEME
BRAATHBEAMBARNERATZAINBBEMEREEKRELE R
SEBAEBNER

the Company, its subsidiaries, the PRC Operating Schools and the Consolidated Affiliated
Entities from time to time, or, where the context so requires in respect of the period before
the Company became the holding company of the present subsidiaries, the entities which
carried on the business of the present Group at the relevant time

EREEFEERELSR EARMNEEARBERNTERREAEEZFHEE
BB ECAB EORERALRQATANGEHBEEE

together, Guangxi Yinghua International Occupation College* (EPH S EBI MR £ &%) |
Guangxi Qinzhou Yinghua International Occupation and Technology School* ( J& 78 &% 2
EE MR R MTZ KL ) and Guangxi Yinghua International Occupation Middle School* ( &
THSE EEPRE E E PR M B 2 ) . Guangxi Schools are consolidated affiliated entities of
the Company

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



[EMER]

“Guizhou School”

[MRE2F ]

“Haxuan Company”

BUISES -3

“Henan Rongyu”

DA = AT

“HK$”, “Hong Kong dollar(s)”,

“HKD” or “cents”

[&#]
“Hong Kong” or “HK”

Mg sl

“Huihuang Company”

(BYE=5H]

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

[ £
“Listing”

[ £ AH
“Listing Date”

[EmR A

“Listing Rules”

[ERiE (2019%) ]
“Loan Agreement (2019)”

Bx
DEFINITIONS

BMNIEBESR —BRA02F7AARBHIEEZERNINRISEEEHK
FHE HERENERRZRAEEEEZERE ARQANGEHESE
Guizhou Vocational College of Industry & Commerce, formerly known as Guizhou Technology
and Business Institute* (E M T K22 FT) , a private institution of formal higher
education established under the laws of the PRC on 3 July 2012, of which the school
sponsor’s interest is wholly owned by Yun Ai Group and a consolidated affiliated entity of the
Company

BREBHENEERAR  —ER2016F48 198 RBEFEEEXLNERA
Ao-KHEATARLEBRNOME —BERE

Harbin Xuande Technology Co., Ltd.* (MBI EEFERIL AR AT ), a limited liability
company established under the laws of the PRC on 19 April 2016. Haxuan Company is the
sole sponsor of the Northeast School

TR BBRERAERLT —ER2017F3A2BERTERLZ2ERAT H
TRABSELERBE - THEABARGERNERERE

Henan Rongyu Education Consulting Co., Ltd.* A LB BEBHEBR L T), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 2 March 2017, and wholly-owned by
Beijing Daai Gaoxue. Henan Rongyu is the school sponsor of the Luoyang School

DAIABAREBI EERENEEEY
Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency for the time being of Hong
Kong

FEEBFNTHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

ARAZREBEEFEERFEARATE  —ER2016F8ABREBEPBEERINE
RAR AAKENEZEMRE AR

Tibet Daai Huihuang Information and Technology Co., Ltd.* (AR A ZEEEEREAE
BR-XF]) , a limited liability company established on 5 August 2016 under the laws of the
PRC, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group

BIRALABREBEALTREARSTEBENE=
third party(ies) who is/are independent of and not connected with the Company and its
connected persons

B9 B SR PR EAR T
the listing of our Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

201754 B 190
19 April 2017

GRS LR A (BREEET)
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from time
to time

EBEAR RAETEHEEEREEEEBIT LNERTZ
a loan agreement entered into by and among Huihuang Company, the Existing PRC Operating
Schools, and Yun Ai Group
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DEFINITIONS

[E&EER

“Luoyang School”

[Z 54 |
“Mr. Li”

[ E4]
“Main Board”

[@sr 8]
“Model Code”

#7520
“MOE’

KXo
“Ms. Yang”

[#CBRR

“New Registered Shareholders”

(BTSN

“New Structured Contracts”

AIERADTEER] REEAIBBER] BHEREBEZR - —BR2013
FREPEEZERINRISEEEAERB - EHERAEARZHEEH
EER

Formerly abbreviated as “Henan School”, and now abbreviated as “Luoyang School”, Luoyang
Science and Technology Vocational College* (& B BBt B85 ) | a private institution
of formal higher education established under the laws of the PRC in 2013. Luoyang School
is a consolidated affiliated entity of the Company

ZZHEE  AQTANANRA EF—BERRR ESSXERATES
Mr. Li Xiaoxuan (Z=ZF) | the founder, one of the controlling shareholders, chairman of
the Board and an executive Director of the Company

HEBEXMEENESRZM (T EEBEDS)  HB A8 FrGEMIL 82 2
BHTER

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operated in parallel with the GEM of the Stock Exchange

FHRAMET BN LT RTAZEBETESF RS NEESTA
the model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

FEHAE
the Ministry of Education of the PRC

BRELZt ER4ENEE
Ms. Yang Xuging (#5783 ) , the spouse of Mr. Li

EZEERERERREEZEANRE  DEASHEKCESEZRNERAT
ERENHREERAT SHESERSHPRCEEEZARBEERLA
the shareholders of Yun Ai Group immediately after the completion of the Equity Transfers,
namely Kunming Paiduipai Economic Information Consultancy Co., Ltd., Kunming Bamupu
Technology Co., Ltd., Songming Dexue and Songming Zhongyi Enterprise Management and
Consulting Services Co., Ltd.

¥BEEDE Q09F) BREMBEREEZANE (2019F) BRAB
EARER iR (20196F) - IRFEE | & (20195 ) - RREF ZFEHZH (20195F)
BRENARESEANZTHE 2019F) BREREREE (2019F) -
EEREEE QUIFE) BREEEE (20195F) - EXREHZE (20195 ) REBEE
(20195 ) 2 &1 HFERHR AL T A R20190F8H26B N A S [FEBE
&1 —8

collectively, the Business Cooperation Agreement (2019), the Exclusive Technical Service and
Management Consultancy Agreement (2019), the Exclusive Call Option Agreement (2019),
the Equity Pledge Agreement (2019), the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreement
(2019), the School Sponsor’s and Directors’ Rights Entrustment Agreement (2019), the
School Sponsors’ Powers of Attorney (2019), the Directors’ Powers of Attorney (2019), the
Shareholders’ Powers of Attorney (2019), the Loan Agreement (2019) and the Spouse’s
Undertakings (2019) details of which are set out in the section headed “The New Structured
Contracts” in the announcement of the Company dated 26 August 2019

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT
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_|
R}
B
™
il
—
S
mE

BEEBLUATBEE I ERECHCE(BRER) —ER2016F4A87A 1R
BHREZLZERINERGE LY HEBERHRLERRRERERKKE
BE-ZEEQAREE R A TMN26.00% #
“Ningde Company” Ningbo Meishan Bonded Port Area Deshida Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
EEBLABHEEELTERESRLE (BMREH)), a limited liability
partnership established under the laws of the PRC on 7 April 2016, of which the
partnershipinterest is owned by the principal of the Northeast School and his family
members. Ningde Company owns 26.09% equity interest of Haxuan Company

[RIEBR] B BHEBEEZEESR —BR00M4FREBEFEEZERINRHSEHEKBE - R
BRARQNANGEHEEE
“Northeast School” Harbin Huade University* (RS ER/EZEZEPR ) , a private institute of higher education

established under the laws of the PRC in 2004. Northeast School is a consolidated affiliated
entity of the Company

[ BE%5E ] 8 ERSHEEKESEERBAERLT —BR2010F6 2B RIBEPEEER LY
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ GIE Haéﬁ%i%ﬁm.%% TIRALAEE3.84% BB HEB3.06%  HIEHE
B5.43% EIBEE1.45% B L L HEHF1556% =EHEE1.06% B EHEE2.67%"
ERER0L7% REREB054%  KREBEBHEB053% BB HEB0.52%K 5
B B3 28% - BRELXE - BLLT (FTEEET) BB (ZLEESTFHAE
H) ZRA(ZRENRY)RGESR (ZXESFWEB) N IEALS
BBEYE=F HHHAFHTCERRZ—REFEEEEKE20.0568% #
“Pai Dui Pai” Kunmmg Pa|du|pa| Economic Information Consultancy Co., Ltd.* ( EFRHEEH L EE R
BB AT, a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on
2 June 2010, which is owned as to 61.48% by Mr. Li, 3.84% by Li Yaohong ( Z=#BAL) ,
3.06% by Miao Qiongfen (B ¥25) | 5.43% by Huang Wei (E &) , 1.45% by Wang Yan
(EJB) , 15.56% by Ms. Yang (#B 22 L), 1.06% by Yuan Song (== ) , 2.67% by Liu
Yun (BIZE) , 0.57% by Lv Xuerui ( B ESE) , 0.54% by Wu Shiyi (SRttE2) , 0.53% by
Zhu Wanzhen (kB ®') , 0.52% by Yang Xufen (#2 fB%) and 3.28% by Yang Xuyan (4%
JBE8) . Except for Mr. Li, Ms. Yang (the spouse of Mr. Li), Yang Xufen (#2/B2%5) | the sister
in-law of Mr. Li, Li Yaohong ( ZZ#B4L) , the sister of Mr. Li, and Yang Xuyan ( #3 /B %) |
the sister-in-law of Mr. Li, all are Independent Third Parties. Pai Dui Pai is one of the New
Registered Shareholders and holds 20.0568% equity interest of Yun Ai Group

[FEGEHESE] & NEREBRERTHEEER FEAFRATNGEHBEERBURRBRELE
MEHN (BTEB HATEENEMBEZR AT
“PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities” namely, the School Sponsors and the PRC Operating Schools, each a consolidated affiliated

entity of the Company and other investment holding companies which were consolidated to
the Group by virtue of the Structure Contracts, as amended from time to time

[l EERER & BREEMEKA AAREREPBEERZERER
“PRC Legal Advisors” Commerce & Finance Law Offices, the Company’s Legal advisors as to PRC Laws
[FEEEZR] & FEHEER DEEER BEMNER FHEER RLELER ERER -ESH

BR - HEERURBRBEBESH (BFARE) A ALEENEMER
the consolidated affiliated entities, namely, Yunnan School, Guizhou School, Luoyang School,
Northeast School, Guangxi Schools, Central China School, Gansu School and other schools
which were consolidated to the Group by virtue of the Structured Contracts, as amended
from time to time

“PRC Operating Schools

[BRER] 15 AAT B AE017F4IBBNIBRER
“Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated 5 April 2017
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[ERM S |

“Qinzhou Yinghua”

[RE&RR]

“Registered Shareholders”

[¥REHAR ]
“Reporting Period”

[ARY]
“RMB” or “Renminbi”

[EREHRE

“School Sponsors”

[ERERER ESEF

ZEtHE (20195 ) J

“School Sponsors’ and

Directors’ Rights Entrustment

Agreement (2019)”

[ERE|ERERES (20195F) ]

“School Sponsors’ Powers of

Attorney (2019)”
[ 5 R BB RG]
“SFO”

[z ]
“Share(s)”

[ ]
“Shareholder(s)”

[IRREEE (2019F) ]

“Shareholders’ Powers of
Attorney (2019)”

5

BMNEEAXEHREREARAT —BR2017F8A2ARBEPEEERILZ
BRAT THSHFELERE INKELAEAERNERERE

Qinzhou Yinghua Datang Education Investment Company Limited* ($X M E K EHBRE
BIRAT]), alimited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 25 August
2017 and wholly owned by Songming Xinju. Qinzhou Yinghua is the school sponsor of the
Guangxi Schools

EFEEMNRE (BTEER)
the shareholders of Yun Ai Group, as updated from time to time

BE2021F8A31HLFE
the year ended 31 August 2021

AR FERENEEEY
Renminbi, the lawful currency for the time being of the PRC

REEREPEEEZEE TEER BEAT KMNEE - BELQAF LELQ
FAURBEEBEESN (BRRET) FARSENEMERERE

the current school sponsors, Yun Ai Group, Henan Rongyu, Haxuan Company, Qinzhou
Yinghua, Enchang Company, Bei Ai Company and other school sponsors which were
consolidated to the Group by virtue of the Structured Contracts, as amended from time to
time

REERERE RETELEER REERENEZINEHESRIER
AREITNERBREREZRANETHE

the school sponsors’ and directors’ rights entrustment agreement entered into by and among
the Existing School Sponsors, the Existing PRC Operating Schools, the relevant directors
appointed by the Existing School Sponsors and Huihuang Company

REERERBUBEATASREARITNERBREARERES
the school sponsors’ power of attorney executed by the Existing School Sponsors in favor of
Huihuang Company

BERBERGN (BEBEMENE) (BTBEITRER)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended
and supplemented from time to time

AATRAFEREEMNETHNEBR
ordinary share(s) of US$0.0001 each in the share capital of the Company

BHFEEA
holder(s) of the Share(s)

FRERRAREZEEURRBREFEBUESHNHAREENE MR RUER
DABIRABINRRERESE

the shareholders’ power of attorney executed by the New Registered Shareholders and Yun
Ai Group and other shareholders which were consolidated to the Group by virtue of the New
Structured Contracts in favor of Huihuang Company

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



[ B 2 B [ #% 7 |

“Share Repurchase Mandate”

[RREMNEZXHZ (20195F) |

“Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment
Agreement (2019)”

~

r

it

25 |

B &=

“Songming Dexue”

[SHHE ]

“Songming Xinju”

[Ee{BAFE (20195 ) |
“Spouse’s Undertakings (2019)”
[BEXPTlsl (BB
“Stock Exchange” or

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

[EBHan

“Structured Contracts”

(ML=
“subsidiary(ies)”

[FERF]
“substantial Shareholder(s)”

E
“UsD” or “U.S.$”

5

Bx
DEFINITIONS

RIERDNBRR0IFIARBRTHRRBFASEBNRARRRRTES
H—REE UEETEBMN2021FE1A228 2 ZTRD L E10%H K5

The general mandate given to the Directors to repurchase the Shares not exceeding 10% of
the total number of the issued Shares as at 22 January 2021 pursuant to the resolutions of
the Shareholders passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 January
2021

FEERR REERENREREBEARBITNRRERNZTHE
the shareholders’ rights entrustment agreement entered into by and among the New
Registered Shareholders, the Existing School Sponsors and Huihuang Company

EREEHARREARAT . —BER0190F4817TBERBAEEERILZE
RAR HEEAE2ERE -SHEEBANT BRI LHEEESE
70.8305% 2 B% #E

Songming Dexue Education Development Co., Lid.* (EFHEEHBHERAERAT) , a
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 17 April 2019 and wholly
owned by Mr. Li. Songming Dexue is one of the New Registered Shareholders and owns
70.8305% equity interest of Yun Ai Group

ERFECEETERRLT —ER2016F10827AREBEFPBEEEKLZER
NS

Songming Xinju Enterprise Management Company Limited* (SHHFELXEE AR A
Al) , a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 27 October 2016

BBt (FRENERMB) FLNEBHAE
the spouse undertakings executed by Ms. Yang, the spouse of Mr. Li

BEBERZMEMRAF
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

REABMEEARFABEESAORAIA2019F1286H 20205881 + 2020
F7H29H ~2020%F8H27H 20212848 ~ 2021548208 ~2021F5825H »
20215F9A28A R2021F1TAVANEEBENZNHETHENRE

collectively, the Existing Structured Contracts, and the New Structured Contracts and the
various supplemental agreements in relation thereto dated 6 December 2019, 8 May
2020, 29 July 2020, 27 August 2020, 4 February 2021, 20 April 2021, 25 May 2021,
28 September 2021 and 19 November 2021

BEELMRBIMETHERSE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEELLTRBIMETFHERSE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

En EBRNEEEY
United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
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[EEEEH] 15
“Yun Ai Group”

[EmER] 18

“Yunnan School”

[EEREER B

“Yunnan Vocational School”
[ 88N 37 = % 18

“Zhengzhou New Higher Education”

[ BN E AL ] 18
“Zhengzhou School”

GGl i

“Zhongyi Company”

[% J B

“op

MEFBERINERI XN X EHEAEL
FEREAFR—HZ2E BUPXEBRE LD
AREREENPUREABEETNRAIELOE
Bl MARSERRANEBNFXERUESR

1 RIEHRERZ M-

EHEBERAARHNEREEEER LT —ER2005F98 198 RIBERBEEER L
HWERAR HERHHHEKESEZHAEBRLAR  EHBRNHEMNEERAT
SHEERESHNECXEEZARKEER A T2 BI#HE20.0568%  5.7305% *
70.8305% 5 3.3822%

Yunnan Einsun Education Investment Group Co., Lid* (EEEEKHEREEBHR
A®)) , alimited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 19 September
2005, which is owned as to 20.0568% by Kunming Paiduipai Economic Information
Consultancy Co., Ltd., 5.7305% by Kunming Bamupu Technology Co., Ltd., 70.8305% by
Songming Dexue and 3.3822% by Songming Zhongyi Enterprise Management and Consulting
Services Co., Ltd.

EHIHER (AIEEEERAREBMABESR  [BH28k])  —BR2005F
RETEEERINRISSLERABEHE HEREREEZRHEEELE
2ERE AARTANGEHESE

Yunnan Technology and Business University* (2 T £z ) (formerly known as
Yunnan Einsun Software Vocational College* (Ef = R AR E B Z 2 Px ) (“Software
College”)), a private institution of formal higher education established under the laws of the
PRC in 2005, of which the school sponsor’s interest is wholly owned by Yun Ai Group and a
consolidated affiliated entity of the Company

EREREAMEEEKER
Einsun Science and Technology Vocational College* (Em B R AR L ZIE 28 )

BN SHHARNEERAT —ARPERINERART REEZEENE
BE2EMBAR AEMEBRAME —SEHE

Zhengzhou New Higher Education Technology Limited* (ER M ¥ S #HH BRI K BR
A®]) , a company established in the PRC with limited liability, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yun Ai Group and the sole sponsor of Zhengzhou School

BN B EER —EANRPETEEEMNTHNRNSERERFTER
Zhengzhou City Vocational College* (BB #N 3 Hi B ZE 22T ) , a private higher vocational
college located in Zhengzhou, Henan Province, the PRC

SRR BRCXEEREZARBER AT —BHR2016F7B12B RIBHREEEK
YHWERAR ABYE=ZF2EHF - HREQAAANTCERRZz— YH#EH
E B & E3.3822% 0% &

Songming Zhongyi Enterprise Management and Consulting Services Co., Ltd.* ( Z B &
TEBZEZXHRB AR D F) , a limited liability company established under the laws of
PRC on 12 July 2016 and is wholly owned by an Independent Third Party. Zhongyi Company
is one of the New Registered Shareholders and owns 3.3822% equity interest in Yun Ai
Group

ERalne
percent

If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of entities or
enterprises established in the PRC and their English translations, the Chinese
names shall prevail. The English translation of company or entity names in
Chinese or another language which are marked with “*” and the Chinese
translation of company or entity names in English which are marked with “*” is
for identification purpose only.

CHINA NEW HIGHER EDUCATION GROUP LIMITED FEH X EBER AT



[ FEAESEmARAS

China New Higher Education Group Limited
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